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AT BRERERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of SMIT
Holdings Limited (“SMIT” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | am
pleased to announce the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, the Group adhered to its strategic direction of
diversifying development, with integrated circuit (IC) as its
core business, to arrange and plan the new business layout
proactively based on our sound and traditional business.
The Group recorded revenue of US$38.1 million in 2019 as
compared to that of US$41.3 million in 2018, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 7.8%. Profit for the year increase
by 836.7% to US$12.3 million. Basic earnings per share for
the year were US3.3 cents (2018: US0.4 cent). To reciprocate
shareholders’ support, the Board has proposed a final dividend
payment of USO.1 cents with a total dividend payout of
Us$410,139.

During the year, by fully leveraging its advantages in industry
resources, the Group was able to deploy its industry layout of
the electronic design automation (EDA) system for state major
projects undertaken in China.

In March 2019, the Group and Xidian University (FAZ & Tt
R K E) (hereinafter referred to as “Xidian”) jointly established
the EDA Research Institute which aim to facilitate technology
research and development in related fields, training of high
calibre personnel and cultivating of the industry by further
relying on the respective strengths and resources of both
parties through various material strategic cooperation with
Xidian.
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In July 2019, the Group entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Shanghai Lingang Group (/8 &%E), the
only large scale state-owned enterprise of Shanghai SASAC (=
/8BIE Z) primarily engaged in industrial park investment, and
the development and operation of auxiliary services in relation
to the industrial park, both parties will carry out in-depth
cooperation focusing on the semiconductor industry.

On 27 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries
S2C Holding Corporation (“S2C Holding”) and S2C
Shanghai Co., Ltd. ("S2C Shanghai”) entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors (the
“Investors”), pursuant to which the Investors agreed to
contribute a total of RMB309,821,000 into S2C Shanghai, of
which RMB8,568,358 was contributed as additional registered
capital in S2C Shanghai and the remaining balance was
credited to the capital reserve in S2C Shanghai (the “Capital
Injection”). Prior to the signing of the capital injection
agreement, the Company was interested in approximately
95.43% of S2C Holding, which was in turn interested in 100%
of S2C Shanghai. The Capital Injection was completed on 31
December 2019, whereupon the total registered capital of S2C
Shanghai increased from RMB8,296,748 to RMB16,865,106,
and S2C Holding's equity interest in S2C Shanghai decreased
from 100% to 49.19%, and S2C Shanghai ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group and became an associate of the Group.

Capital injection by investors facilitates the expansion and
strengthening of the rapid verification system and software
business of S2C Shanghai, and the Group, being the largest
shareholder of S2C Shanghai, will fully support the future
development of S2C Shanghai.

In May 2019, the Group acquired approximately 0.99%
equity interest in Shenzhen Giga Design Automation Co., Ltd
("Shenzhen Giga Design”) for RMB10 million. Shenzhen
Giga Design is a company specializing in the development
of EDA design software. In January 2020, the Group further
contributed RMB90 million in Shenzhen Giga Design,
increasing the Group’s equity interest to 9.09%. The initial
investment and subsequent capital injection allows the Group
to increase its cooperation with Shenzhen Giga Design and
further enhance the Group’s capabilities in developing the full
process EDA system.
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PROSPECTS

The Group will uphold its road map of diversified development.
In the future, it will solidify its leading position, in terms
of market share in the pay-TV broadcasting industry while
endeavouring to work on the comprehensive layout in the field
of the EDA system by sticking to IC design which focuses on
security and applications.

For the CAM business, the Group will continue to consolidate
its leading edges in Europe at present and seek new business
opportunities in markets such as Africa. In response to the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the business in Europe,
the Group will take measures to adjust its stock preparation,
marketing, customer relationship maintenance and research
and development schedule to ensure the steady development
of its business in the region.

For the EDA system business, the Group will proactively
deepen cooperation amongst various resources within the EDA
industry and fully mobilize each parties’ respective strengths
to comprehensively promote the research and development
process of EDA tools. In order to satisfy the urgent needs
of the State to develop the IC industry, the Group will strive
to seek cooperation with or investment opportunities in
outstanding enterprises within the industry or industry chain
with technical advantages in design, research and development
and industrialization of hardware and software and chipsets,
as well as enterprises which are able to create synergy with
the Group's business. The Group will continue to adhere to
the principles of making up for the shortcomings of domestic
IC and ensuring the capability of being autonomous and
controllable, to optimize and expand the current business
of the Group thereby fully preparing the Group in vigorous
development of semiconductor holding group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay-TV broadcasting access. It designs, develops and markets
security devices primarily for the pay TV industry worldwide
through sales of conditional access modules, or CAMs,
products which provide end users with access to pay-TV
content. The Group is also a supplier of mobile point-of-sales
or mPQOS systems, and develops and markets mPOS devices for
the mobile payment industry in China.

S2C Tech Inc. ("S2C"), a subsidiary of the Group prior to its
deemed disposal of S2C business in the end of the year, is a
leading hardware-based rapid verification system and software
provider globally. Rapid verification systems and software
products of S2C can quickly build complex system models
for the development and testing of software before product
establishment, which will enable customers reduce the design
cycle of system-on-chip (“SoC").

In addition, the Group obtained requisite approval for the
implementation of the national science and technology project
of “Development and Application of Full Process Electronic
Design Automation (“EDA") System for Chip Design” in 2018
and duly launched the research and development of EDA
system, which is currently in the research and development
phase.
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CAM

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately US$24.6 million from CAM, around
6.5% more than last year, which accounted for around 64.5%
of the Group’s total revenue. The European market (excluding
Russia) remained the largest market for the Group’s CAM sales,
and made up around 59.7% of total CAM sales, which was
approximately 0.4% less than the previous year. The share of
revenue from Russia accounted about 17.2% of CAM, which
increased by around 34.5% year on year. Other emerging
markets accounted for approximately 16.7% of our total CAM
sales, and recorded a year-on-year increase of around 2.6%.
The Mainland China market contributed approximately 6.4%
of our total CAM sales, representing an increase of around
30.1% year-on-year.

Approaching the end of analog switch-off (ASO) by most of
the market operators in Europe, market demand stabilized.
Sales increase in the Russian region has benefited from a
significant increase in the number of satellite users. The
acceptance of CI CAM in emerging markets has been affected
by the base number of TV-adaptive models, which has limited
market capacity. But the increase in customer demand in the
African markets has brought some growth in the overall sales
in emerging markets. In the domestic market, under the impact
of IPTV and limited investment by operators in the project
of USB CAM, despite lower-than-expected sales, thanks to
the increased investment in broadcast control platforms by
operators, the overall domestic revenue increased with the
increased demand for engineering cards in the second half of
2019.

10
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Last year, the Group completed the deployment of Cl + 1.4
products in Europe firstly and also displayed the latest Cl +
2.0 and HbbTV products with major industry partners during
the IBC exhibition in September. The CAM and TV products
that comply with the new specifications will bring more
secure, beautiful and convenient products to the paid TV
broadcast industry, helping operators promote more services
to users on Cl + products. In addition, during the year, the
integration of smart-card-less conditional access technology
with various conditional access companies was completed and
the customized Cl + 1.3 functional products was launched to
a number of operators. The Group continues to invest in USB
CAM products, completing product integration with a number
of domestic TV manufacturers and operators.

mPQOS

In view of the oversupply in the mobile payment terminal
market and the fact that China has continued to tighten its
financial policies, the funds of payment business channels
has become increasingly tight, which resulted in increased
operation risks of the payment terminal business during the
year. For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales revenue
from mPOS decreased by approximately 56.4% year-on-year to
approximately US$3.4 million, accounting for around 9.0% of
the Group's total revenue.

Rapid verification system and software — S2C

S2C, a subsidiary of the Group prior to its deemed disposal in
the end of the year, further optimized product performance
and services in 2019, and also enhanced its production
capacity significantly. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
S2C contributed revenue of approximately US$10.1 million,
accounting for approximately 26.5% of the Group’s total
revenue.
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Apart from the full year impact of the operating results of S2C
in 2019, S2C experienced an organic growth in revenue mainly
driven by its complete range of products, which can meet the
needs of various customers. After the existing mature products
have undergone early market cultivation, the number of
additional orders from customers has grown rapidly, especially
in the Japanese and American markets. The new products
launched in 2019 are highly modular and integrated, which
received wide market recognition after launch, with orders
growing rapidly. On the customer side, S2C had cooperated
with a number of well-known IC design companies, and
its renewal needs have been further released, which has
contributed to the growth of S2C's revenue.

EDA system

After receiving approval for the implementation of the
national science and technology project of “Development
and Application of Full Process Electronic Design Automation
System for Chip Design” in 2018, the Group leveraged
on its strong financial advantages and strong government
support to actively mobilize local government, enterprise
resources and universities to carry out in-depth cooperation in
2019. By continuously improving fundamental research and
development facilities, increasing talent pool with adequate
training, and formalizing the standard management of special
research and development projects, it guaranteed the orderly
progress of various technological developments and promoted
the initial formation of the EDA industry layout plan.

In March 2019, the Group and Xidian University (“Xidian")
jointly established the EDA Research Institute. Through a
number of major strategic cooperation with Xidian and further
relying on the strengths and resources of all parties, the Group
advanced technological research and development, cultivation
of high-end talent and industry development.

12
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In July 2019, the Group signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with Shanghai Lingang Group (b8 E%
&), the only large scale state-owned enterprise under the
Shanghai State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission engaged in investment, development and
operation of industrial parks and supporting services related to
the parks. The Group and Shanghai Lingang Group will focus
on in-depth cooperation around the semiconductor industry.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the research and
development expenses of the Group’s EDA system were about
US$3.7 million, accounting for approximately 9.6% of total
revenue.

In the future, the Group will continue to increase its R&D

investment in EDA systems, fully promoting the formation of
new revenue growth points.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group generated

revenue of US$38.1 million, representing a decrease of around
7.8% compared with 2018. The revenue decrease is mainly

ot - attributable to the termination of the blockchain business
in 2019. The following table shows revenue breakdown by
business segments:
BEt-A=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
- i “E-NF
2019 2018
BEET % BEZET % ZEEHI
US$ million % US$ million % Change in %
RRERER Blockchain server = = 96 233 -
BER CAM 24.6 64.5 23.1 55.9 6.5
mPOS mPOS 34 9.0 7.8 18.9 -56.4
RIRERZE R Rapid verification
BB system and software 10.1 26.5 0.8 19 1162.5
38.1 100 413 100 -1.7
ERNREFNZE

HE-Z-NE+-A=+—RALEENEMNAIS3EEE
T BRZE- \FEMI6EEETKI1.7%  EXZEHER-
T—\F+— AHES2CR R MENEHERESRARATE
EMEEL01%  RFLEFA211%  TERINHEEEEE S
EFEAIRRERTE R o
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit amounted to US$15.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, representing an increase of US$1.6 million
or 11.7% compared with 2018 mainly due to the new product
sales revenue stream as a result of the acquisition of S2C in
November 2018. Gross profit margin increased by 21.1% year-
on-year to 40.1%, which was mainly attributable to the sales
of rapid verification system and software which is of higher
gross profit margin.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of the Group's research and development staff,
rental and office expenses, CA certification fees, professional
service fees and transportation and lodging. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, research and development
expenses grew from US$7.8 million to US$9.6 million, mainly
due to increased research and development expenses on rapid
verification system and software and increased expenditure of
the EDA research and development projects.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly include salaries and
benefits of sales and marketing staff, marketing, training and
promotion expenses, travel and entertainment and rental and
office expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales
and distribution expenses were US$4.1 million, increased by
53.3% compared with 2018, which was mainly attributable to
the expenses associated to the newly-acquired rapid verification
system and software business.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses mainly include salaries
and benefits of management, administrative and finance staff,
professional service fees, rental and office expenses, provision
for doubtful debts, and travel and entertainment. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, general and administrative
expenses amounted to US$12.1 million, representing an
increase of 36.9% compared to 2018. The increase was mainly
attributable to the expenses associated to the newly-acquired
rapid verification system and software business.
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Income Tax Credit

Income tax credit mainly consists of PRC corporate income
tax and Hong Kong profits tax for the PRC and Hong Kong
subsidiaries of the Group, respectively. Income tax credit
decreases from US$1.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to US$0.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
mainly due to a change in the profitability of the Company and
its subsidiaries in the respective countries.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
US$12.3 million, representing a increase of 836.7% when
compared with 2018. It was mainly attributable to an one-
off gain on the deemed disposal of the equity interests in
S2C Shanghai Co., Ltd. (BB (L&) E8REEAERAT)
completed during the year.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Debt Structure

The Group continued to maintain a healthy and solid liquidity
position. As at 31 December 2019, total cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to US$70.9 million (as
at 31 December 2018: US$55.0 million) and were mainly
denominated in RMB and US dollars. The Group recorded
net current assets amounting to US$58.6 million (as at 31
December 2018: US$71.0 million) and its current ratio,
calculated by dividing total current assets by total current
liabilities, was 228.5% (as at 31 December 2018: 457.1%,).
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2018: US$5.3 million) and lease liabilities of US$1.1 million
(2018: nil). No restricted bank deposit had been pledged for
the bank borrowings (2018: US$0.5 million). No hedging
activity had been carried out by the Group. Gearing ratio of the
Group, as calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by total
equity, was 0% (2018: 4.8%) as at 31 December 2019. Apart
from the above bank borrowings, the Group had unutilized
banking facilities of RMB7.9 million (equivalent to US$1.1
million) (2018: RMB100 million (equivalent to US$14.6 million))
and US$15.0 million (2018: US$10.0 million) in Mainland China
and Hong Kong respectively. The Group did not have any other
outstanding indebtedness or any outstanding or authorised
but unissued debt securities, term loans, other borrowings
or indebtedness in the nature of borrowings, acceptance
credits, hire purchase commitments, mortgages and charges,
contingent liabilities or guarantees outstanding.

Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

The aggregate net proceeds raised by the Company from
the Listing through the issue of an aggregate of 75,000,000
new shares (the “Offer Shares”) at the final offer price of
HK$3.78 per Offer Share pursuant to the global offering (the
"Global Offering”) referred to in the prospectus issued by
the Company on 16 March 2016 (the “Prospectus”), after
deduction of underwriting commissions and expenses directly
attributable to the Global Offering, were approximately
HK$251.6 million. Based on the net proceeds derived from
the Global Offering, proposed application of net proceeds as
stated in the Prospectus had been adjusted according to the
principles as specified in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

During the period from 30 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”,
being the date on which dealings in the shares of the Company
first commenced in the Stock Exchange), to the date of this
report, the net proceeds raised from the Listing had been
applied as follows:
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The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong and Mainland
China in accordance with the intention of the Board as
disclosed in the Prospectus. The Company has not utilised and
will not utilise any net proceeds for purposes other than those
disclosed in the Prospectus.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has capital commitments
of US$2.4 million (2018: nil) contracted, but not provided for,
and did not have any authorised but not contracted for capital
commitments (2018: nil).

Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal
of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies and Future
Plan for Material Investments or Acquisition of Capital
Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had equity securities
investments in a total of six unlisted companies and had
interest in an unlisted fund with an aggregate fair value of
approximately US$14.6 million (2018: US$18.2 million).
For further information on the Group's equity securities
investments, please refer to Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the Group’s material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies effected during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set below:

Acquisition of Equity Interest and Capital Injection in
Shenzhen Giga Design

On 21 May 2019, Shenzhen State Micro Technology Co.,
Ltd. ("SMIT Shenzhen”) (as the purchaser), Ms. Li Xue (as
the seller) (the “Seller”), Shenzhen Giga Design Automation
Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Giga Design”) and Shenzhen Hongtai
Hongxin Share Investment Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (the “HTHX Fund”) entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen agreed
to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell approximately 0.99%
equity interest of the target company at the consideration of
RMB10 million (the “Acquisition”).
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Shenzhen Giga Design is the product of a co-operation
investment project between the China IC Fund and the
Shenzhen Guiding Fund to engage in the development of EDA
design software. In recognition of the Group’s technological
capabilities in the IC design sector and its strategy to develop
EDA tools, the Group was invited to participate in the
investment project through the Acquisition. The Acquisition
allows the Group to be in touch with the latest EDA design
software projects which will in turn enhance the Group's
capabilities in developing the full process EDA system. For
further information on the Acquisition, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 21 May 2019.

Deemed Disposal of Equity Interests in $2C Shanghai

On 27 December 2019, the Company and its subsidiaries
S2C Holding Corporation (“S2C Holding”) and S2C
Shanghai Co., Ltd. ("S2C Shanghai”) entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors (the
“Investors”), pursuant to which the Investors agreed to
contribute a total of RMB309,821,000 into S2C Shanghai, of
which RMB8,568,358 was contributed as additional registered
capital in S2C Shanghai and the remaining balance was
credited to the capital reserve in S2C Shanghai (the " Capital
Injection”). Prior to the signing of the capital injection
agreement, the Company was interested in approximately
95.43% of S2C Holding Corporation (“S2C Holding"), which
was in turn interested in 100% of S2C Shanghai. The Capital
Injection was completed on 31 December 2019, whereupon
the total registered capital of S2C Shanghai increased from
RMB8,296,748 to RMB16,865,106, and S2C Holding's equity
interest in S2C Shanghai decreased from 100% to 49.19%,
and S2C Shanghai ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and
became an associate of the Group.

The Group will continue to search for companies with
prospective targets for investment and business cooperation.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

Currency Risk and Management

The Group's sales are primarily made in Europe, in US dollar-
denominated transactions and the PRC, in RMB-denominated
transactions. Sales of CAM and rapid verification devices of the
Group were predominantly denominated in US dollars while
sales of mPOS devices was denominated in RMB. The Group’s
costs of production are predominantly denominated in RMB.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
enter into any foreign currency forward contracts or use any
derivative contracts to hedge against the risk incurred from
its currency exposure. The Group manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of foreign currency rates and
may consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group employed
about 290 employees (as at 31 December 2018: 282
employees), of whom 263 were based in Mainland China, 7
in Taiwan, 10 in Hong Kong and 10 in other countries around
the world. For the year ended 31 December 2019, staff costs
(including salaries, social insurance, provident funds and share
incentive plan) amounted to US$15.5 million in aggregate,
representing 40.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

The Group has entered into employment agreements with
all of its full-time employees. In addition, certain senior
management and key research and development personnel
have signed confidentiality agreements and non-competition
agreements with the Group. Each senior executive officer has
agreed to hold, both during and after the effective period of
his or her employment agreement, in strict confidence and
not to use, except as required in the performance of his or her
employment duties, any confidential information, trade secrets
or know-how of the Group or the confidential information of
any third party received by the Group. Additionally, each senior
executive officer has agreed to be bound by non-competition
restrictions for a period of two years following the expiry of his
or her term of employment.
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The Group's success depends on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group's remuneration policy
and packages for its employees were periodically reviewed.
The Group is also dedicated to the training and development
of employees. Towards that end, the Group leverages on the
resources of its research and development centre, research
laboratories and project management team to ensure that
each employee maintains a current skill-set through continuous
training on topics ranging from technologies, solutions and
services to clients, markets and the industry. The Group
provides introductory training and orientation for all new
employees, as well as on-the- job training to continuously
improve employees’ technical, professional and management
skills.

OUTLOOK

Since last year, the global integrated circuit industry has
entered a period of evolution and transformation, and the
industrial structure of China’s integrated circuits has continued
to be optimized. Under the new environment, the development
of the integrated circuit industry faces not only huge challenges
but also rare opportunities. In line with the rapidly growing
needs of the national semiconductor design industry, the
Group'’s business now covers the design and application of
pay TV broadcast security products and the research and
development and application of integrated circuit electronic
design automation (“EDA") systems.

In respect of CAM business, the Group will introduce a new
CAM chip platform, which will increase the competitiveness
of its products in terms of performance, security and cost.
Products will also continue to be invested in the development
and market launch of new industry standard products,
including HbbTV, CI + 2.0 and domestic USB products. In
respect of the market, the Group will increase the marketing
of USB products, including CI + 2.0 in Europe, the customized
products of the domestic and emerging market operators,
meanwhile, actively explore the market opportunities of USB
CAM combined with OTT terminal equipment in China.
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The current spreading of COVID-19 pandemic has certain
impact on the Group’'s CAM business: 1) the production
capacity of memory components and passive components has
been affected, which may possibly lead to an increase in the
purchase prices of such components and our product costs
to a certain degree, as well a prolonged stocking (inventory)
turnover period; 2) in order to curb the spreading of the
pandemic in many European countries, their focus is shifting
to the provision of medical care and the production of medical
products, resulting in a slowdown in the provision of home
entertainment programs; and 3) the extension of the exhibition
will also make it impossible to visit customers and carry out the
onsite product tests during the pandemic period, thus affecting
the promotion of new products. In response to this, the Group
will put efforts to take the following countermeasures: 1)
make pre-procurements for the potential orders based on the
quantities of expected orders from customers so as to reduce
potential procurement risk; 2) proactively communicate with
customers to ensure that the quantities of pre-procurements
can meet the demand of new orders from customers, and
that the shipments can be made for those orders already
placed by its customers as soon as possible; and 3) take the
sample-sending approach and create a complete development
environment in Shenzhen to step up the research and
development of products, so as to ensure the rapid rollout of
market promotion upon disappearance of the pandemic.

In respect of mPOS business, the previous business has been
suspended in response to fierce market competition and the
change in industry models. However, we will continuously
explore new models and seize opportunities to regain our
growth in the Fintech business.
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In respect of rapid verification system and software business, in
view of the fact that S2C Shanghai is no longer the Company’s
subsidiary, the business will develop independently in the
future. The new round of capital injection provided S2C
Shanghai with sufficient working capital to finance its existing
and future research and development projects and other
necessary capital expenditures. In addition, the introduction of
Shanghai investors increased the possibility of S2C Shanghai'’s
application for support from Shanghai local government, which
has currently introduced several favourable policies for the
business activities of S2C Shanghai. As the largest shareholder
of S2C Shanghai, the Group will fully support S2C Shanghai
to make the rapid verification system and software business
bigger and stronger.

In respect of the EDA system business, the Group will continue
to increase investment in research and development, continue
to expand EDA system business, actively develop more EDA
technologies with independent intellectual property rights,
and achieve new revenue growth point through commercial
operations. In addition, the Group will comply with the
policy requirements of the country to vigorously promote the
development of integrated circuits, and for the shortcomings in
the domestic integrated circuit industry, the Group will actively
seek cooperation with or investment in outstanding companies
which have certain technical advantages in the software or
hardware, chip design, R&D and industrialization within the
industry and along industry chain and which can generate
synergies with the Group's businesses, to complement and
expand the Group's existing technologies with the aim of laying
a more solid foundation for the Group's efforts to develop its
EDA system business.

In the future, the Group will make full use of its advantageous
position in the industrial chain, comprehensively integrate
major resources, adhere to the strategy of independent
research and development, combination of industry, academy
and research, investment and mergers and acquisitions,
comprehensively deploy EDA field. The Group will adhere to
integrated circuit design as the core focus, and security and
applications products as the pillar, on the basis of ensuring the
steady development of traditional businesses, it will continue to
explore new revenue growth points, and explore opportunities
in the chip design industry in multiple dimensions to achieve
diversified development. While enhancing the overall strength
of the Group, it will create greater value for shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to achieving a high level of corporate governance.
The Company has been in compliance with the principles and
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code") under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2019 up to the date of
this report, except the following deviation therefrom:

Code Provision A.2.1

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (CEO) should be separated
and performed by different individuals. During the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this report, the duties of the
Company's Chairman and CEO were not separated from each
other. Mr. Huang Xueliang has been serving as the Company’s
Chairman and CEO during the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this report.

The Company believes that Mr. Huang Xueliang serving as both
the Chairman and CEO will guarantee us strong and stable
leadership to perform planning and management of the Group
more effectively. In view of his extensive experience in the
industry, personal credentials and key roles in the Group and its
historical development, the Board believes that it is favorable to
the business prospects of the Group for Mr. Huang Xueliang to
serve as our Chairman and CEO on a continuous basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. As at the date of this report, the
Board consists of eight directors (“Directors”) of the Company,
including three executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Their
biographical details and relationships amongst them (if any) are
set out on pages 57 to 66 of this annual report.
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The Board shall perform the duties of corporate governance,
and its responsibilities are to convene the general meetings
and report its work to the shareholders; to implement the
resolutions of general meetings; to formulate the Company’s
business plans, investment plans and annual budget and final
accounts; to prepare the Company's profit distribution plan,
loss recovery plan and proposals for increase or reduction of
registered capital.

The Board should meet regularly and board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the Company’s historical financial reports
and operating conditions and approve the Company’s budgets
and overall strategies. Notices of no less than fourteen days
are given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the
agenda for a regular meeting. Additional meetings should
be held whenever the Board deems necessary. For other
board meetings and board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members at least three days before the board
meetings or board committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings or board committee
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and board committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered
by the Board and the board committees and the decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by the Directors.
Draft minutes of each board meeting and board committee
meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
The minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by
the Directors.
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EESER2NARFZEH NARSAHcEseKEH The Directors actively participated in the meetings of the

BARBEEREBEE_E—NFT_A=+T—HLEFELELR Company. The members of the Board as at the date of this

AgENERAT report and their participation in the meetings of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows:

REZEE FMZEE BKEEE FERERS

23 =k =k 23 RRAE
Nomination Remuneration Audit Regular

EEHA Committee Committee Committee Board General
Name of Director meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
HER 171 TEF TEA 4/4 171
Huang Xueliang N/A N/A
Bz (RN FRHA T HEHE) TEFA 171 172 2/2 171
Zeng Zhijie (Resigned on 20 May 2019) N/A
BER TER TER 12 4/4 171
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen N/A N/A
SREGE TER 171 212 4/4 171
Zhang Junjie N/A
HAZIR 171 TEF 2/2 4/4 11
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond N/A
Tk 171 171 TEM 4/4 171
Jin Yufeng N/A
HEAES TNE TNE TNE 4/4 11
Shuai Hongyu N/A N/A N/A
BE R NEA TEA TEA 4/4 171
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun N/A N/A N/A
SR (RZZETF=A - HEHE) TEM TEA NEHA 4/4 1”1
Gao Songtao (Resigned on 27 March 2020) N/A N/A N/A

REBEEZT-NF+-A=T—HILEFE EFSHRITEAY The Board held four meetings during the year ended

# o AAABERMEESTREE T ASREUEE ZHE - K 31 December 2019. The Company is obliged to comply with
FROZVARESSEHRGRE BE_T—NF+=ZA=+ the CG Code and will take appropriate arrangements for
—HIEFE  RARRTHBEARERS - holding at least 4 regular Board meetings in the forthcoming

year. General meeting has been held once during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

ARARE EF2HWEME - 21 - RiksHtE To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,

X/ HBEBE - business, family or other material/connected relationship
among the Directors.
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Committees of the Board

The Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee under the Board assist in the full performance
of corporate governance duties. Each Board committee has the
right to obtain any complete and reliable information required
by it from the management. The committees shall, if necessary,
seek independent professional advice to perform their duties at
the expense of the Company.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its own decision all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors have the recourse
to seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to
access and to consult with the Company’s senior management
independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions being entered into by the management.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, number of members and composition (including
skillsets, knowledge, experience and qualifications) of the
Board, providing recommendations to the Board on candidates
for any directorship and senior management membership,
determining the policy for the nomination of directors, assess
the Board diversity policy, and assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee will assess a candidate or incumbent based on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held a meeting to conduct annual review of the
structure, number of members and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and discuss the Board diversity policy.

Nomination Policy

7 Objective

1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider
and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Committee may, as it considers
appropriate, nominate such number of candidates
to be appointed or re-appointed at a general
meeting, or the number of casual vacancies to be
filled.

FEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019 EI#IZRRHMRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED B e st
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2

Selection Criteria

2.1

The factors listed below would be used as
reference by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

(@)  reputation for integrity;

(b)  experience in the industry and/or business
strategy, management, legal and financial
aspects;

() whether the proposed candidate is able to
assist the Board in effective performance of
the responsibilities;

(d)  the perspectives and skills that the proposed
candidate is expected to bring to the Board;

(e)  commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(f) diversity in all its aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; and

(@) in the case of selection for independent
non-executive Directors, the independence
of the proposed candidate.

These factors are for reference only, and not
meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The
Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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2.2

2.3

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information in a prescribed
form, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a Director and to the public
disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a Director.

The Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if
considered necessary.

3 Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

FEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019 EI#IZRRHMRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED B e st

The secretary of the Nomination Committee
(the "Secretary”) shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior
to its meeting. Alternatively, such nomination may
be approved by the Committee by way of written
resolutions.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation.

Until the issue of the Shareholder circular, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they
have been proposed by the Board to stand for
election at the general meeting.
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3.4 Subject to and pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholder can serve a notice of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a
Director, without the Board’s recommendation or
the Nomination Committee’s nomination.

3.5 The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

4 Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority, under
no circumstances shall a member of the Nomination
Committee or a staff member of the Company disclose
any information to or entertain any enquiries from the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
before the circular to Shareholders, as the case may
be, is issued. Following the issue of the circular, the
Nomination Committee or the company secretary of
the Company or other staff member of the Company
approved by the Nomination Committee may answer
enquiries from the regulatory authorities or the public
but confidential information regarding nominations and
candidates should not be disclosed.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
advising on the remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management members of the Company;
assessing performance of executive Directors and approving
terms of executive Directors’ service contracts; and developing a
set of standardised and transparent procedures for developing
the remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for determining the remuneration packages of
certain executive Directors and senior management members.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held a meeting to review the Group’s remuneration
policy and structure and determine the annual remuneration
of the Directors and senior management members as well as
other related matters.
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Audit Committee
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity under applicable standards, and to assess
the efficacy of their audit procedures;

3. to review the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, accounts and interim reports,
and to review the significant opinions in relation to the
financial reporting contained therein;

4. to supervise the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems, assist the Board in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company'’s risk management and
internal control systems, and advise the Board on matters
relating to corporate governance; and

5. to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
its whistleblowing policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to fulfill the above duties.

Directors Training

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with the
necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company's operations and
businesses as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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All Directors participated in continuous processional
development to develop and update their knowledge and skills.
According to the records provided by the Directors, the training
programmes received by each Director during the year ended
31 December 2019 are as follows:

[ & W
i

HERER
HA{T3E8
Seminars or
BEEg BB~ other industry
Name of Director Director title events attended
=ER IE - PTESRARNTE \
Huang Xueliang Chairman, executive Director & CEO
HEER EMITES V
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen Non-executive Director
SR & BYFNTES v
Zhang Junjie Independent non-executive Director
AR BUIEMITES v
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond Independent non-executive Director
ex8 WIFITESR V
Jin Yufeng Independent non-executive Director
BMALF HITES v
Shuai Hongyu Executive Director
BECER WITES v
Loong, Manfred Man-Tsun Executive Director
=INE(RZE_TF=A 1+t AFE) FRWTES v
Gao Songtao (resigned on 27 March 2020) Non-executive Director
L2 (RZE—NFRAZTHEHTE) FHMTES \

Mr. Zeng Zhijie (resigned on 20 May 2019) Non-executive Director

FEREEHTE CHAIRMAN AND CEO

REBE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—B I FERINAR During the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date

£
BRESREIFEREFEANTERS E\Eﬂi’i%éﬁ@%ﬁﬂi%ﬁ
BINEEREERERE -

FHITES

FRTER (BRBIUIFNTES) RESFETREZITEAN
BRER  BBERMBIBLAEG BRB2EEEEEE
& LWEEFERWEFAFMEMER - HARRBE TR
HAREE -
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of this report, Mr. Huang Xueliang served as the Chairman and
CEO to take charge of the Group’s overall strategic planning
and supervise the overall management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) empower the Board with extensive industry
knowledge and experience, financial expertise and independent
judgments. They make effective recommendations on the
Company's strategies and policies through engagement in
committees of the Board, participation in Board meetings and
review of the Company’s relevant reports.
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During the year, the Board had at least three independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has provided with
the Company an annual confirmation of his independence.
The Company considers that Mr. Zhang Junjie, Mr. Jin Yufeng
and Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond are independent in terms of
identity and judgment, which is in compliance with the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELATED INDIVIDUALS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standards under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
After specific inquiries, it is confirmed that all the Directors
fully complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Code of Conduct applies to all the individuals who may
have access to inside information about the Company or its
securities as a result of their respective positions or duties as
defined by the CG Code, including employees of the Company
or directors or employees of the Company’s subsidiaries or
parent company.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee has received a letter from the Company’s
current auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers confirming its
independence and objectivity. The remuneration paid for the
services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliates (if
any) is as follows:

—E-NF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
SFET FET
REHE Nature of service USsD’ 000 UsD’ 000
Bz L EBRG Audit and review services 506 457
L BURT (B3R R e aT il & Non-audit services (including risk assessment
B B RS - and internal control consulting services, legal,
AR BT BIBERESRS financial, tax due diligence services, transactional
RS Z RS KA EBERS) support services and legal retainer services) 88 697
594 1,154

ERgRERZESHRE T BERIFIEIMNEREYL
BTN —HER - EEW THBERB B REH AR RRREL
LRENBREAZEZEFHHBERZEATHPRE -

EERUBBRRAAEZERE

EEEREARIRSEVRFERRGEMBRE - UEE
RFHREARE 2N - ERL T HBE EFBBAEEA
SERSEREEEER L ENR N EEERNREN S K
HHEATEERAE - EEECAEFSRHELVENREELE
B FEFERHRE TEFSHENAR AP HRRETH
BHRHYE - ARAREMEFEEBREBRHEARAQRKRR -
RREBIRNEAEHER
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, dismissal or removal
of the external auditor. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or situations which
may have material impact on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for each financial year to
give a true and fair view of the conditions of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company
provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Company's performance, position and prospects.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Directors consider that in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the Group has applied appropriate
accounting policies consistently and has followed all applicable
accounting standards.

ACCOUNTING RECORDS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
the financial position of the Group and enable the Group to
prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board believes that a comprehensive set of risk
management and internal control systems plays an essential
role in achieving the Company’s strategic goals and has
therefore acknowledged its responsibilities annually to maintain
such systems, as well as review their effectiveness to protect
the investment of shareholders and safeguard the assets of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company'’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems, while the
management is accountable for setting up and maintaining
those systems as well as providing a confirmation on their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

With an aim to improve the Company’s risk management
system while enhancing its controls of risks and the ability to
mitigate risks, the Board established its own organizational
structure, and is continuously improving risk management
system and maintains risk management structure. The risk
management organizational structure is a 3-tier framework,
comprising of the Board and its Audit Committee, Risk
Management Committee, as well as Risk Management
Executives. The Company has also defined the direct
management responsibility of each tier and the reporting lines
between them.

Risk Management Structure

Board
Audit Committee

Risk Management Risk Management
Committee Coordinator

Department Head
Business Process
Principal

Q)
(]
S
e}
o
E]
<
-
)
<
.
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TRETREREEEBASERMEENAR Roles performed by parties at all levels within the risk
management structure are set out in the tables below:
Exg
Board
v BOERBRE IR RS
Approve plans and reports on risk management
y EITEAORENRREIE - SFIERERRERRE - WETERE RS EBUES
Conduct risk management of material decisions, including approving related risk management reports
and determining effective controls to the risks; and
v hnsg BB ER LB R
Strengthen the cultivation of risk management culture
EREES
Audit Committee
v wAEREREZEGMNEE  BEMEBELRHE &
Review the setup of the Risk Management Committee and its job description, as well as the fundamental
management policies; and
v EHEAREERE RS ERREERE
Review assessment reports on material risks and various risk management reports
EREERZESSE

Risk Management Committee

\/

EHERERERNER  WERAREIBABKEREREBE

Promote the formulation of risk management system and define the structure and responsibilities of risk
management organisation

EHEZEARRERERAEMOEBCR - HIEMESEME

Regularly review the risk management policies and procedures and oversee implementation
RERXRRRHERERER @ FRURIERRKNEREERE RERELYHEE &

Provide risk management suggestions on material decisions by reviewing and submitting risk
management reports and risk response; and

BEANTEERRERELNIES

Oversee the cultivation of the Company’s general risk management culture
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Risk Management Coordinator

\ HEEAPIFRERRBBMANMTEIE  ERZHERRERRS - WIR2TRREREZES
Promote risk identification and evaluation on department level, formulate risk management reports and
submit them to the Risk Management Committee

v 5 HARRERZEERaRERELAREENRBETHRI - M - REATERERRRE
IBRAERATE I
Coordinate the Risk Management Committee and senior management to conduct risk identification and
evaluation on the Company level, propose countermeasures to material risks

v e EEERERNTABRRNRRERE TIEREMIEHEER
Assist and monitor the risk management executives to perform risk management work and review
relevant results

v R ERRRNET - DEREREEMENRET A
Organise trainings and share knowledge and best practices about risk management
V AN ERAMEBEANMERRERARTIREZ TRREEZEEREREEY

Summarise the risk management results of both the Company level and business level and submit them
to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee

MPEEE EBEREAFA
Department Head/Business Process Principal
v e R EREIREEXBHREARRARERNIIE
Coordinate with risk management coordinator in performing risk management of their own businesses
V R ATEEG R EREE
Regularly update the risk lists of their own businesses
v WA R AR REBFENREREWIH @ A ARERE IS ERI N R TRE

Assess the impact and likelihood of the identified risks on the Company’s businesses along with
characteristics of specific businesses

v HEARBEBNREERREE TR TEREENE B ARARERERNEENE
Prepare and implement risk responses for the relevant specific business risks; Take responsibility for
communicating and implementing the specific risk management measures

v WAREBOHSERRETER  INRRRERERS 0 &
Monitor and report various risks that specific businesses are facing to the risk management coordinator;
and

v i P B 3R 60 EL A ABRA

Execute other work relevant to risk management

———@\ FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 EISKIZMRHIRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Risk Management Process

The Company improves its management capability and
adaptability, and further ensures the realisation of business
objectives and sustainable growth through active and
systematic identification, assessment and response to risk
issues occurring in the operation process. The Company
has formulated and defined risk management process and
evaluation criteria in the Risk Management Manual. Risk
evaluation is carried out annually on the Company level
to determine the nature and extent of the risk and the
sufficiency of existing control measures through systematic
risk management procedures, which are four steps including
risk identification, evaluation, mitigation and reporting. The
Company prioritises risks based on the likelihold and the impact
on the Company'’s businesses, and develops risk responses and
control measures and report on annual risk assessment results,
impact of material risks and best practices of the industry to
keep the risks at an acceptable level.

Internal Control System

The Company'’s internal control system was constructed based
on the internal control framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission, and
considered the five components of internal control: control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication and monitoring activities. The Company
designs control activities to address the risk of each key
business process, e.g. sales and receivables, purchase and
payables, inventory and research & development (R&D),
investment and acquisition etc., and monitors the operating
effectiveness of those controls to achieve the control objectives
of internal control system.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control system on an annual basis. If any
deficiency of internal control is identified, the Company
addresses it by communicating with the management internally
and ordering remediation to be taken. Any material deficiency
identified in the control procedures or polices will be reported
to the Board directly for communication and discussion.
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The Company’s internal audit work is carried out by the
internal audit team, whose responsibilities have been defined
in the Internal Audit Charter. In 2019, our internal audit
personnel, together with members of an external consulting
firm appointed by the Company working as a team to
independently conduct internal control reviews on the
effectiveness of the key processes, and reported directly to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee then oversees the
effectiveness of the internal controls system by reviewing and
approving the internal audit assessment plan and reports.

Inside Information

For the management of inside information, the Company has
formulated the Inside Information Disclosure Management
Policy to clarify the definition of such information and
procedures to handle and release them. The Company discloses
information to the public generally and non-exclusively
through channels including websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, aiming to achieve fair and timely
disclosure of information.

Review on the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems in 2019

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has, together
with the Audit Committee, reviewed the Company'’s risk
management and internal control systems and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The review has covered
the year ended 31 December 2019 and all material controls,
including, operational, financial and compliance controls and
considered the changes in the nature and extent of significant
risks as well as the Company’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment. The Board and the
Audit Committee consider such systems to be effective and
adequate.

The Board and Audit Committee have also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of its accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions this year, and considered
the same to be adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric has served as the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) during the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman of the Board, and the appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary are determined by all the members
of the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for assisting the
Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of its committees in
developing meeting agendas, preparing meeting minutes in a
timely manner and sending them to the Directors and members
of the committees; for ensuring that all the Directors comply
with the Board's policies and procedures and all applicable
regulations and rules; and for ensuring accurate recording of
the meeting procedures, discussions and decisions of meetings
of the Board/its committees.

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric had received more than 15 hours of
professional training during the year in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biographical details are set out in
page 66 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
direct communication between shareholders and the Board.
Shareholders are welcome to make enquiries to the Board or
the management thereat, and the Chairman of the Board,
or in his absence, an executive Director, and chairmen of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the
committees, will normally be present and available to answer
questions. Shareholders may also send their written enquiries
to the Company Secretary.
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The Company is committed to enhancing its communication
and relationship with its investors. To this end, the
Board endeavors to provide shareholders with clear and
comprehensive information on the Group through different
media and official website. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports dispatched to shareholders, they may
also visit the Group’s website (www.smit.com.cn) for more
information.

Procedure for Making Proposals at Annual General
Meetings

Shareholders may make proposals or motions at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Company’s memorandum of
association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the relevant provisions.

Procedures for Requisitioning an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of submission of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may, by serving at any time a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for the handling of
the matters specified in the requisition.

Dividend Policy
1 Objective

1.1 The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders' expectations and
prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

1.2 Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group
is profitable and without affecting the normal
operations of the Group, the Company may
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders.

1.3 The Dividend Policy aims to allow the Shareholders
to participate in the Company's profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.
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Criteria

2.1 In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall
also take into account, inter alia:—

(a

the Company and the Group's actual and
expected financial performance;

retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members
of the Group;

the level of the Group's debts to equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group's
lenders;

the Group's expected working capital
requirements and future expansion plans
and prospects;

general economic and financial conditions,
business cycle of the Group's business and
other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;
and

any other factors that the Board deem
appropriate.
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3

Procedures for dividend declaration and payment

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are subject to the Board's continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and
the declaration and/or payment of dividends
would be in the best interests of the Group and
Shareholders, and are in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company.

Any dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of Shareholders
at an annual general meeting and must not exceed
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may from time to time pay to the
Shareholders such interim dividends or special
dividends as appear to the directors to be justified
by the profits of the Group.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of
the Board. There is no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

Review of the Dividend Policy

4.1

The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the
Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally
binding commitment by the Company in respect
of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.
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ERNHNER CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL

DOCUMENTS
REBZEZZ-NF+-A=T—HBILEE - ARENEEH During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
WSS o changes to the Company's constitutional documents.
AEEEeH By order of the Board
FE Huang Xueliang
EER Chairman
B ZETZTF=HA=++tH Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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We are a leading security devices provider for pay TV
broadcasting access worldwide. We have also entered into
Rapid Verification System and Software business. Pursuant to
the relevant requirements of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group will continue to disclose an
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
on an annual basis. Set out below are the important contents
of such report closely related to the Group’s businesses:

ENVIRONMENT

Emissions

The Group's policy is to ensure compliance with applicable
environmental laws and regulations and to reduce
environmental footprints through efficient use of resources and
application of environment-friendly technologies.

The Group is committed to promoting environmental
awareness among its employees. The Group believes that
raising environmental awareness is the key to environmental
protection and the promotion of public health.

In view of the nature of the Group’s business, the Company
believes that the direct impact of its business operations on the
environment and natural resources is very insignificant.

Sewage Discharge

The Group has no industrial sewage discharge, and its
domestic water meeting relevant discharge standards is
discharged into a municipal pipeline through the pipe network
of the industrial zone, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions under the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution, the Detailed Rules for the Law of
the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution,
and the Measures on the Supervision of Sewage Treatment
Facilities for Environmental Protection. The Company operates
in accordance with the requirements on clean production and
in compliance with the relevant requirements under the Law of
the PRC on Promoting Clean Production.
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Noise Emissions

All departments have conscientiously implemented noise
prevention measures and performed noise reduction processing
for noise-producing equipment without working at night,
which meets the relevant standards of the Emission Standard
for Industrial Plant Noise at Boundary and which, coupled
with the fact that there is no residential area in the proximity
of the Company, is in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.

Exhaust Emissions

As the Company is in a high-tech park in terms of ambient
air function zoning, the Company implements the medium-
level standards for environmental air quality as provided under
the Ambient Air Quality Standards (GB3095-96). Currently,
all our emission indicators meet the relevant requirements.
Our test and production process virtually produces no exhaust
gas, which is in compliance with the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution and meets the
standards under the Integrated Emission Standards for Air
Pollutants. There is no leakage of Freon generated from
air conditioning, which is in compliance with the relevant
provisions of the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete
the Ozone Layer.

Hazardous Waste Management

Our operation does not produce any significant hazardous
waste. After self-inspections conducted by all departments, it
is confirmed that the hazardous waste of each department,
including waste batteries, toner cartridges and ink cartridges,
has been classified and put into separate dustbins in a timely
manner, and all waste fluorescent lamps have to be returned
in exchange for new ones. All hazardous waste is collected
centrally for disposal. The production and domestic waste of
the Company has been disposed of as required in a timely
manner, which is in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations such as the Law of the PRC on Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste.
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Procurement, Transport, Storage and Preservation of
Hazardous Chemicals

The Group is not presently involved in any use and
management of chemicals.

In an effort to strictly follow environmental protection
requirements, the Group regularly hands out labor protection
supplies to staff in positions with hidden danger, arranges for
staff to take annual physical examination, and affords them
occupational disease detection. There is no occurrence of
environmental, safety and occupational disease issues resulting
from the Company’s operations during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Resource Utilisation

All of the Group’s departments and entities have specific
control measures for consumption of domestic water, office
electricity and paper, which satisfy the relevant requirements
of the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC. The Group
vigorously implements advice solicitation activities to encourage
employees to contribute to cost reduction and efficiency
improvement ideas.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
consumed 701,941 kWh of electricity, 1,279 m? of water and
11.4 tonnes in packaging materials (cartons).

Environment and Natural Resources
Since its inception, the Group has never compromised the

environment and natural resources in any way and has strictly
complied with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC.
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SOCIETY
Employment and Labor Practices

The Group's success relies on its ability to attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. The Group is generally able
to attract and retain qualified personnel and maintain a
stable core management team. The Group is committed to
the training and development of its employees. The Group
engages its R&D center, research laboratories and project
management team in ensuring that each employee receives
continuous training on subjects from techniques, solutions
and services to the Group's clients, the markets and industries
where it operates, so as to maintain the employees’ current
skillsets. The Group provides orientation training for all new
employees, and offers on-the-job training to continuously
enhance the technical, professional and managerial capabilities
of its employees.

The Group believes that the Group maintains a good working
relationship with its employees. Since its inception, the Group
has not been involved in any significant labor dispute or other
dispute with the labor authorities of the Chinese government.
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A breakdown of the Group’s employees by

gender,

employment type, age group and region as at 31 December

2019 is as follows:

EEAH ERER =A% Bl
Total number of employees Employment type By gender
E:lEd 7t
Male Female
290 2H2E - FFTSBHER 194 9
Full time with a labor contract signed
EEABZRFRARES) EEAB(BHEESD)
Numbers of Employee (By age group) Numbers of Employee (By region)
129 263
95
a4
19 7 10 10
3 . - 000 s
; ; ; hE R China &#Hong &8 Taiwan #§5h Overseas
1830 31-40 21-50 51-60 61 Mainland Kong
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REBEEZT-NF+A=+T—HBILFE  AEEZRMEA - F During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's

BRI MR B D E B IRAREINT ¢ employee turnover rates by gender, age group and region are
as follows:

BRAE RAER RERAR BHE

Total turnover rate By gender By age group By region

BE-  3ME-  ME- S1E- 6ER
i3 g3 305 40%% 505 607 BE Bk A =) |
Aged
Aged Aged Aged Aged 61and China
Male Female 18-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 above Mainland HongKong  Taiwan

18.62% 21.13% 13.54% 26.32% 15.5% 15.91% 10.53% - 18.63% - 50%
REEZ S Health and Safety
AEEBEETRREEE  RRESEARTBIEMAREE The Group is required to comply with the Safety Production

TTHOERR « BIIEERITERE - ERERAERLTENEE Law, the Labor Law of the PRC and other relevant Chinese
RERREREBERENET - BIFZSHRT - TARMESK laws, administrative regulations, national standards and

BEBTRABREEEENER  TEREEERESEET industry standards, which stipulate requirements on
B o EHEIKENERVERNESREZ2EENS KR maintaining a safe production environment and safeguarding
SIARZ 2R TIERIE - £EXRBMREBEIRT  BE & employees’ occupational health. In accordance with these
£ EA - RERMEETREANBERIITERE - requirements, an entity with any facility or equipment failing to

guarantee production safety shall not engage in production and
business operations. Entities operating in China must provide
employees with production safety education and related
training programmes as well as a safe working environment.
The design, manufacturing, installation, use, inspection and
maintenance of production facilities and equipment must meet
applicable national or industry standards.

AEBEREASBNANSNEEREERLDER - UERTE The Group has implemented safety measures within its

HRAMEERTERTREXGRAREEREK - AEETHBRE production facilities to ensure compliance with applicable
LEREABRANEENEELETSRITERER « 1o regulatory requirements and minimise the risk of injury to
AEEEHFABESEX TEL2EI - employees. The Group regularly examines its operating facilities

to ensure that the Group's production and operations are in
compliance with existing laws and regulations. In addition, the
Group requires new employees to receive job safety training.

EZZ-NFE  AEEFANER DREGEIET LER 8B In 2019, there was no work-related accident or injury occurred
BARMIESR - B0 TEIABTRESROERE thanks to the foregoing procedures and measures taken by the
BERARARBILTHEEER - Group. In addition, each new employee is required to produce

a qualified medical certificate, and the Company arranges
health examination for employees annually.
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Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement
of staff quality and related professional skills, and develops
training programmes for staff members based on the business
needs of each position.

In 2019, all employees of the Group received on average two
hours of training, and the number of training sessions by type
of training are set out below:

EREEE -
PREERE
=
Training
forsenior  HATMEIEAI  MIEEIEI  AEEEZI HEIEI
and middle Technical Financial Production Orientation
management training training training training
BEINRE 2 16 1 6 2

Number of training sessions

b3

TR

REE—ACEBREBIET A BE - HERTHEEETR
SRS T - ETEIFHRRARARMER - MBI L - #H L
EIRMRMBTHSEHARIER - 4EB T AR - BIsH
BETRAHIBT  BRHBRERBR -

HEEEE

AREMHEHRRE(ARERRREERMBAEFNER
B ROETAREERNETEERFNDRHE - £=F
—NEFE - ARAEREEEZILERD TR RTEER
B IEE  BR - EENKRAE -
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Labor Standards

The Group generally recruits talent via recruitment websites,
and never employs child labor or forced labor. The Group also
follows the relevant national laws and regulations to rationalise
labor relations and division of labor by improving relevant
measures and mechanisms, to safeguard the legitimate rights
and interests of employees and to resist child labor or forced
labor, to prevent contraventions.

OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers include (a) manufacturers from whom
the Group purchases components for its products and (b)
subcontractors undertaking certain production processes
for the Group's products. In 2019, the Company’s qualified
suppliers were mainly based in Guangdong Province, Jiangsu
Province, Xi‘an, Shanghai, and Taiwan, the PRC.
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The Group requires its suppliers to incorporate QP-13
procurement control procedures and QP-14 supplier evaluation
and management control procedures using the Company's ISO
filing system. All suppliers have been managed according to
the system:

1. Access review: set up access requirements for suppliers
and maintain supplier profiles; review each supplier's
operating conditions, production capacity, quality
assurance system, product quality, delivery period
and other related information to ensure that the
raw materials purchased meet the quality and safety
standards under the national laws, regulations and
standards.

2. Process review: set up procedures for reviewing raw
materials in the utilisation process and a traceability
mechanism to ensure consistent product quality during
the supply process; review the purchase inspection,
for-production utilisation, examination results and
handling of substandard products with regard to the
suppliers’ products.

3. Evaluation management: establish an evaluation system
to conduct comprehensive evaluation of suppliers on
a reqular basis; evaluate the product quality, delivery
capacity, technical level and product qualification rate of
each supplier, and weed out or request improvements
from subpar suppliers.

4. On-site review: conduct regular on-site reviews of key
raw material suppliers in terms of production capacity,
production process, quality control, and other metrics.

Product Responsibility

For any product arising from abnormal function due to any
software issues or misuse of the product, the Company may,
if necessary, dispatch a technician to clarify the causes for
the customer face to face, and if possible, to try and resolve
the problem on the spot, otherwise the Unqualified Product
Control Procedures and the Control Procedures for Corrective
and Preventive Measures shall apply.
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The Group follows the Quality Control Procedures and applies
a product recall process to guarantee the specifications of all its
products.

In 2019, none of the products sold by the Group were returned
due to safety or health problems.

The Group strictly abides by the Law on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of Consumers to safeguard the rights and
interests of consumers and their privacy.

The Group shall agree on certain confidentiality clauses or
sign a confidentiality agreement with any entity which is
commissioned by, or works with, the Group to develop new
technologies or new products.

The Group also incorporates confidentiality clauses into labor
contracts and has signed a confidentiality agreement with
each employee to make it clear that the employees have the
obligation to keep confidential certain information relating to
the Group. As for other relevant intellectual property rights, the
national intellectual property protection standards are strictly
followed.

Anti-corruption

The Group's employee handbook and cooperation agreements
with suppliers all contain anti-corruption and bribery provisions,
and a whistle-blowing mailbox has been set up to strengthen
the Company'’s internal control mechanism, so as to safeguard
the Company'’s interests and prevent corruption and fraud.

In 2019, neither the Group nor, to the Company's knowledge,
its employees were involved in any legal proceedings relating
to corruption.

COMMUNITY
Community Investment

The Group has been actively living up to its responsibility to
promote harmonious development of society as an important
direction for its long-term development. Each year, the Group
sponsors physical examination for employees, and organises
various group activities to entertain employees. In addition, the
Group also pays urban maintenance and construction tax for
urban construction on an annual basis.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Xueliang (Z2R), aged 57, is the chairman,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer of our
Company and the Founder of our Group. He was appointed as
the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive officer
of our Company with effect from 20 September 2015. He
is also a director of SMIT Hong Kong. Mr. Huang is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and overseeing
the general management of our Group. He has over 18 years
of management experience in the IC design industry.

From March 1989 to December 1991, Mr. Huang worked in
the China National Electronic Devices Corp., Shenzhen branch
(P EIE TR RFYIAR]), a company primarily engaged
in distributing and selling computer related components and
other electronic components. From January 1992 to February
1993, Mr. Huang worked as the vice manager in Shenzhen
Xianke Mechatronics Corporation (EYIT1 S BHER E T2 7)),
a company engaged in the processing of various electronic
modules and components. Mr. Huang is the Board Chairman
of Shenzhen State Micro Science and Technology Co. Ltd. (%
I BEHRHEBRAR]), a company engaged in the research
and development of integrated circuit design, since 1993.
Mr. Huang was appointed as non-independent director of
Nationz Technologies Inc. (BR#ZAiTi% % HRZAFR]), a leading
provider of secure IC products and services since May 2018.
He has served as Board Chairman of Shenzhen Smart Device
Technology Co.,LTD CRIITTREREIMAX MG AR A F),
a high-tech company focus on smart screen and machine
intelligence, since September 5, 2015. He was appointed as
Board Chairman of S2C Shanghai Co., Ltd(B & (B8 E8
B AR AR]) from November 5, 2018. He has served as the
deputy director of China Semiconductor Industry Association IC
Design Branch (PRI EEEITEREEMBERERFT D) since
November 2005, and deputy director of The Integrated Circuit
Design Industry Technology Innovative Alliance (5% % ¥ 3% a1

BB A R BRI L),

Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree in semiconductor
from Xidian University (formerly known as North-western
Telecommunications Engineering School (P51t B T2 23F))
in July 1984 and a master’s degree in electrical engineering
from Southeast University in April 1989.
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Mr. Shuai Hongyu (BPALS), aged 59, is an executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Shuai joined the Group on October 2005,
and was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
23 March 2017.

Mr. Shuai is the president and the chief operating officer of
our Company. He is primarily responsible for co-leading, with
Mr. Huang Xueliang, our business operation and overseeing
strategic technologies. Mr. Shuai is also a director of SMIT
Hong Kong and SMIT Shenzhen. Mr. Shuai has more than 20
years of industry experience related to image processing and
digital television technologies.

From 1987 to 1989, Mr. Shuai has been the engineer in
the computer department of the Sichuan Province Remote
Sensing Center (PUJI1 & &R OLEFEE). From 1989 to 2000,
Mr. Shuai was the vice president of the Southwest Branch
of China Council for the Promotion of Applied Technology
Exchange with Foreign Counties (/P Bl ¥ 5NE A1l 32 i (2
HEEWEHE). From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Shuai worked as
the vice president of Beijing Zhongshilian Digital System Co.,
Ltd. (tEH R EFT RAER A F]). Between March 2001
to March 2004, Mr. Shuai was the general manager of DTVIA
Conditional Access System (CHINACRYPT) Co., Ltd. (AL =48
BIEHF IR S AR A R]), a conditional access joint-venture
between Philips Cryptoworks (China) Limited and China Digital
TV Holding Co., Ltd. Between July 2004 and October 2005,
Mr. Shuai worked as the general manager of Beijing Pu’aode
Digital Technology Co., Ltd. (3t ARSI RITAR A 7)),
a company engaged in the design and development of digital
television system.

Mr. Shuai obtained a bachelor’'s degree in wireless
communication in July 1982 and a master’ s degree in
engineering in January 1987 from Xindian University (formerly
known as North-western Telecommunications Engineering
School (FEIL B LIEEMT).
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Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun (€3C88), aged 65, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Loong joined the
Group on July 2013, and was appointed as an executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017.

Mr. Loong is the executive vice president and chief financial
officer of our Company. Mr. Loong is primarily responsible for
the management of the overall financial and accounting affairs
of our Group.

Mr. Loong has extensive experience in accounting and related
financial management. Prior to 2006, Mr. Loong had extensive
experience working at Lucent Technologies (China) Co., Ltd.
Between April 2006 and July 2009, he served as the chief
financial officer and chief operating officer at UTStarcom
Telecom Co., Ltd., the subsidiary of UTStarcom Holdings Corp.
(NASDAQ: UTSI), a global telecom infrastructure provider,
focused on delivering innovative carrier-class broadband
transport and access (both Wi-Fi and fixed line) products and
solutions, optimised for mobile backhaul, metro aggregation,
broadband access and Wi-Fi data offloading. Between January
2010 to May 2012, Mr. Loong was the chief financial officer of
China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Ltd. (NYSE: MY), a wind
turbine manufacturer in China, listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, focusing on designing, manufacturing, selling and
servicing megawatt-class wind turbines.

Mr. Loong graduated from the University of Washington with
a Bachelor of Arts degree in business administration in June
1978 and was qualified as a certified public accountant in New
Jersey in the United States in February 1990.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen (B8E &), aged 62, is a
non- executive Director of our Company. Mr. Kwan joined
our Group in September 2015 and was appointed as a
non- executive Director of our Company with effect from
20 September 2015. Mr. Kwan has been a director of SMIT
Corporation since February 2008.

He served as the regional vice president and managing
director of North Asia from July 2001 to January 2006 and
the vice president from January 2006 to April 2007 in Yahoo!
International. Mr. Kwan has been a venture partner of Oak
Management Corporation, a venture capital firm which is an
affiliate of Oak Investment Partners X, L.P., since April 2007.
He has served as a director since November 2008 and was a
member of the audit committee for NeoPhotonics Corporation
(NYSE: NPTN), a designer and manufacturer of photonic
integrated circuit based modules listed in the New York Stock
Exchange until November 2015.

Mr. Kwan obtained a bachelor ‘s degree in mechanical
engineering from the University of British Columbia in May
1982, a master of business administration degree from the
Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania in May 1987, and
a Master of Arts degree from the University of Pennsylvania in
May 1987.

Mr. Liu Yang (£/5¥), aged 39, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Liu joined our Group as non-executive
Director on 27 March 2020.
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Mr. Liu graduated from the Peking University with a
dual-bachelor degree in physics and economics in July 2003
and received a master’s degree in physics from the University
of Notre Dame in May 2006. Mr. Liu is currently the general
manager in the Second Investment Department of Sino-IC
Capital Ltd. GERIEEE R HREMEAFR]), the fund manager
of China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co.,
Ltd. (BREXEBREZXRELSRMHBR DA (“China IC
Fund”). China IC Fund indirectly holds the entire share capital
of Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited (B (&/%8)&E&
APBRZAF]), one of the corerstone investors during the global
offering of the shares of the Company in 2016 and an existing
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Liu served as a consultant in
the Strategic Development Division of Siemens (China) Limited
(FPIF () BFRAA]) and a business manager in the
Strategic Development Division of Guohua Power Company of
China Shenhua Energy Co., Ltd. (FR B8 EE4ERID BFR A A
management of the listed power assets of Beijing Guohua
Power Co., Ltd. (1$ZEIt R EIZEE HER & E 2 7). He was the
senior deputy manager in the First Fund Department of CDB
Finance Co., Ltd. (BB & REARE £/ F]) from October 2012
to December 2014 and was the vice general manager in the

773 1a)), a company which specializes in the unified

T

Second Investment Department of Sino-IC Capital Ltd. (278
AERAREMLAF]) from December 2014 to July 2015.

Mr. Liu is currently a non-independent director of Ninestar
Corporation (1B E7H AR A F]), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002180). He is also
a director and a non-independent director of the companies
China Wafer Level CSP Co., Ltd (&M S5 E BRI RGN E
[ A 7]) and Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co.,Ltd. (&I
FETERIHE AR D AR A R)) respectively, which are both listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock codes: 603005 and 603160
respectively).
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Mr. Gao Songtao (E# &), aged 50, is a non-executive
Director of our Company. Mr. Gao joined the Group on 23
March 2017 when he was appointed as a non-executive
Director of our Company with effect from 23 March 2017. Mr.
Gao resigned from the Group on 27 March 2020.

Mr. Gao, graduated from the University of Electronic Science
and Technology of China with a bachelor degree in July 1991,
and he received a master’s degree in economics from the
Renmin University of China in June 2006 and an IMBA degree
jointly from the Fudan University and the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Gao is currently the vice president of Sino-IC Capital
Ltd. CEIREE B BREEAR]), the general partner of
China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. (B
REKNEREXREESRNHBMR AT (“China IC Fund”).
China IC Fund indirectly holds the entire share capital of Xinxin
(Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited (/% (F8) EBR A F),
one of our cornerstone investors during the global offering of
the Shares in 2016.

Mr. Gao is currently a director of Beijing BDStar Navigation Co.,
Ltd. b RAE 2 @E MMk AR A F]), a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002151), Shenzhen
Goodix Technology Co.,Ltd. CRINTTIETERHZ D BR A R]),
a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
603160), Rockchip Electronics Co., Ltd. (/N0 E D AR
22 7)), a solution provider and chip designer in mobile Internet.

Mr. Zeng Zhijie (& 2 #¢), aged 52, is a non-executive Director
of our Company. Mr. Zeng joined our Group in September
2015 and was appointed as a non-executive Director of our
Company with effect from 20 September 2015. Mr. Zeng
resigned from the Group on 20 May 2019.
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Mr. Zeng has been a director of SMIT Corporation since
February 2008. Currently Mr. Zeng has been chairman, founder
and partner of Hongtai Fund, also founder and partner of Yuan
He Hou Wang Growth Fund. Mr. Zeng once served in CITIC
Limited (FF{=Z== AR A7) at Hong Kong and Mitsubishi
Corporation in Japan. Between January 2001 and December
2007, Mr. Zeng served as a managing director of Walden
International and mainly responsible for venture investments in
China and other Asian countries. Between 2008 and 2017, Mr.
Zeng was appointed as the senior managing director of CITIC
Capital Holdings Limited ({5 & A% AR 2 7)) and general
manager of Kaixin Investment (FI{Z&I%&E ), responsible
for venture capital investment and business growth of CITIC
capital. Besides SMIT Holdings Limited, Mr. Zeng also served
as director or independent director of ChinaSoft International
Limited (FR#EEIERARAR]) (HKSE: 354). Mr. Zeng obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of
Nagasaki, Japan in March 1996, a master of science degree
in management from Stanford University in June 2001 and a
doctor degree in economics from Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences in 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Junjie (3R #E), aged 50, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in the investment
banking industry. Mr. Zhang has served as the general manager
in the business department of the investment bank, Guosen
Securities Company Limited (Bl{Z:8H# KM BRAF]) since
February 2005.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in oil development and
drilling engineering from the Jianghan Petroleum University
(now known as Yangtze University) in June 1992. He received
a master’s degree in industrial economics from Wuhan
University of Technology in June 1999. Mr. Zhang also received
an executive master of business administration degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in October 2012.
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Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond (#%#f), aged 51, is an
independent non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Woo
joined the Group on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company with
effect from 6 March 2016.

Mr. Woo has over 20 years of experience in the accounting
and financial services industry. He began his career at Arthur
Andersen & Co (BB LEEEETRNEFT) where he qualified.
From November 1997 to March 2004, Mr. Woo served as a
vice president of capital markets advisory M&A execution,
investment banking division of ING Bank H.V.. From June 2006
to August 2006, Mr. Woo served as managing director and
head of finance corporate at CITIC Securities (HK) Company
Limited (F{55& % (BH) BBRAHF). From August 2007 to
June 2010, Mr. Woo served as a director in the investment
banking department of Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited, a
leading financial services company. Mr. Woo joined IRC Limited
(B TIRE AR AF]) (HKSE: 1029), an industrial commodities
producer listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange as an
executive director between June 2010 to March 2015 and he
has since then been re-designated as a non-executive director
of IRC Limited (8T EHBRAA]). Mr. Woo has served as an
independent non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings
Limited (R KFBEIER AR R A]) (HKSE: 2789), a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of curtain
walls listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
April 2011.

Mr. Woo received a bachelor’s degree of commerce in the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 1992. Mr.
Woo became a certified practising accountant of the Australian
Society of Certified Practising Accountants in November 1996,
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in April 2005.
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Mr. Jin Yufeng (& % %), aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Jin joined the Group
on 6 March 2016, and was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of our Company with effect from 6 March
2016.

Mr. Jin has over 30 years of research experience in the
electronic engineering industry. From April 1985 to March
1999, Mr. Jin worked as an engineer and senior engineer in
the 55th Research Institute of China Electronics Technology
Group Corporation (FEEFRIEEERRZERATAMRE
FT), which is specialised in the research and development on
electronic components. From April 1999 to February 2001,
Mr. Jin was a post-doctoral research fellow in the Institute of
Microelectronics, Peking University (3t R K244 E 7257780t ).
November 2001 to October 2004, Mr. Jin served as a senior
research engineer of Singapore Institute of Manufacturing
Technology. He has been a professor in the School of
Electronics Engineering and Computer Science ({5 2RI,
fiTE28T) in Peking University since August 2006. Mr. Jin was a
consultant of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (& f& R 5T
BRR2AF])from August 2007 to November 2007. Mr. Jin has
served as an independent director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd
(BB &ERHBRAE]) (SHSE: 600171), an IC designer and
application developer listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from December 2013 to November 2019.

Mr. Jin received his bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering
and master's degree in electronic engineering from Southeast
University (previously known as Nanjing Institute of Technology
(AR TEFT)) in July 1982 and July 1985 respectively. He
received his doctorate degree in physics and electronics from
Southeast University in March 1999.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheng Kai Pui, Eric (#8Bk#%), aged 36, is the company
secretary of our Company. Mr. Cheng has approximately
14 years of experience in accounting and related financial
management. Mr. Cheng worked in the audit department
of Kreston CAC CPA Limited (previously named as Chan and
Chan) from September 2006 and left the firm as an assistant
audit supervisor in May 2011. Between May 2011 and August
2012, he worked as a senior accountant and subsequently
as a finance manager in Icicle Production Company Limited.
Between October 2012 and March 2013, he served as an
audit manager of L & P CPA Limited. From May 2013 to July
2014, Mr. Cheng served as an assistant accounting manager
of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1803), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor of commerce degree in accounting from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in July 2006. Mr. Cheng received a
master of professional accounting degree from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2012. He has been registered
as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2010.
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Directors are pleased to present their reports and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is a leading security devices provider globally for
pay TV broadcasting access and for mobile point-of-sales, or
mPOS, payment systems in China. The Group designs, develops
and markets security devices primarily for the pay TV industry
worldwide through sales of conditional access module, or
CAM, products which provide end users with access to pay TV
content. The Group also develops and markets mobile point-of-
sale, or mPOS devices for the hardware-based mobile payment
industry in China, which enable users to make credit and
debit card transactions with mobility using their smartphones
or tablets rather than a traditional stationary POS terminal.
S2C Tech Inc., the subsidiary of the Group prior to its deemed
disposal in 2019, is a company engaged in the development
and sales of rapid verification system and software. The
Group obtained requisite approval from the PRC Central
Government for the implementation of the national science
and technology project of “Development and Application of
Full Process Electronic Design Automation (“EDA”") System for
Chip Design” in 2018 and duly launched the research and
development of EDA system, which is currently in the research
and development phase.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the section head “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 5 to 24 of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

For the details of the results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the financial condition of the Group at
that date, please refer to the consolidated financial statements
on page 105 to 275.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of

HK1 cent (equivalent to approximately USDO.1 cents) per share,
totaling USD410,139.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company’s distributable reserves as at
31December 2019 are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had no
donation (2018: USD31,295) to charitable organisations.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the movements in the Company's share capital for
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

To recognise and acknowledge the contributions made by
certain of its employees, directors and consultants to the
growth of SMIT Corporation, SMIT Corporation adopted a
share incentive plan on 21 February 2008 (the “2008 Share
Plan”). As part of the reorganisation in preparation for the
listing of the Company, the Company assumed the 2008
Share Plan as the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of the
sole shareholder passed on 15 September 2015, and assumed
all the rights and obligations under options granted by SMIT
Corporation under the 2008 Share Plan, and all share option
agreements entered into between SMIT Corporation and
the holders of such options, to the intent and effect that all
such share options granted under, and such share option
agreements entered, under the 2008 Share Plan will be valid,
binding and enforceable against the Company in accordance
with their terms, as if such options had been granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
have or may have made to the Company. The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to offer selected persons an
opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the success
of the Company, or to increase such interest, by purchasing
Shares of the Company.

The eligible participants (collectively the “Eligible Participants”)
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme include any individual
who is (i) an employee of the Company, any of its parent
companies or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) a member of the board
of directors of the Company who is not an employee of the
Company; or (iii) a consultant to the Company, any of its
parent companies or any of its subsidiaries.

Each share option agreement shall specify the date on
which all or any instalment of the option shall be granted to
each grantee under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
term of options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be specified in the share option
agreement and, in any case, shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant. The exercise price of the options were
determined by the directors of SMIT Corporation.
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No further options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme on or after the Listing Date.

Set out below are details of the outstanding options under the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as 31 December 2019:

Z§-1%
-A-H BEZg-0E
RHiERE EORREH W-%-M5E R-3-NEE W-I-M¥E tIR=1-8
REARH/ 4% EERAEE ik fikE EREH HHE METSNTE fifi g igs:d AR
Number of Weighted
Share average
underlying closing price Qutstanding
the options hefore the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as of
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerdse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2019 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2019 year 2019 year 2019 2019
L]
Directors
E2R 45828 Z5-FEAR-R 0T TR-REAR-R CECEEASER - - - S L
Huang Xueliang 01/0972010 (SD0.54 01/0972014 311082020
231,208 e 10657 “E-RE-A-H R-E-R-A - - - - 231,208
010302011 USD1.06 010302015 01032021
B ZE-CERASTR 00T ZFRERASTR Z3CZFMAZTER - - - - 131847
30092012 150062 30092016 2500402022
e ZF=ENA-R 05T TEHEM-R CECCERUATR - - - - 738,067
011082013 USD0.56 011082017 3107203
CE 1565138 ZF-FEAA-R 0T CRREAR-R CECREMASTR - - - - 118
Kwan,Allan Chung-yuen” 01/092010 USD0.54 01/092014 311082020
285,787 23—FR-A 10657 “3-1£=5-H S - - - - 285,787
011032011 USD1.06 01/0312015 011032021
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Share average
underlying closing price Outstanding
the options hefore the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as of
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2019 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2019 year 2019 year 2019 2019
Wiz w0 ZE-TE=RIA WiET ZE-mESAER CE-NERALERE 43057 200000 - - -
Shuai Hongyu 05032010 USD0.04 0500312014 19052019 HK$4.30
1183 ZE-RENA-R 0T ZE-BEAA-E ZECREVAZT-R - - - AL
01/092010 USD0.54 01/0972014 311082020
1800633 “E——E-R-f 10657 “T-15=F-A “2-E-R-f - - - - 1800633
01032011 USD1.06 01032015 01032021
61900 ZT-CENAZTR 06T ZEEAASTE CBCIERAITER - - - - 679022
300092012 USD0.62 300092016 25042022
i ZEZENE-R 0657 CEF-ZET-A-R CRCZEUA=T-R - - - - 70,120
011082013 USD0.56 011172013 31072023
590454 “2-TE\A-R 05657 T5HENR-R ZECZREEACT-A - - - - 590454
(1/082013 USD0.56 01082017 31007203
E36 65419 F-=E\A-B WMET  EFZEr-A-R CRCSEUA=T-R - - - - 6541
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun 011082013 USD0.14 011102013 31072023
BEAL
Connected persons
£ s ZF-FEZRIR WET CE-BESARE ZE-NEEATER 4S0%T 1811 - - -
Zeng Thje 0500312010 500,04 050032014 15052019 HK$4.50
B EE2A-R 1065t Z3-1§2R-B ZE-ESR-H - - - - 73807
010372011 USD1.06 01/032015 010312021
aE BAT ZE-EETCAZT-H 05%T CE-BETCRZT-B ZRCRFrIA=TR - - - - 780
Bai Yu 311202010 USD0.75 31122014 301212020
B ZE-ZENAZTR 06FT  ZEENASTA CECCERACER - - - - B
300092012 150062 300092016 25042022
Cykorp imited 180 Z5-TE2REA 00T “E-MEZRIR CE-hERATEA 37657 8 - - -
05/032010 USD0.04 05/0312014 15052019 HK$3.76
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REAEH /48 EERAEE RHA% fikE EERE HHE  METSETE fifik iRt fixx HAGE
Number of Weighted
Share average
underlying closing price Qutstanding
the options before the Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asof
Category/ granted as at Exercise Expiration exerdse  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of Grantee 1 January 2019 Date of Grant Price Vesting Date Date dates year 2019 year 2019 year 2019 2019
= 145100 ZE-FECARA WiEr  Z3-BESRER ZE-NERATRR 391 838454 - 612598 -
Employess 05/032010 USD0.04 05/0312014 15/052019 HKS3.91
160 ZF-TEAA-R 0451 ZEBEAA-R CRCRENA=H-R - - - - 1080
01092010 USD0.54 01092014 31/082020
1967210 5-RET2A=T-R 0% E-MErCAZT-R CECRErOAztR - - - - 1%100
311202010 USD0.75 31120014 301202020
548,781 E-E-A0R 0551 ZE-RE-A0R JEEAN - - - - 548,781
080172011 USD0.75 0810112015 08012021
548,781 “F—-E-R-A 05T “T-1%2F- “2-E-R- - - - - 548,781
01032011 USD0.54 01032015 01032021
2,149,936 “5-E=R-A 10657 S “5-F2R-A - - - - 2,149,936
(1032011 USD1.06 010032015 01032021
205005 ZE-ZENA=TR 06ET  ZEREAASTA ZBCCEBAZTER - - - - 260
30092012 USD0.62 300972016 /04200
2,132,004 Z2-ZE\A-B 056ET “E-F\B-B ZECErAT-A - - - - 2,132,004
(1/082013 USD0.56 (1/082017 31072023
HfpaBipag 2980 Z3-SEAA-R 04FT E-REAA-E CRCREAAZT-R - - - - 29840
(BEHEERER) 01092010 150054 011092014 3110812020
Other eligile partipants 819,805 I 1065 E-1E-R-R 35248 - - - - 819,805
(including former 01/0372011 USD1.06 01/032015 01/0372021
employees and consufants) 274,390 “3-TE-R-H 12051 ZE-7EZA-A ZECCECR-A - - - - 27439
010312012 UsD1.21 01032016 010312022
BY6  ZF-ZENA=TR 0FT  CEREAASTE ZBCCEWACTIA - - - - 73,806
300092012 USD0.62 300092016 250042022
11939 Z5-Z£2f-H 062ET ZE-tE-R-H S s - - - - 11939
01/032013 USD0.62 01/032017 01103203
018 Z2-=EN\A-H 0565 “E-rENB-B ZECZECACT-A - - - - 018
01/08/2013 USD0.56 01/0812017 310712023
274390 “Z-WE=A-H 041ET —T-)\§=5-H “2RE=A-H - - - - 274390
010032014 USD0.41 01032018 010312024
At 4031988 LIET 192413 - 612598 37782554
Total HKS4.12
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(1) BEERENBREEIAREEABERETEREIREROH

BREPFEGEZR  BERROT  (VELEUAASHIEEER
# + (i) Cykorp Limited (B £ 2 AW AN AR]) HH EAE -

2) Cykorp Limited A EREELEHE ©

RBE-Z-NFT_A=+—HIFE ARRREALEEE
RIS EATTEERAFRESABREMETTA 2£1,924,136

BBty - REEERRFREENBIAEETERE BARRMm N
IR ERAN12BTT ©
WBE-Z-NFT_A=+—HILFE HBEERAHEE

A B AR AT 8 -

%%Z?E:g NF+ZA=+—HILFE 5361259805
IRAFIEEBIBBMER B B IR AR 35 BB A M ISR RN -
BREXFEREEN  RBEE-T-NF+-A=+—RHLHF

€ BEEA R ARBEEABEAETE SR

RAHRE B RIBERAFHEERIBARER IR L 0B AE
BT R BB ATEESMR D BB /37,782,554 A - AT F
BB 14ETEGREMN1 .21 ETNFBTRETRE
HERARRRRARE AHID BEITRAN11.87% °

Notes:

(1) Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen is interested in share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares
which are held as follows: (i) options held in Mr. Kwan'’s personal
capacity, and (i) options held by Cykorp Limited, a company wholly

owned by Mr. Kwan.

(2) Cykorp Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total number of
1,924,136 Shares were issued by the Company upon exercise
of Pre-IPO Share Options by option holders of the Group. The
weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately
before the date on which the Pre-IPO Share Options were
exercised is HK$4.12.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Pre-IPO
Share Options were cancelled.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a total number of
612,598 Pre- IPO Share Options had lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no other Pre-IPO Share options
were exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The number of outstanding Shares subject to the options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the
date of this report was 37,782,554 Shares, exercisable at the
respective exercise price between US$0.14 per Share and
US$1.21 per Share, representing approximately 11.87% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the business results and financial position of
the Group for the past five years is set out in page 276.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this Report, our Directors comprised of the following
individuals:

Executive Directors

Huang Xueliang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Shuai Hongyu
Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

Non-executive Directors

Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen

Liu Yang (appointed on 27 March 2020)
Gao Songtao (resigned on 27 March 2020)
Zeng Zhijie (resigned on 20 May 2019)

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Junjie
Jin Yufeng
Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

Each of Mr. Zeng Zhijie and Mr. Gao Songtao resigned
as non-executive Director on 20 May 2019 and 27 March
2020 respectively due to their other business and personal
engagements, and other work obligations. Each of Mr.
Zeng and Mr. Gao has confirmed that he does not have any
disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter
relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the
attention of the shareholders of the Company or the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As of the date hereof, each of the non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years unless and until it is terminated by not less than three
months’ notice served by the Company to the Director.

Pursuant to Articles 84 and 85 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, one-third of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years.
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None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with the Group or any member of the Group which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

Directors’ and senior management’s biographical details are set
out in pages 57 to 66.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year. The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’
liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors of the Group.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2019 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019, and no contract of significance between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted
as at 31 December 2019 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of remuneration paid to members of the Directors and
senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out below:

AE
g E Remuneration band No. of Individuals
100,0003 7T A~ USD 100,000 or below 5
100,001 T4 200,000 7T USD100,001 to USD200,000
200,000 7T E More than USD200,000 3

EEME RS2 EEERT - BELKRBREURAEENEEM
BEE - W EEFHAARARNFMEZR BT - EF
FEN RIS H N R & WS IRR I RE40

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration
is reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company
annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in
note 40 of the consolidated financial statements.
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RZEBE-NFTZA=1+—0  EERERFEHTBRAER
AIRIEE S M B RDI S 352 R F AN R R B et AT
FLER R SRIE R AE ST B AN & AN B BB S AT 28 2 B S ELAEAA
HEOEE (& RS B RGIEXVER) )i - RO
NERER R ORI T

ESHR 4

Name of Director Capacity

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of interests of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EEHN

B2 (%)

Fris i 10 &L B e Approximate
Number of  percentage of

Shares heldNote ! interest (%)

B3 B W2
Huang Xuelianghte2
corporation

B EENE EmEAA
Kwan, Allan Chung-yuenhte3 Beneficial owner
B AL T ERBEBA
Shuai HongyuMet4 Beneficial owner
RESCBRM=S BmlEA A

Loong, Manfred Man-tsuniete> Beneficial owner

W
1L FEILRRRGEE -

2. REIBE-NF+-A=+—H  BERKENS,043,624 M1
Bz RN RAES,426,400 AR 1D MORE AR MEIE B 1 s  FLAEN
# Green Flourish Limited#75 100%#%5 + #Infortune International
Limited#5 8 100% 1 25 & 74 Statemicroelectronics International Co.,
Ltd. $5550% %% - Bt - REEERATES  SEAERER
75 Bl Green Flourish Limited * Infortune International Limited &
Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. #E B #E%5H) 128,656,454
A&A% (D - 13,965,149A%A% 15 K 15,957,463 AR AR 19 R A HE 2
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ERfEAAN REELEER

Beneficial owner/interest in controlled

172,049,090 %A% 15 (L) 54.07
172,049,090 Shares (L)

2,951,339 %15 (L) 0.93
2,951,339 Shares (L)
6,340,465 B AZ 17 (L) 1.99
6,340,465 Shares (L)
6,544,129 BAE1D (L) 2.06

6,544,129 Shares (L)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position.
2. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Huang Xueliang was interested in

5,043,624 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 8,426,400 Shares. Mr. Huang also held 100% interest in Green
Flourish Limited, 100% interest in Infortune International Limited
and a 50% interest in Statemicroelectronics International Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Huang was therefore also deemed to be interested in the
128,656,454 Shares, 13,965,149 Shares and 15,957,463 Shares
interested by Green Flourish Limited, Infortune International Limited
and Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. respectively as at
the Latest Practicable Date.
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3. RZZE-—NFT+ZA=+—H  BERLENR223,418KK G T
Bz BN AIERAE1,870,925 BRAR 1D RO RE AR ME R E A 85 - BISE A&
IR Cykorp Limited B9 2 0% » E It - BESLEWARVER Cykorp
Limited$34 #)856,996 I Ak (7 A A % -

4. RZZE—NFTZA=+T—H ' BAFHAR 1,358,083 K0+
B - AR T REE4,982,382 I AR 1D BB AR M R G RS o

5. REZ-AFTA=1—8  EXHRELENABIE6,544,129%A%
DR Bk h A A

B EXPIEEEN R-E—NF+-_A=+—H HEEF
K/ FARBRSITRA BRAREE 5 RS GPIF352 14
AFHNARRBLMACELBRBERETRIMEARRLE
B R P A R R ERRBOEE (E& BB S LB RIS
XVED) Bty - MR REE TR A EAIESIOAE -

3. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen was
interested in 223,418 Shares and was interest in share options to
subscribe for 1,870,925 Shares. Mr. Kwan also held 100% interest
in Cykorp Limited. Mr. Kwan is therefore deemed to be interested in
the 856,996 Shares in which Cykorp Limited had interests.

4. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Shuai Hongyu was interested in
1,358,083 Shares and was interested in share options to subscribe
for 4,982,382 Shares.

5. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun was
interested in share options to subscribe for 6,544,129 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and/or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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7 M EE GDIF 336 IR TN AR BB M AL AR B

7 KRR D R R SR BN T ¢

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the Directors
of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders/other persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as

BRR#EEB

Name of shareholder

follows:

B fEEtE

Capacity/nature of interest

EHEHERERO
Number and
class of securities™

FEREA
Bl
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Statemicroelectronics
International Co., Ltd.

Statemicroelectronics
International Co., Ltd.
MEERED

Mr. Zhu Changhua®

Junjie International Co., Ltd.

Junjie International Co., Ltd.

BEEE®

Mr. Gong Jun®

B (BB IREBRAR

Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited

B (B REFRARW

Xunxin (Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd.®

BEREKNEHEEXERE
E2BRHERAR

China Integrated Circuit Industry
Investment Fund Co., Ltd.®

BEmlB A

Beneficial owner

REIEE RS

Interest in controlled corporation
BmBEAA

Beneficial owner

REEEE R

Interest in controlled corporation
EmEA A

Beneficial owner

IR EEB N

Interest in a controlled corporation

REEXE R

Interest in a controlled corporation

»~——@\ FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 EISKIZMRHIRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

15,957,463R% %17 (L)

15,957,463 Shares (L)

22,013,01488 815 (L)
22,013,014 Shares (L)
19,140,656 f%A% 15 (L)
19,140,656 Shares (L)
19,362,077 XX (L)
19,362,077 Shares (L)
29,999,000 & #& 1% (L)
29,999,000 Shares (L)
29,999,000 B &% (L)
29,999,000 Shares (L)
29,999,000 %15 (L)

29,999,000 Shares (L)

5.01%

6.92%

6.01%

6.08%

9.43%

9.43%

9.43%
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[LFBRREOA/EFR -

MEERER -_T-NF+-_A=+—BHEARET73,807KK
BB ASIE © W S EE A I B Capital Tower Profits Limited &
Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. #H 100% % 50% 9
e At MEFELER-_ZE-NFT_A=+—HHERAR
Capital Tower Profits Limited }&z Statemicroelectronics International
Co., Ltd. A B H#)5,981,744 1A% 17 [ 15,957,463 I A% (7 o 5 1

%5 o

BRAENRZZE-NFT_RA=+—ABATRE221,421 RIEH
HIEEASAE o =18 54 I unjie International Limited$% 75 100% H)4E
e At BERAERZT-NAF+ZA=+—BHEENunjie
International Limited$3 45 #919,140,656 i 1% 15 R G #E25 -

BESRAMN ARENERELEREESROBRAFFABD
(EB)REARATINI100%EZ - &5 (L8)REFRA TN
BHEN (BB REGRAFMNI00%ERE - Bt - R=ZT—hF
FTZA=+—H BERENEREEREESRHERATRED
(B REBERAFSEWRANEN (BH) REARARNMEA
#)29,999,000 A% A& 17 F HE A s ©

BEXAEBEEN R_F-NF+-A=1—8  BiELH
ATREREES R ROIFEIB6RTTFHRRRAELMA
WALE RN AR BRI KRR h BB R TOAR o

Notes:

The letter “L" denotes a long position.

Mr. Zhu Changhua held share options to subscribe for 73,807
Shares as at 31 December 2019. Mr. Zhu Changhua also held a
100% interest in Capital Tower Profits Limited and a 50% interest
in Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhu Changhua
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 5,981,744 Shares
and 15,957,463 Shares held by Capital Tower Profits Limited and
Statemicroelectronics International Co., Ltd. respectively as at 31
December 2019.

Mr. Gong Jun held share options to subscribe for 221,421 Shares as
at 31 December 2019. Mr. Gong Jun also held a 100% interest in
Junjie International Limited. Mr. Gong Jun was therefore deemed to
be interested in the 19,140,656 Shares held by Junjie International
Limited as at 31 December 2019.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, China Integrated Circuit
Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. held a 100% interest in Xunxin
(Shanghai) Investment Co., Ltd. which in turn held a 100% interest
in Xinxin (Hongkong) Capital Co., Limited. Each of China Integrated
Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd. and Xinxin (Shanghai)
Investment Co., Ltd. is therefore deemed to be interested in the
29,999,000 Shares held by Xinxin (HongKong) Capital Co., Limited
as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no other

parties were recorded in the register of the Company required

to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are related party transactions set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements that constitute
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are required to be
disclosed in this report:

Connected Transaction

Acquisition of Equity Interest in Shenzhen Giga Design

On 21 May 2019, SMIT Shenzhen (as the purchaser), Ms.
Li Xue (as the seller) (the “Seller”), Shenzhen Giga Design
Automation Co., Ltd ("Shenzhen Giga Design”) and
Shenzhen Hongtai Hongxin Share Investment Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership) (the “HTHX Fund”) entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen
agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell approximately
0.99% equity interest of the target company at the
consideration of RMB10 million (the “Acquisition”).

Shenzhen Giga Design is the product of a co-operation
investment project between the China IC Fund and the
Shenzhen Guiding Fund to engage in the development of EDA
design software. In recognition of the Group’s technological
capabilities in the IC design sector and its strategy to develop
EDA tools, the Group was invited to participate in the
investment project through the Acquisition. The Acquisition
allows the Group to be in touch with the latest EDA design
software projects which will in turn enhance the Group's
capabilities in developing the full process EDA system.
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The target company is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
HTHX Fund. The HTHX Fund is controlled by its general partner,
Hongxin VC (Shenzhen) Enterprise (Limited Partnership), which
is in turn controlled by its own general partner, Shenzhen
Hongtai Fund Investment Management Co., Ltd. (“Hongtai
Investment”). Mr. Huang Xueliang (an executive Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Zeng Zhijie
(a former non-executive Director of the Company) respectively
holds a 30% and 40% interest in Hongtai Investment.
Accordingly, each of the HTHX Fund and the target company
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules
and the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
in the Listing Rules) in respect of the Acquisition exceeds 0.1%
but all are less than 5%, the Acquisition was subject to the
announcement and annual reporting requirements, but was
exempt from independent Shareholders’ approval requirement,
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

Tenancy Agreement with Shenzhen Digital TV and
Property Management Agreement with Shenzhen
Excellence

The Group (through Shenzhen State Micro Technology
Co., Ltd ("SMIT Shenzhen"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) had previously entered into (i) a
tenancy agreement dated 14 December 2018 (the
“0Old Guoshi Tenancy Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Digital TV National Engineering Laboratory Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhen Digital TV") for SMIT Shenzhen's leasing
of 22nd and 23rd fllors of Guoshi Building, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen (the “Old Guoshi Premises”); and
(ii) a property management services agreement dated
14 December 2018 (the “Old Guoshi Management
Agreement”) with Shenzhen Excellence Property
Management Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Excellence”) in
relation to the Old Guoshi Premises. The Group (through
SMIT Shenzhen) had also previously entered into a
tenancy agreement dated 26 March 2018 (the “SSMEC
Tenancy Agreement”) with Shenzhen State Micro
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. (“SSMEC") for SMIT
Shenzhen'’s leasing of 1-2F SSMEC Building, High-tech
Park South, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the “SSMEC
Premises”). Each of the Old Guoshi Tenancy Agreement
and the Old Guoshi Management Agreement expired
on 14 June 2019. As part of the Group's review of its
leasing arrangements in Shenzhen (including its plans
to centralize its Shenzhen office) the SSMEC Tenancy
Agreement was terminated on 31 May 2019.
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As a result of (i) the expiry of the Old Guoshi Tenancy
Agreement and the Old Guoshi Management
Agreement; and (ii) the termination of the SSMEC
Tenancy Agreement, on 14 June 2019 (A) SMIT Shenzhen
(as tenant) entered into a tenancy agreement (the “New
Tenancy Agreement”) with Shenzhen Digital TV (as
landlord) for the leasing of Part of 1st floor, 14th, 15th
and 22nd floors of Guoshi Building, Nanshan District,
Shenzhen (the “New Guoshi Premises”); and (B) SMIT
Shenzhen entered into a tripartite property management
services agreement (the “New Property Management
Agreement”) with Shenzhen Digital TV and Shenzhen
Excellence relating to the New Guoshi Premises. The
term of each of the New Tenancy Agreement and the
New Property Management Agreement is 1 year, from
15 June 2019 to 14 June 2020 (both days inclusive).

Shenzhen Digital TV is a connected person of the
Company as it is controlled as to 65.62% by Shenzhen
Qianhai Guowei Investment CFEYIRTER MR E B R
A 7)), which is in turn 100% owned by Mr. Huang
Xueliang, an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the New Tenancy
Agreement and the New Property Management
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Shenzhen Excellence is an independent third party
property management company and not connected to
the Company.

The terms of the New Tenancy Agreement and the
New Property Management Agreement, including the
applicable rent and management fees payable, were
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties with reference to (i) prevailing market rates for
similar properties (e.g. with respect to floor space and
age of the building) in the vicinity; (i) the rent guidelines
set out in the city housing tenancy management
department policy of Shenzhen; (iii) the estimated area
of the New Guoshi Premises and the total number of
employees working in the New Guoshi Premises; and
(iv) the prevailing market rates of property management
service, the total floor area of the New Guoshi Premises,
the number of employees working in the New Guoshi
Premises as well as the estimated use of utilities and
other property management services.
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During the subsistence of the New Tenancy Agreement
and the New Property Management Agreement,
the maximum aggregate rent and management fees
payable will not exceed (i) RMB13,606,227.24 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2019; and (ii)
RMB6,731,470.84 for the period from 1 January 2020
to 14 June 2020. The above caps were determined with
reference to (i) the total rent payable under the New
Tenancy Agreement; (ii) the total estimated management
fees payable under the New Property Management
Agreement; (iii) the annual cap for the Old Guoshi
Tenancy Agreement and the Old Guoshi Management
Agreement for the period from 1 January 2019 to 14
June 2019 (the “OIld Guoshi Annual Cap”); and (iv) the
Revised SSMEC Annual Cap (as defined below).

Further details of the terms of, and annual caps
applicable to, the agreements are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 14 June 2019.

As mentioned above, the annual cap for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019 is RMB13,606,227.24.
The Group paid rent and management fee in aggregate
of RMB7,093,345 during the period from 15 June 2019
to 31 December 2019 in relation to the New Guoshi
Premises.

As the highest percentage ratio in respect of the annual
caps for the New Tenancy Agreement and the New
Property Management Agreement on an aggregated
basis (when aggregated with the Original Guoshi Annual
Cap and Revised SSMEC Annual Cap) is more than
0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions contemplated
under the New Tenancy Agreement and New Property
Management Agreement were subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements, but
were exempt from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and shareholders’ approval
requirements, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(2)

Property Leasing Framework Agreement with Mr.
Huang Xueliang

In light of the Group’s business growth and development
plan, on 29 October 2019, the Group (through SMIT
Shenzhen) entered into a property leasing framework
agreement (the “Property Leasing Framework
Agreement”) with Mr. Huang Xueliang. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement SMIT Shenzhen
(or its subsidiaries) may enter into further tenancy
agreements (each for a term of one year or less) with
Shenzhen Digital TV or Shanghai Guo Wei Industrial
Development Co., Ltd. (each a company controlled by
Mr. Huang) for the leasing of certain office premises
in Guoshi Building, Nanshan District, Shenzhen (the
“Shenzhen Property”) and an office building located
at No. 2555 Xiupu Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai
(the “Shanghai Property”). The term of the Property
Leasing Framework Agreement is 3 years, from 1 January
2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

As Mr. Huang is an executive Director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, he is a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The terms of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement, including the applicable rents and
management fees payable, were determined after arm'’s
length negotiation between the parties with reference
to (i) prevailing market rates for similar properties (e.g.
with respect to floor space and age of the building) in
the vicinity and the potential change in market value; (i)
prevailing market rates of property management services
for comparable premises; and (iii) the historical amount
of rents and management fees payable under the New
Tenancy Agreement and the New Property Management
Agreement.
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During the subsistence of the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement, the maximum aggregate
rent and management fees payable will not exceed
(i) RMB23,000,000 for the financial year ending 31
December 2020; (ii) RMB22,000,000 for the financial
year ending 31 December 2021; and (iii) RMB22,000,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2022. The
above caps were determined with reference to (i) the
estimated gross floor area of the relevant premises
in the Shenzhen Property and the Shanghai Property
required for the Group's operation; (i) the rent payable
in accordance with the pricing standard under the
Property Leasing Framework Agreement; and (iii) the
total estimated management fees payable in accordance
with the pricing standard under the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement.

Further details of the terms of, and annual caps
applicable to, the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 29 October 2019.

As mentioned above, as the term of the Property Leasing
Framework Agreement commenced on 1 January
2020, no rent or management fee was paid under the
agreement for the financial year ended 31 December
2019.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are
set out in note 37 the consolidated financial statements.
None of these related party transactions constitute
a connected transaction as defined and required to
be disclosed under the Listing Rules, except for those
described in this section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, in respect of which the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.
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(3)

Old Guoshi Tenancy Agreement with Shenzhen
Digital TV and Old Guoshi Management Agreement
with Shenzhen Excellence

As mentioned above, the Group (through SMIT
Shenzhen) had previously entered into (i) the Old
Guoshi Tenancy Agreement dated 14 December 2018
with Shenzhen Digital TV; and (ii) the Old Guoshi
Management Agreement dated 14 December 2018
with Shenzhen Digital TV and Shenzhen Excellence, in
relation to the Old Guoshi Premises. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreements (i) SMIT Shenzhen would lease
the Old Guoshi Premises from Shenzhen Digital TV; and
(ii) Shenzhen Excellence would provide management
services to SMIT Shenzhen, each for a six month term
from 15 December 2018 to 14 June 2019 (both days
inclusive). As mentioned above, Shenzhen Digital TV is
a connected person of the Company, and accordingly
the transactions contemplated under the Old Guoshi
Tenancy Agreement and the Old Guoshi Management
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Old Guoshi Tenancy Agreement and the
Old Guoshi Management Agreement are set out in the
Company's announcement dated 14 December 2018.

Each of the Old Guoshi Tenancy Agreement and the
Old Guoshi Management Agreement expired on 14
June 2019. The annual caps for each of the Old Guoshi
Tenancy Agreement and the Old Guoshi Management
Agreement are, respectively, RMB3,292,228 and
RMB518,928 for the period from 15 December 2018 to
14 June 2019. During the said period, the Group paid
(i) RMB3,292,228 in rent under the Old Guoshi Tenancy
Agreement; and (i) RMB518,928 in management fees
under the Old Guoshi Management Agreement.

FEHRE ANNUALREPORT 2019 EIRIZERAMRAT SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED /@—

389



EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ort MR/

(4)

SRR AT M B E

BN BT - A E GERSMITRI) @A BB ET
YHHA-TZ-NFE=ZA-+ BNEMWESHZ &
It SMITFRIIABEMEERMYE - A= —N\FHA
—BARRE_ZT-_—F=A=1+—RH(BEFEEMA) &
H=%F - A ESER AL (RRTNITESRIERR
) IEHI465.89% AN ARIRBEAL o Bt
Bl E R THETTHRZ S L MRS+ HA
EHETHARBIFERER S - BHEERZRE TEN
FEHEUNRERAEARAREENNARERZFE
FRAN-ZE—N\FNA—HBE-_ZT—\F+_A=+
—HEIfE A ARE3,883,126.57T : (IVEE T —N4F
TZA=1+—RIEMEBRFEARAREKS,177,5027T ; (i)
HE-_Z_ZF+_A=+—HLHBFEAARE
5,177,5027C : By —_E-—F—A—HEZT=-—F
—RA=1+—HHEAARY1,294,375.57C - FIHE
BENEBEN AR BRA-—T—N\F=ZA -1/ B

MR -

EHMAEH A S —NFRA=Z+—BKIL  fEAX
EEFEHAENRINBEZEN —5 5 (BIERREE
I AZMHRE]) - ARBEBHEERREKL  (HEZ
EoEFF AT ALEVBRFERE T —F—
A—RAZ-_Z-—F=Z A=+ BHHNFE LRHE
B RBEZE-NF+_A=+—HLFHRFEN
FELIRR-_ZT—hNhF—A—RE-_T—hFRA=7
— AR B E EEREREARE2,157,292.570 ([
BIBEMEELR]) - —E—HE—A—AZ=-Z— A
FRA=T—AHHE  ~EEREARAREESHH
e RKAREBEREHAR1,209,5607T ©

4@\ FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 EISKIZMRHIRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

(4)

SSMEC Tenancy Agreement with SSMEC

As mentioned above, the Group (through SMIT
Shenzhen) had previously entered into the SSMEC
Tenancy Agreement dated 26 March 2018 with SSMEC,
pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen leased the SSMEC
Premises from SSMEC for a term of three years from
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021 (both days inclusive).
SSMEC is controlled as to approximately 65.89%
by Mr. Huang Xueliang (an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company) and is therefore
a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the SSMEC Tenancy
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The annual caps of annual rent and costs and
fees relating to air-conditioning and public utilities
payable under the SSMEC Tenancy Agreement are (i)
RMB3,883,126.5 for the period from 1 April 2018 to
31 December 2018; (ii) RMB5,177,502 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019; (iii) RMB5,177,502 for
the financial year ending 31 December 2020; and (iv)
RMB1,294,375.5 for the period from 1 January 2021
to 31 March 2021. Details of the SSMEC Tenancy
Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 March 2018.

The SSMEC Tenancy Agreement was terminated on
31 May 2019 as part of the Group's review of its
leasing arrangements in Shenzhen (including its plans
to centralize its Shenzhen office). As a result of the
termination of the SSMEC Tenancy Agreement (i) the
annual caps for the financial year ending 31 December
2020 and the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 March
2021 was cancelled; and (ii) the annual cap for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 was reduced on
a pro rata basis to RMB2,157,292.5 for the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 May 2019 (the “Revised SSMEC
Annual Cap”). During the period from 1 January
2019 to 31 May 2019, the Group paid RMB1,209,560
in aggregate rent and costs and fees relating to air-
conditioning and public utilities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
independent non-executive Directors reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed such
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this report as disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save and except for service or employment contracts entered
into with the Directors and the Company’s full time employees,
no contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed as at 31 December
2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Set out below are the percentages of sales and purchases for
the year ended 31 December 2019 attributable to the Group’s
major customers and suppliers:

Purchases

— The largest supplier 16.5%
— Five largest suppliers in aggregate 57.8%
Sales

— The largest customer 26.6%
— Five largest customers in aggregate 44.4%

FER%E ANNUAL REPORT 2019  EAHIZREBRAR SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

- =i aa i

oo

91



EEEHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ort MR/

ABE T NF+_A=T-HLFELAEERAREF
Irdeto B.V.HERZ R Z HEALREL101BEET - (EAKE
THERFELI26.6% °

MEBEEMABEAARRBABBES % EF  WEZER
BEASEMRERER Lt = 2P R A A #a -

ESETRESTGNRETA

ARREHRMNEETRIFMRENRE (ERAARERBERE
BEARARAFROITRTE - ERRRAAATEEEREH
BEEHE  NRAEREFERE_T-NF+_A=1—
BIEFRE-—BETRETANBRE °

EEENEH
BB EHRAE13 5B RARTEEFEH - BUINTE
FLEURER T NF+—ARELERERHERAT

(EZZPRR A HR5R - 600171) (R LBEFZ SR EMEICKR
NERRFRER) NBVEE -

EHRARERE

RIEARBRERFHENLHEFTRHEERA TR -

BERHER - ARRNFAGT EHRARENARTRE

BEMREANSER

R-F-NFT A=t HREELABREAMBELENEAS
ARG A M RERME38HHS

“Q FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Total sales of CAM to Irdeto B.V., being the Group’s largest
customer for the year ended 31 December 2019, which
amounted to approximately USD10.1 million, accounted for
26.6% of Group’s total sales.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the standards set out in the Model
Code as a code of conduct for the trading in securities of
the Company by all Directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company confirmed that
the Directors have complied with the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

As Directors’ information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, Our Independent
non-executive Director Mr. Jin Yufeng tendered his resignation
as independent director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (/88 %8
f& 15 B BR A F]) (SHSE: 600171), an IC designer and application
developer listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, with effect
from November 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date, the Directors confirm that the Company
has maintained during the year the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Important events occured after 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report are set out in note 38 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has formulated certain policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, including: environmental impact
assessment on various raw materials or machinery before
making any purchasing decisions in the design, research
and development phase; improvement of environmental
awareness of all employees through environmental protection
activities, training courses and promotion; and the appropriate
responsibilities, scope, policies and guidelines developed
by the Group’s top management that played a central role
in establishing clearly defined environmental management
framework and system.

In day-to-day operations, the Group has been closely
monitoring the latest developments in domestic and
international environmental legislation to ensure that its
environmental policies are consistent with domestic and
international standards while ensuring consistency with global
peers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company’s business is principally carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China, the shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The establishment and operation of the Group
are subject to the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
China and respective places of incorporation of the Company
and its subsidiaries. In addition, the Company shall comply
with the provisions of the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this report, so far as the Company is aware, the Group is not
involved in any material breach of or irregularity against the
applicable laws and regulations that have a material effect on
the Group's business and operations.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The success of the Group also relies on the support from
key stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators and shareholders.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group’s human resource management
is designed to reward and recognise excellent employees by
providing reasonable compensation and benefits. Details of
the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the paragraph
headed “Employees and Remuneration Policies” above in this
report. In addition, the Group develops appropriate training
programmes specific to different posts, duties and titles, and
provides certain opportunities and platforms to assist them in
developing their career and seek promotion within the Group.

Customers

Our CAM customers consist mainly of CA providers,
broadcasting operators, TV manufacturers and distributors. To
a lesser extent, we sell to one-off customers including various
companies and individuals, as well as direct sales to end users
through third-party internet platforms. We currently sell mPOS
devices primarily to iBoxpay and to a much lesser extent, to
other hardware-based mobile payment service providers in
the PRC. The Group aims to provide customers with quality
products and services to seek sustained growth in sales revenue
and profitability. The Group has established various ways to
enhance communication between its customers and the Group,
in an effort to provide superior quality products and services to
increase market penetration and expand various businesses.

Suppliers

The Group maintains good relationship with its suppliers, a
crucial element in the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements, which can be cost-
effective and promote business interests in the long run. Major
suppliers include raw material suppliers, system and equipment
suppliers, external consultants providing professional services,
suppliers of office supplies or goods and other business
partners providing value-added services to the Group.
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Regulators

The Company is listed in Hong Kong and is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the State Administration
of Work Safety, the General Administration of Quality
Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of China and other
relevant authorities. The Group expects to keep up-to-date
and ensure compliance with the new rules and regulations.
To enhance corporate value for shareholders is one of the
Group's corporate objectives. The Group promotes business
development to achieve sustainable earnings growth while
taking capital adequacy into account.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's business operations are affected by changes in
market conditions, the changing industry standards, industry
competition and the ever-changing customer demands. It is
essential that the Group responds in a timely manner to such
changes which may adversely affect the Group's business and
financial results. The Group also faces other financial risks in
the ordinary course of business, such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. Details of financial risk management
are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERNATIONAL SANCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
CAM sales to customers located in Russia, which accounted
for 10.6% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2019, as well as sales to customers located in the
Balkans and Ukraine, which in aggregate accounted for 9.5%
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
had no sales to Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. The percentage
of revenue contribution from relevant customers located in
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions
in the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased to 20.1%
from 21.1% during the year ended 31 December 2018, mainly
attributable to a decrease in sales from customers located in
certain jurisdictions.
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In the coming year, the Group is expected to continue its sales
to customers located in Russia, the Balkans and Ukraine and
does not expect any significant increase or decrease in the
Group's sales to customers located in those jurisdictions. The
Group also expects no sales or immaterial sales to customers
located in Belarus, Egypt and Lebanon. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group did not, and has no present
or future intention to, enter into any transactions in the
jurisdictions which are targeted with international sanctions or
with persons and entities which are listed on any international
sanctions list that the Group believes would put the Group
or its investors at risk of violating or becoming the target of
international sanctions.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xueliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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To the Shareholders of SMIT Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of SMIT Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 105 to 275, which comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of unlisted investments

Refer to Note 3.3(a), Note 4.6 and Note 21 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Unlisted investments of the Group were recognised at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition and requires
subsequent re-measurement at fair value at each period end.
The Group has applied valuation techniques to determine
the fair values of these investments that are not quoted in
active markets. These valuation techniques require significant
unobservable inputs which involve significant management
judgements and assumptions and thus involved a higher degree
of uncertainty in the valuations.

Fair values of three of the unlisted investments were determined
by using the discounted cash flow ("DCF”) approach. The fair
value of these unlisted investments amounted to USD6.4 million
as at 31 December 2019 was assessed based on independent
valuation prepared by an independent external valuer. The
related net fair value losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December 2019
in relation to these unlisted investments amounted to USD3.5
million.

Key underlying assumptions and estimates of the valuation
include revenue growth rates, discount rates, terminal growth
rates and gross profit margin used in the business plans of the
investees.

We focused on this area because the carrying values of the
unlisted investments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and significant judgements and estimates were used
in the valuation techniques. These estimations are also subject to
uncertainties.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is the valuation of
unlisted investments:

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of
independent external valuers by considering their qualification,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group.

We involved our internal valuation specialist in our discussion
with management and external valuers to understand and
assess the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
assumptions and estimates applied in DCF.

We obtained and assessed the business plans of the investees
that support the cash flow projections used in DCF through
inquiry of management and obtaining supporting documents
including agreements and contracts to corroborate our
understanding of the business growth of the investees.

We evaluated the reasonableness of the discount rates by
considering the investees’ weighted average cost of capital and
the risk profile of the investees.

We assessed the reasonableness of the revenue growth rates,
gross profit margin and terminal growth rates by comparing
these assumptions against relevant market data and historical
experience of the investees.

Based on the procedures described above, we considered the
key assumptions and estimates used in the valuation of the
Group's unlisted investments are supportable by available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Hiu Yam, Winnie.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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mEWlER
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HEZZT-NFT-A=1T—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2019 ®

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
Mozt En E
Note UsD UsD
Wzs Revenue 5,6 38,099,720 41,318,578
SHE A Cost of sales 7 (22,824,996) (27,641,807)
EF Gross profit 15,274,724 13,676,771
Hlas - F58 Other gains, net 6 19,441,664 3,967,391
HAb A Other income 6 2,422,792 1,013,346
RS Research and development expenses 7 (9,598,577) (7,799,119)
HE MDA Selling and distribution expenses 7 (4,083,511) (2,663,959)
—MRITHHAX General and administrative expenses 7 (12,132,695) (8,862,635)
SREEZREFEE Net impairment losses on financial assets 7 (19,971) (759,318)
BERF(FA) Operating profit/(loss) 11,304,426 (1,427,523)
BEWA - FEE Finance income, net 9 583,727 1,149,740
DL AEREAERD Share of net loss of investments accounted
BT EE for using the equity method 10 (266,833) —
BRETERANER,(B518) Profit/(loss) before income tax 11,621,320 (277,783)
TSR Income tax credit 12 700,991 1,593,307
£ %R Profit for the year 12,322,311 1,315,524
T EEEEER(FE) - Profit/(loss) is attributable to:
ViN/NEIET PN Owners of the Company 10,602,142 1,317,734
FEIERR R Non-controlling interests 1,720,169 (2,210)
12,322,311 1,315,524
RATHEB ANEETRET) - Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company:
FREREHN (FRRZETT) Basic earnings per share (USD per share) 13 0.033 0.004
ERkEERRN (FR3ET) Diluted earnings per share (USD per share) 13 0.033 0.004

iR a e 2 e AR B 5 — (R RE o The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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mEEHRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

@ gzE—T-nE+=A=1+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ET ST
UsD usD
FrRma Profit for theyear 12,322,311 1,315,524
Hib2MEEE : Other comprehensive loss:
BAERFEEN DA Z 1B B B Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
MEH %R Translation differences (650,686) (3,807,022)
BAEEF P B R E A Item that has been reclassified to profit or loss
PMRIE L EHT B A R R Exchange reserve released upon deemed
(ERREL disposal of subsidiaries (3,197) —
FREMEEEE  MBRHE Other comprehensive loss for the year,
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, netoftex .. ... \6588)  (3807022)
FRZEWE (EE) 8% Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 11,668,428 (2,491,498)
TR IERE Attributable to:
VIN/NEIETZ =N Owners of the Company 9,942,125 (2,487,783)
IR M Non-controlling interests 1,726,303 (3,715)
11,668,428 (2,491,498)
AR S 2 R 2R e EE B P B R — OF BERE o The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A B AR R &R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

W=E—fE+F=A=+—0 Asat31 December 2019 &

®+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
s ETT E
Note UsD usD
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
W - BB RERE Property, plant and equipment 15 3,152,061 1,735,894
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,041,791 —
HitmpEE Other intangible assets 17 396,294 5,053,319
EES Goodwill 25 6,153,809 22,151,954
HAb FEMGRIE R IR RIE Other receivables and prepayments 20 1,174,419 41,750
FRREREAARNIRE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 10 43,519,749 —
BiBEEEAFEARN Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 21 14,596,569 18,246,807
REPTISTHE E Deferred income tax assets 24 3,218,233 2,770,689
73,252,925 50,000,413
REBEE Current assets
" Inventories 18 13,525,373 9,981,613
B 5 I EoAth FE U RIE K Trade and other receivables
SEANE/OE and prepayments 20 14,116,321 20,836,355
BTHENRNER Loan to an associate 37(f) 5,035,836 —
AT El S Income tax recoverable 116,543 138,006
ZRREIRITER Restricted bank deposit 22 519,266 5,000,000
Be MRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 70,902,673 54,962,324
104,216,012 90,918,298
BEE Total assets 177,468,937 140,918,711
AR e B R S 2 e BB MY B 5 — OF B o The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A B AR &R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4@/ R-ZZE—NE+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2019

Rt+=—HA=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BaE ET E
Note UsD usD
ERkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
= Equity
%N Share capital 26 6,364 6,326
B0 E Share premium 26 101,505,767 100,982,947
AHEE Merger reserve 27 (48,810,141) (48,810,141)
VARR (5 B B R S R R Share-based payment reserve 27 16,105,925 16,955,752
SETREE Statutory reserve 27 4,913,464 4,913,464
REBBA Retained earnings 48,468,552 37,866,410
B Capital reserve 27 1,212,543 1,212,543
bE A A Exchange reserve (1,768,364) (1,108,347)
NAEHEE ANEREARRFE  Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company 121,634,110 112,018,954
FEIERR R A Non-controlling interests 1,967,240 240,480
HRER Total equity 123,601,350 112,259,434
afE Liabilities
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEARE Lease liabilities 16 658,318 —
H At R FRIE Other payable 29 47,612 1,507,404
IRIEWA Deferred income 30 7.560,012 6,568,365
BEFTSH A E Deferred income tax liabilities 24 — 692,730
8,265,942 8,768,499

AR e B R S 2 e BB MY B 5 — OF B o The above consolidated statement of financial position should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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A B AR R &R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

W=E—fE+F=A=+—0 Asat31 December 2019 &

B+=B=+-—8H
As at 31 December
—B-hE —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
i ETT e
Note UsbD UsD
REEE Current liabilities
B S ENFIARENER Trade and bills payables 28 9,220,640 4,089,422
FEETE R R E M R Accruals and other payables 29 8,595,728 5,048,584
aHaE Contract liabilities 29 433,121 740,720
RITIE Bank borrowings 31 — 5,335,126
RIEWA Deferred income 30 26,730,507 4,669,282
HEaE Lease liabilities 16 449,178 —
FERTERISHL Income tax payable 172,471 7,644
e e CHEUE 19,890,778
#a®  Towllibiites 53,867,587 28,659,277
wERRAE Total equity and liabilities 177,468,937 140,918,711
AR S BRI S 2 e BB MY B 5 — OF B o The above consolidated statement of financial position should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
FI105E 275 BEMEEMBMECR_E_EF=A=1++tH The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 275
KESSWETRBES - were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020
and were signed on its behalf.
FE BE
Huang Xueliang Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
Chairman Director
EHER RESCER
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mEREESHR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

® gE-—T-nE+-A=t+—HIEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

RSB
Attributable to owners of the Company
Pyl
R
hE BhEE  s0iEE  AREE  iRBR  A4EE  BRRE  RERA aif  HERER s
Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger ~ payment  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
captal  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
#r 9 £r £r £ EA #r #r #r #r £
Usp Usp UsD usD usD usb Usp Usp Usp Usp Usp
RF-\§-A-BHEH Balance at 1 January 2018 6,140 98,362,681 (48810,141) 19401,056 4913464 1212543 2,697,170 36548676 114,331,589 — 114,331,589
HZ-F-NET-A=T-BLEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2018
2EkE /(B8 Comprehensive income/(loss)
EREH Proit forthe year = - - - - - — 13TBE 13074 Q20 131554
EizE Translation differences = - - - - - (3805517) - (3805517) (1,505 (3,807,022)
ER2E (BE)/ WHEE Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year . - - - - —  (3805517) 1317734 (2,487,783) (3,715)  (2,491,49)
REFABRS Transactions with owners
R AR Share-based compensation - - - 187 - - - - 187 - 187
fERRE Exercise of share options 186 342279 —  (2445491) - - - — 97749 — 97749
WEHBAA Acaquisition of subsidiaries N - - - - - - - — 44195 244195
ZE-N\ERARNZE-CEREERE Dividend relating to 2017 paid in June 2018 - (8053 - - - - - - (8053 - (8053
HERANRS  ERNERED Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity 186 2,620,266 = (2,445304) - - - - 175,148 244,195 4193483
REB-NEHZA=t-ANER Balance at 31 December 2018 6,326 100982947 (48810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212543  (1,108347) 37866410 112,018,954 240480 112,259,434
i Representing:
EXR Capital 6326 - - - - - - - 6326 — 6,326
GE Reserves — 100,577,533 (48810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212543  (1,108347) 37866410 111,607,214 — 111,607,214
RiER Non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - — 0480 240480
5 \FRERGES 2018 final dividend proposed — 45414 - - - - - — 45414 — 45414
6326 100982947 (48810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212543  (1,108347) 372866410 112,018954 240480 112,259,434
ARG s B E) 7 E B BE MY P BT — OF B o The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GERZEHXR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZZT-NFT-A=1T—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2019 ®

ARRREARE

Attributable to owners of the Company

WR

REBH
A RGEE  AHEE  ARRE  tERE  EARE  ENRE  REER Bit  FERER L4

Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  payment  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity

£ £ #r E £ £ £ £ £ £ £
usp usp usp usp usp usp usp usp usp usp usp

RIE-NE-A-ENER Balance at 1 January 2019 6326 100982947 (48,810,141) 16955752 4913464 1212543  (1,108,347) 37,866410 112018954 240,480 112,259,434

HZZE-AET-A=T-RLEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

2k /(B8 Comprehensive income/(loss)
EREF Profit for the year - - - - - - — 10,602,142 10,602,142 1,720,169 12322311
EXzE Translation differences = = = = = —  (656,820) —  (656,820) 6,134 (650,686)
WEENENBLDERRNELREE  Exchange resenve released upon deemed

disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - (3,197) - (3,197) - (3,197)
ERRTE (BR)/ WElE Total comprehensive (loss)/income

for the year - - - - - —  (660,017) 10,602,142 9,942,125 1,726,303 11,668,428
AREANRS Transactions with owners
DR BERMEH Share-based compensation = = = 39,742 = = = = 39,742 = 39,742
fiEtERE Exercise of share options 38 92834 —  (349827) = = = = 78,445 = 78,445
BRI ERBAT Deemed disposal of subsidiaries = = - (3974) = = = - (3970 - (3974
HERERNLS Transactions with non-controling interests = = = = = = = = = 457 457
ZE-NERARAZE\ERERS Dividend relating to 2018 paid in May 2019 — (405,414) - - — — - —  (405414) = (405,414)
HEFANRS  ERRRRER Transactions with owners, recognised

directly in equity 38 522,820 —  (849,827) - - - — (326,969 457 (326,512)
RoE-AE+-R=t-BHES Balance at 31 December 2019 6,364 101,505,767 (48,810,141) 16105925 4913464 1,212,543  (1,768,364) 48,468,552 121,634,110 1,967,240 123,601,350
) Representing:
EX Capital 6,364 - - - - - - — 6,364 - 6,364
1 Reserves — 101,095,628 (48,810,141) 16105925 4913464 1212543  (1,768,364) 48,468,552 121,217,607 — 121,217,607
iR Non-controlling interests = = = = = = = = — 1967240 1,967,240
“E-NEREASES 2019 final dividend proposed - 40,139 = = = = = - 40,139 - 40,139

6,364 101505767 (48810,141) 1605925 4913464 1212543  (1,768,364) 48,468,552 121,634,110 1,967,240 123,601,350

bt A v B B K R BRI R — DI BIE

o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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BERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

@ gzE—T-nE+=A=1+—HILEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

—E2-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
i ET ES
Note UsD UsD
RETHHMBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEASHES Cash generated from operations 33(a) 32,110,566 442,945
BEAFLE Interest paid (134,315) (4,276)
EAFTER Income tax paid (46,259) (799,093)
mESEEFRS (P ) IREF5E  Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 31,929,992 (360,424)
RETHFABRERE Cash flows from investing activities
IR g A B3R Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries,
HBRATISIRSE net of cash acquired 36 — (18,547,386)
BELENBARIESREFE  Net cash outflow from deemed
disposal of subsidiaries 33(d) (3,982,778) —
BEWE  BERERBE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (3,093,304) (415,325)
HEME - BE MEREFTSFIE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 33(b) 3,277 320
W hE (S AiEm A ARRR Payment for acquisition of an investment
BERRER accounted for using the equity method 10 (810,239) —
SHRRI TR ROR A Decrease in short-term bank deposits — 3,523,375
ZREIRITEZRD (1) Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposit 4,488,391 (5,000,000)
BEUF B A Interest income received 730,034 1,129,013
BEHMELEE Purchases of other intangible assets (199,940) (280,793)
BEABERERATEAERN Purchase of financial assets at fair
TREE value through profit or loss (1,466,964) (11,966,085)
BT ENTMNER Loan to an associate (5,035,836) —
WEEEMAR S FE Net cash used in investing activities (9,367,359) (31,556,881)
METHMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
SRR Payment for dividend (405,414) (802,533)
RITERPTEFRIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,200,000 5,335,126
EERITIERK Repayment of bank borrowings (6,540,668) —
1T RE AR Exercise of share options 78,445 977,494
HENFNEED Principal elements of lease payments 33(0) (294,597) —
BEERS) (FTA),/ FT5IR4&$% Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities (5,962,234) 5,510,087
ReREELZEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
i, CRd) B8 cash equivalents 16,600,399 (26,407,218)
FUReEREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 54,962,324 84,100,969
Re kR EEYMERESH) Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
L and cash equivalents (660,050) (2,731,427)
FERAESRBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 23 70,902,673 54,962,324
RS IR SR 2 R E EREMI T T — OB - The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—REH

BB AR AR ([ARE ) REKEB QR (G A
SE) TENFUTES

- FEREEGEREER ((RER]) REHHE
# ([mPOS ) # - EAI S RIRBEF AR D
BEREREEELERBB NS

- FEMHERERERF LT - &
- R M AEEFEFTEEE ([EDA]) EM °

KRR ARHASHSHMKIEFMHERAR - £
RS BES WL = 2 AMaples Corporate Services
Limited * fZ/APO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands * MERF#E AR
FHARNE ([P B ) B9t M SR A P BRI B LU (22
ATEER 1801 SR B AE 2248 -

RARREBEBARIMBERAR IR ET °

BIEREMA - SREMBIMERIAET (X)) 25 °

GENERAL INFORMATION

SMIT Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) principally engage in
the following activities:

- development and sales of conditional access
modules (“CAM") and mobile point-of-sales
("mPOS") devices that enable secure distribution
and delivery of digital content to television and
secure mobile payment transactions, respectively;

- development and sales of rapid verification system
and software; and

- research and development of electronic design
automation (“EDA") products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
and domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office in the Cayman Islands is Maples
Corporate Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
registered office in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") is 22F, Guoshi Building, No. 1801, Sha He Xi
Avenue, Nanshan, PRC.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars (“USD"), unless otherwise stated.

N
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mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)1/

2

EXETTHRME

RAEZEFRAMBREAEANEEZS BRI
T BRIFRZEER  BUZEFBRRNEINABEFE—
BEERURA -

2.1 REEE

REBENZRE P BRRDRET B BERE LR
(IBERUBHEEL]) REB ARG (F622
B)BREREMMBE - 6 MIBRRTIZE LKA
ERE - BAEEBERATEARNEREE
(BAHEE)BFT -

EREAVBRELENRRG AU BREFRE
RETEZRSA  THEEEEERRALS
EetERRNBETELHE - SRERSEEH
B RENEE RV BERRME
BEANRRRMAETOEARERH T4 -

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
has been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 EASHERHEE®)

2.1 wBREE(E)

(a)

FEBMERNH T RBETERR 2R

AEBER=E—NEF—A—BRBRNEE
4545 AR 2 PR A T T3] RAG 5 TR B R
G

ARG EAE 195 (BF]A)
HKAS 19 (Amendment)
BAGEERE 285 (1BFT )
HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BB R ELERIFE I (IBETA)
HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

BEMGRER
HKFRS 16

7E (BRMBERERER8E) -
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

FEUEEE (BFTA)

Annual Improvements Project (Amendment)

BII5E165%

RAEEM B REENF16RRAKEEA
BEHETHR - NEBEREPRNR

Al BER-_F-NF-A-RERERE
RFERNREARE - F2HME2.2008
B o RIMEMTR] MBI R KR Y

EHABES AR THEEETRNERY
@,

REE235

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and new
interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
new and amended standards and new
interpretation for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2019:

STENEET ~ MERskas A
Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
REFE N R REERENR AR
Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
BB mENTENRIER T
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
HE
Leases
THEE PRSTHHI R I
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FEYHE (ZT-—RAFE-_FT—LFEH)
Annual Improvements 2015 — 2017 Cycle

The Group had to change its accounting
policies as a result of adoption of HKFRS
16. The Group elected to adopt the new
rules retrospectively but recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying the
new standard on 1 January 2019. This is
disclosed in Note 2.2. The adoption of other
amended standards and new interpretation
did not have any material impact on the
current period or any prior periods.

N
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mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)1/

2 EASHEEHRE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 REEHE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) AEEEKRFEAOTIRSEBITENRBR (b) New and amended standards and
MR conceptual framework not yet adopted

by the Group
AT REBEBERAR -T-HF—HB—H
B 00 B0 B R 6 A SR R T S A B RT 2R Bl K

The following new and amended standards

BESHER - REEWRRATERM UL FER & and conceptual framework have been issued
2 o but are not effective for the financial year

beginning on 1 January 2019 and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

RT5 B8R
ZERBH

B FEEXN
Effective for
accounting
year beginning
on or after

AERGHERE 1R R
EREGFTERESHR (BF]A)
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendment)

FERNEE —E2-FF—HA—H

Definition of Material 1 January 2020

BBV BIMEEEIFR (BFTA) EBHTE —T-TF—HA—H
HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
BB REERE 105 REBG AL REERHEBE QAN EE R M FEE

F285% (IBETA)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BEG RN - BAMHRELEA
RTRRBBUBRELRFIR (BFTA)
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

(Amendments)
BB FREERE TR
HKFRS 17

- N\FYBREMSAER
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEHEIFE

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

HhgsE

Hedge Accounting

REBEH

Insurance Contracts

ISR B E B ER

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

To be determined

1 January 2020

—T-TF—HA—H
1 January 2021
—E-EF—F—H

1 January 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

BERESTBERBE @)

2.1

2.2

ML ELAE (1)

(b) AEEERRANHTREETENRBR
e (&)

A EINR] RRERTERI RS SR A%
REB RN LTI TSR] R RS
1ER - AEE D FIAFHA R DT g
ERTERRMSEREENERTE - AH
BT eHAEENGAMBTRRERERY

@,
FHHENE

AHERBRABT BB REENF 165 [H
B HAKEREMBERROTE -

A EFfEE2 1@ - AREE T NF—A
—REENRABEYBRELENE 1658 - A B
BRRZERHBEER - RABY —T—-N\FHE
HIRE BT « Filt - THERNEENEH
DRELABR _FE-NE—A—-BNBROEAR
BARRRPRER o W EFTBRRN M E2.27 K -

KRB B BREERE 16588 - AEEE
RIRBEE B ST EAFE 7R EE IR ES
[(ReHENWHERAHEERRG - ZFAERHE
M ENRENREE - WEAABEARZ
ZT-NF—A—HOBEERFFETHER - =
E-NF—A—HERNEERENEEANE
T ERBRAER3.9% -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
conceptual framework not yet adopted
by the Group (Continued)

The Group will adopt the new and amended
standards and conceptual framework when
they become effective. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the
related impact of adopting the above new
and amended standards and conceptual
framework, none of which is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 “Leases” on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1(a) above, the Group has
adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 January
2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2018 reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019. The new accounting
policies are disclosed in Note 2.27.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as “operating leases”
under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1
January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 3.9%.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time,
the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics;

° relying on previous assessments
on whether leases are onerous as
an alternative to performing an
impairment review — there were no
onerous contracts as at 1 January
2019;

o accounting for operating leases with
a remaining lease term of less than
12 months as at 1 January 2019 as
short-term leases;

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset
at the date of initial application; and

o using hindsight in determining
the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at
the date of initial application. Instead, for
contracts entered into before the transition
date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation
4 "Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HESBNEE (b) Measurement of lease liabilities
e
usbD
—\F+=ZA=+—H Operating lease commitments disclosed as at
WENEETHE AR 31 December 2018 2,587,721
T&‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁ/\é//\ﬁgﬁﬁ =REE Impact of discounting using the lessee’s incremental
EERBRFEETITRANTE borrowing rate of at the date of initial application (2,205)
RERIERARAINEEEE Short-term leases recognised on a straight-line
basis as expense (792,158)
IR PRIEEETT T REEEEMAE  Adjustments as a result of a different treatment
of termination options (1,726,353)
RZE-NF-B—AHANHEERRE  Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 67,005
Bl Representing:
mEE D Current portion 41,836
FEREE D Non-current portion 25,169
67,005
FERAEEENE () Measurement of right-of-use assets
FREEEZSENEESENEETE & Right-of-use assets were measured at the

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—BEFEHBNK
ARERNEERBENEMBENRTEREE
FRERIEH T

amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018.

A% ANNUALREPORT 2019 EIHUZEAMRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED  (9——————

119



mEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)1/

2 EASHEERHME®W)

2.2 EEBERNEE (8)

(d R-EB-AF-A-REFEUBRRRRE
AHEE

EHBEEDYE TR =T NE—B—
A ARTISHARAR -

. FAEEE — 1£167,005% T
. FEAE — #167,005F T
23 EHREZRESTEEMNEL

(a) KHELR

MEARAARERGEHENMERR
EAEEFER2EZERNEDMESH
BAEOWH - AR EREYZRERR
hEEZEFOHE - AAREZEFZER
MEBARAEREEEAREE REAH
AR WEENERLESAREEAHA
BE o

1‘.N|]} °

i

° M

WS AN B AR EBHEITHEBS A
BR (MisE2.4) -

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Adjustments recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019

The changes in accounting policies affected
the following items in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 January

2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by
UsD67,005

o lease liabilities — increase by
USD67,005

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations
by the Group (Note 2.4).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position, respectively.

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

(c) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group's share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.10.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified or permitted
by applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the
Company who make strategic decisions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements is presented in USD,
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
at foreign currencies at year-end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the fair value gains or losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

° income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
is not a reasonable approximation
of cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation

differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement, as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and
partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2 EXSHEEHRE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 WFE - BMEKKE 2.8 Property, plant and equipment

ME - BB RREBRELRARRFITE MR
WEREYIM - ELRABFEKEERR BREG
i e

TEINANEEMNKREENERSBILEE (E
) o ARSI BB EENEAEDMREERE
BIREBIUHER - B EMEERREONEE
ERRE BN S W R0

ME - BEMRBTERAERETHE - UK
S AERFEHRNDBRA - 0T

HEMEEE

Leasehold improvements

RE - KEREZE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
N=

/1$

Motor vehicles

Property, plant and equipment is stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

THEIRSF (AR R A%E)
Shorter of lease term or 5 years
3ESF

3 -5 years

5ZE 104

5—-10 years
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying
amounts of the relevant assets, and are recognised
within ‘general and administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of computer
software and licence use rights. They are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss, if any. Amortisation
is computed using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 15
years.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities
are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable assets controlled by the Group
are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete
the product so that it will be available
for use;

(i)~ management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

(iii)  there is an ability to use or sell the
product;

(iv) it can be demonstrated how the
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)

(c)

Research and development costs
(Continued)

(v)  adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the
product during its development can
be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised
as part of the product include the product
development employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as
an expense as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised
cost.
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(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, which
is the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(¢) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are two measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI
are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains, net
in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses
to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in other gains, net
in the consolidated income statement as
applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) and Note 20
for further details.

For notes and other receivables, the
impairment provision is determined based
on the 12-month expected credit losses.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Cost of finished goods
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade receivables

2.15

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment. See Note 2.11 for
further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(b) for
a description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or
less.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Restricted bank deposits

Restricted bank deposits represent the amounts of
cash pledged as collateral to banks for the bank
facilities.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 AR 2.19 Borrowings
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another
party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the
equity instruments issued.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.
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2 EXSHEEHRE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 BN IRIEFR1SHE 2.21 Current and deferred income tax
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The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting date in the countries where the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(b)

(9]

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives

Companies within the Group may be
entitled to claim special tax deductions
for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax
credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised
for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees
payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post
retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administratered funds managed by the
provincial governments.

148



e MR R MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

2 EXSHEEHRE®) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 EEEAN (&) 2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

() TEALEE

AEBRE — @ RA R R BERE &
(BEHETHAB)WOARK - SELAERR
EMFAX - EHRANEEIBEEG5IE
HEE R - ARERIER A

2.23 LR BERAARK

REERELENESEE - URHDBEFENE
BETEl - Bt BRKECRERENRY - 1EA
AEEES TH (BIRERSREIRGD B ([
RHIFRDEN])) RE - BEZETEINERHE
HHIEE32 -

(@) SERSEOBRENHRERYROEL
5

1B B AR BVER B I i Ko R I A fp BAL M
RERBHO QI FERRRERRNFEX -
SEE R S FRTISE AR KB R M IR
Petn BN FEMEE -

o BREMMBRRMGE (WAAFN
BfE)

(c) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.

2.23 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (share options
and restricted share units (“RSUs")) of the Group.
Information relating to these schemes is set out in
Note 32.

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share units
is recognised as an employee benefits
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options and restricted share units
granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, the
Company's share price);
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme (Continued)

o excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any
non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to
save or holding shares for a specified
period of time).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options and restricted share units
that are expected to vest based on the
non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of share
options and restricted share units that
are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period over
which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide
services in advance of the grant date
and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant
date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share option scheme and
restricted share unit scheme (Continued)

Where there is modification of terms and
conditions which increase the fair value of
the equity instruments granted, the Group
includes the incremental fair value granted in
the measurement of the amount recognised
for the services received over the remainder
of the vesting period. The incremental fair
value is the difference between the fair
value of the modified equity instrument and
that of the original equity instrument, both
estimated as at the date of the modification.
An expense based on the incremental fair
value is recognised over the period from
the modification date to the date when
the modified equity instruments vest in
addition to any amount in respect of the
original instrument, which should continue
to be recognised over the remainder of the
original vesting period.

When the share options are exercised and
the restricted share units are granted, the
respective entities granting such share
options and restricted share units issue new
shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

poe it
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions
among group entities

The grant by the Company of award shares
and options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Provisions (Continued)

2.25

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of management’s estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, net of
rebates and discounts. Rebates and discounts
granted to customers are classified as a reduction
of revenue. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described
below.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customer, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria
for acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that
the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL
is included in the net fair value gains/(losses)
on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
finance income, net.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Interest income (Continued)

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

N

FEE ANNUAL REPORT 2019  EIMIZRRAMRZAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED JC S e

158



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)1/

2

BERETBERBE (@)

2.27 HHE

WA R 28508 - ARER R EAREARE
ABFEBRRTE - AREER TSR -
MRE O SRRKT22 -

BE - BEREEOAED AR E R REET
REE (ERAEA) HEDBRAKLEMEE - 1R
B THE I RFIR (R B A LR TROERR
By MAEHIRIR E AR B AR -

BT NF—A—BE HERISEREE
E- YEHEEERHEAREERZ AERER
BfE-

BHAEEHERFEERS - AEEREENA
HBUMERBENNRESEKEEEERIEE
By o A - MAKEESABEAHEEFSWEM
5 HEEEBETRIHEERFEERD - Rk
ZEHEARFERE-—MRERD -

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has
changed its accounting policies for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The policies are described
below and the impact of the change is set out in
Note 2.2.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership were not transferred to
the Group as lessee were classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has
elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27

2.28

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments
to hedge the risk exposures.

Financial risk management is carried out by the
finance department under the supervision of the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company.
The CEO provides principles for overall risk
management.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the
PRC and Europe, and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB")
and Euro ("EUR"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial
transactions or recognised financial
assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency.

As at 31 December 2019, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax
profit and total equity would have
been approximately USD 1,233,000
(2018: USD1,787,000) higher/
lower, respectively, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of USD
denominated receivables and cash
and cash equivalents in entities whose
functional currency is RMB.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, if USD
had strengthened/weakened by
5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax
profit and total equity would have
been approximately USD38,000
(2018: USD87,000) lower/higher,
respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Euro denominated
receivables, cash and cash equivalents
and payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no
significant assets and liabilities which
were interest-bearing at floating rates,
except for the deposits in banks,
details of which have been disclosed
in Notes 22 and 23. Bank borrowings
are interest bearing at fixed interest
rates and the resulting interest rate
risk is considered to be insignificant.

N
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Price risk

The Group's exposure to equity
securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group
and classified in the consolidated
statement of financial position as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 21).

The Group manages its price risk by
regularly monitoring equity portfolio
to address any portfolio issues
promptly.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on a reasonable
expectation of possible valuation
volatility over the next 12 months
(Note 3.3).

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The
credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash
on hand) and deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables. Management has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

162



e MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

BIEEREE (&)

3.1

B EEEE (8)

(b)

ERRR (&)

(i)

B EE

RZE-NFRZZE-—NF+ZA=
+—H RREERREZFEY (T
EFEBRS) URIBITEFERME - #®
EHFEALTRITHEELZ S o K&
BEWARAZZITOHBAEEETE
HETMELEENGE  BEEEY
TIEHAAR AT

R-Z—-NAE+-_F=+—8 &&
E=RBRPEREBEE S FEWRIEL
16% (ZZF—/)\F :57%) - N&EH
BHZERFPEYRPAERE - 2
REAEZER P BT R 8 R B
BEMEYGRIEMEEZSER LT - &
BEREASERKZEEFPMNAR
Uiz [] i Uy R TE 45 A N & I M B K {5
[EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

Risk management

As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, for cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand) and deposits
with banks, they are all deposited or
traded with listed banks. The Group
has not incurred significant loss from
non-performance by these parties in
the past and management does not
expect so in the future.

As at 31 December 2019, top 3
customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 16% (2018: 57%)
of the trade receivables of the Group.
The Group has set up long-term
cooperative relationship with these
customers. In view of the history of
business dealings with the customers
and the sound collection history
of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is
no material credit risk inherent in
the Group's outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers.

N
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(@)

(i)

Risk management (Continued)

Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with
the debtors. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the
recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

° trade receivables; and

. deposits, notes and other
receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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3 HXERER® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 BiigEREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) AR (E) (b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZBEERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
BEZEYE Trade receivables

AEBERATEMBEREERF IR
AR B EMEREBR &5
EHTE B SRS IRR A2 BN
HIE R -

R EEREREBRX - BHRUGA
ERBEEFPERAEMNE BEERAR
P M B EIR B IR

KAEF RS B TR /AR

1P B A B IS 2 5 B S U e
JE U FRIE B B K &R R RO E MR E
FEHEITIEBIRTAS - LARHRRE R -
N-ZE-AE+-_A=+—8 " 3%t&
FSEBFTENERREBBRELS
#741,921,520F L (ZF—/)\F :
1,964,469 7T) °

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on the nature of
customer accounts, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis

Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2019,
the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed
receivables was USD1,921,520 (2018:
USD1,964,469).
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3 BIREREE@

3.1 BBEEEE(E)

(b) FEARRE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) ZBEERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
BEZENNE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
I B F R E TE RS AR (48) Measurement of expected credit loss
on individual basis (Continued)
TREIRZZE-NEFERZZ-N\F The following table presents the
TZA=T—BEREmAESESR R balances of gross carrying amount and
FAERIFT (4 89 B 5 FEUGRIE oY 5 18 the loss allowance in respect of the
& - individually assessed trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:
ot ki il ot ki
04 1230% 31260k 61290% 912180k 180K E &t
1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90days  91-180days  Over 180 days
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
£ £ £ £ £ £ £
) UsD Usp Usp UsD Usp Usp
“B-hE 31 December 2019

+ZA=+-8
RESE Gross carrying amount -

- BRRWEE trade receivables = = = 8,057 23,99 1,889,473 1,921,520
BHEEX Expected loss rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
ElEEE Loss allowance = = = (8,057) (23,990) (1,889,473) (1,921,520)
—E-N\% 31 December 2018

TZA=t-A
FELE Gross carrying amount -

- E7RNE trade receivables 392,239 - 51,354 51,354 154,063 1315459 1,964,469
BHEEX Expected loss rate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
FERE Loss allowance (392,239) - (51,354) (51,354) (150083)  (1315459)  (1.964,469)
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3 HXRBRERE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 BEEERE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) AR (E) (b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZBEERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

BEZENNE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
TR A R B TA RS AR Measurement of expected credit loss

TEHME B R TEBIE K EE A AR
FREENBERFIEETIE R
B el AT e M 1T R R AT (A R (A
(BETREPMUHE KB ENME
FRECER) - YHEHERBEXE
REXRUFAREAE °

BHMERBRDRBEELEREEE
E o WEKEFABARREEEFEE
FEYKRIARE NN ZBEBERRENE
AT ATRETEE B -

on collective basis

Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying
the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of
the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical
credit losses and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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3 BIREREE@

3.1 BBEEEE(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) =RERRE) (b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZBEERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)
BEZENNE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
IR R E TR AR (18) Measurement of expected credit loss
on collective basis (Continued)
TREIRZZE-NEFERZZ-N\F The following table presents the
TZA=T—BEREmAESESR R balances of gross carrying amount and
FHRFHEME Z R IE R BB R the loss allowance in respect of the
& - collectively assessed trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:
k] k] ki k] k]
B 1£30% 31260% 61290% 912180k 180K £ &t
1-30days  31-60days 61-90days  91-180days  Over 180 days
Current past due past due past due past due past due Total
E7A £ £ £z £ £ £
Usp Usb ) Usp Usp ) Usp
“E-hE 31 December 2019

t=A=1-A
RESE- Gross carmying amount -

BARUE trade receivables 4,639,760 973,591 772,082 314,088 548,806 88,390 7,336,717
EHEER Expected loss rate 042% 042% 051% 0.52% 0.54% 0.68% 0.44%
EiEEE Loss allowance (19,377) (4,083) (3.957) (1,639) (2,966) (605) (32,587)
“5-N\F 31 December 2018

+2A=+-8
ERE- Gross carrying amount -

B SElEE trade receivables 4531122 3,604,930 618,670 143212 1,256,936 1,376,145 11,531,075
EHEER Expected loss rate 0.04% 0.04% 0.15% 0.30% 0.38% 0.56% 0.15%
FEaE Loss allowance (1,760) (1,338) 901) (430) (4.804) (7,739) (16972)
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3 HXRBRERE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 BEEERE(E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) AR (E) (b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) ZBEERE (E) (i) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

BEZENNE(E) Trade receivables (Continued)
TR B E TR S AR (1) Measurement of expected credit loss

B 5 iR R ERE TS A I
HERN[SREEZRETEE]T
BR o EL{ e [0 S 50 T4 84T
FEH -

75k - RIERAMBERFNE

ERERR/EEARRBVITHERR
WARESEE 7 E LB KR E i
TSRS R IRIE I - 421218 B TR EME
RIBREENREREBERT -

on collective basis (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables
are presented as “net impairment
losses on financial assets” in the
consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Deposits, notes and other
receivables

Management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition with reference
to the counterparty historical default
rate and current financial position. The
impairment provision is determined
based on the 12-month expected
credit loss which is zero.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(o)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank
balances, the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks and the ability
to close out market position. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances, committed
credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to
continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the consolidated statement of
financial position date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table were the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balance within 12
months equal their carrying balances as
impact at discounting is not significant.
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3.1 BSEBREZ ()

3.2

(0 #"RBESER(E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.

—_

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

1F LR 1Z22F ast
Within Between
1year 1and 2 years Total
S S =T
Usb uUsD usD
R-Z—hF As at 31 December 2019
+=A=+—H
B RENFIER Trade and bills payables
ANE=7: 9,220,640 = 9,220,640
FEETER & Accruals and other payables
H A fERTRIR 4,714,754 = 4,714,754
HEBE Lease liabilities 488,044 678,719 1,166,763
14,423,438 678,719 15,102,157
R-ZE—NF As at 31 December 2018
+=A=+—H
B S EMNIER Trade and bills payables
ANES7 4,089,422 — 4,089,422
EETER R Accruals and other payables
Hfth JE AT FIR 2,369,824 1,507,404 3,877,228
IRITIER R MEFFIE  Bank borrowings and interest thereon 5,523,825 = 5,523,825
11,983,071 1,507,404 13,490,475

ENEE

FEHEAEENTIEARRREASENHE
e IZ‘EH%&E’J§$H:TMS'ZHE%%¥
WEBERANEERAL

REBEERER RN REEELERRE - J0E
FSENERRBLERDR  BED - KEE
ZROARA  ARBERNEATREER
?ﬁl“? ERRBHNBNEN  BHEERER
FEERE AR RTEHRRIRERES -

3.2

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and
projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities.

N
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management (Continued)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
The ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total equity. Net debt is calculated as total bank
borrowings and lease liabilities less short-term
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents.

The Group was in a net cash position as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs
are categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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e L
MEERERE (#) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 AV EME(8) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
£ £ E=& &5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E E En E
UsD UsD UsD UsD
R-E—NF As at 31 December 2019
+=B=+—H
BE Assets
BRETIEAFE Financial assets at fair
AR ESREE value through
profit or loss — — 14,596,569 14,596,569
RZE—NF As at 31 December 2018
+=B=+—H
BE Assets
BPETIEAFE Financial assets at fair
AR R EE value through
profit or loss — — 18,246,807 18,246,807
R-E—NF As at 31 December 2019
+=A=+—H
aE Liability
FERF S ARE Contingent consideration
payable — — = =
RZE—NF As at 31 December 2018
+=B=+—H
aE Liability
JERT AR E Contingent consideration
payable e — (1,507,404)  (1,507,404)

FRER - B2REEIRHAGEBR (T —

NG ) -

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3

during the year (2018: Nil).
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If one or more
of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)

The following table presents the changes in
level 3 instruments for the years ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.

BRAFEAR ERSARE
NWEmEE (MEEE@))
Financial assets Contingent
at fair value consideration
through profit payable
or loss (Note (i)
E E
UsD UsD
R=ZT—N\FE—-HF—H Opening balance at 1 January 2018
WA R 3,808,986 —
FRRNE Additions for the year 11,966,085 (1,507,404)
WiRE W am R R Net gains recognised in the consolidated
RS 58 income statement 2,821,523 —
EkE S =8 Currency translation difference (349,787) —
R=-Z2-NF Closing balance at 31 December 2018
+T-A=+—BNERES 18,246,807 (1,507,404)
FRRE Additions for the year 1,466,964 —
RERE W R FER Net (losses)/gains recognised in the
(JB18),/ WaF48 consolidated income statement (5,036,482) 1,507,404
BERIEH =R Currency translation difference (80,720) o
R=-Z2—hE+=-HA=+—H Closing balance at 31 December 2019
HEREEH 14,596,569 —
RERFIFTBEEETA Total (losses)/gains for the year included
e WEmsR [ EAab e - in the consolidated income statement
FEEIIETHENR for assets held at the end of the year,
(F518), Whassaze under “other gains, net” (5,036,482) 1,507,404
RERTALGEREZRD Changes in net unrealised (losses)/
FRAREIF (BER),/ gains, net for the year included in the
IEs B E) - F5E consolidated income statement
at the end of the year (5,036,482) 1,507,404
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BEREER (&)
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AFELE (5

(a)

E3ZMEMTA (4B)

Ly

n

BRJWAES2C Tech Inc. (RARIMBAF]) &
HMBAR (RBAIS2CEE ) EHNAR
B ATFERARAE#EITERT - HEES2C
EBER BB RIZNATAEN o STEBH
FTERABRBRBEREEAIZH AN
R85% - MR KRAERMBEBERE BN
FARBRZZ-NF+ZA=+—BEUH
R RRESRATENEZFE,507,4043%

JC °
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial

instruments in level 3

(Continued)

Note:

@

The fair value of contingent consideration
payable as at 31 December 2018 related to
the acquisition of S2C Tech Inc. (a subsidiary
of the Company) and its subsidiaries
(collectively “S2C Group”) was estimated
by applying income approach which
considered the probability that S2C Group
could achieve the financial performance
target. The key unobservable assumption
in the calculation was the 85% probability
to achieve the performance target. The
contingent consideration payable was
derecognised as at 31 December 2019 as
the financial performance target have not
been met, resulting in a net fair value gain of
USD1,507,404.
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3.3 AV EME(8)
(a) ZE3{/WMEMTE(H)
ME_E SRR P B M RS s AR (B R 2R

oh - TEREDLEMAREIRAT BT B
EATTBRREABBO AR :

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Financial instruments in level 3
(Continued)

Except for the measurement of the
contingent consideration payable which is
disclosed in Note (i) above, the following
table summarises the quantitative
information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value

measurements:
RZB-NE
+=A=+-H TUARZHA
Lhi] MATE RERN TURERARE YEEE
Fair value at Range of
31 December  Valuation Unobservable unobservable
Description 2019  technique input input
ESA
usp
RZE—tE 1 AN EREAES - AEFEMNEG))  MER NEH
Unlisted equity security acquired in May 2017 Net asset value N/A N/A
(Note (i)
ELmES 814,534 EEFE(E()  TER TER
Unlisted fund Net asset value N/A N/A
(Note (i)
RZE-N\EZ AN FRAES 2,866,890 HRBRLINE BiATALER & 14%
(THHERLRE])
GED)
Unlisted equity security acquired in February 2018 Discounted cash flow  Pre-tax discount rate
("DCF") (Note ii))
BRFEERE 15%
Compound annual
growth rate
REBERE 3%

Terminal growth
rate

poe it
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—
3 HIBRERERE(#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.3 AV EME(8) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) SE3FMEMIE(E) (a) Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)

RZB-N&
+=A=+-H TURZHA
khid] NATE HERE TURZHABE YEEE
Fair value at Range of
31 December  Valuation Unobservable unobservable
Description 2019  technique input input
7
usD
RIZ-NERAKEN I EPRAES 2,063,938 AHESNE TRATAEER & 20%
GED)
Unlisted equity security acquired in June 2019 DCF (Note (jii) Pre-tax discount rate
BREFEERE 81%
Compound annual
growth rate
RIEERE 3%
Terminal growth
rate
RZF-N\F+—AYRENIE ERRAES 7417762 ZEEHALR TR TER
RFRS (Kiztv)
Unlisted equity security acquired in November 2018 Reference to N/A N/A
comparable
recent arm’s length
transactions
(Note (iv))
REZ-NFRARENIF ETRAES 1433445 BEERERE (M WAARE 20%
(v)
Unlisted equity security acquired in May 2019 DCF (Note (v)) Pre-tax discount rate
BREEERE 77%
Compound annual
growth rate
BREERE 3%
Terminal growth rate
14,596,569
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MBERE

3.3

APEEEH ()

(a)

E3ZMEMTA (48)

GEE

(i)

(iii)

AEBAR  RMEHR  HEEEFEE
FLIETESRERRKR -_ZE—tFHAKEN
FELTERABRSHATFEMRE ©

WEBRRATHEI% (ZE—N\FE : &) -
1551 IN49109,000%E T (=% )\E
) o AR R AR - AR TFERERBIE

wEAAE - WERENEEFERRRAT
F1% (ZT—N\F : &) BEEHE TR
40, oooim(:::—/\i ) o EEES

FEREREDS  ARQ

o

FEDSEFEEF

S
Eﬂi

WEBBERETHI% (ZE—N\F:1%)
Fi 1605 M #518 IN49367,000E T (ZF— N\
F - BIEE1BR326,000%7T) - BiEAEIE
KRR BATFEDERBE SR AE - 4
ERENEEFEEREATHI% (ZF—
NEF 2 3%) - Biigm A i 4 49178,000%
T (ZZE—/\F : BLEEE 1,548,000

7o) o WEMEEFEERERAS - AIATE
A= ki RTR o

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Financial

instruments in level 3

(Continued)

Note:

@

(ii)

(iif)

The Group has determined that the reported
net asset value approximates fair value of the
unlisted fund investment and the unlisted
equity security acquired in May 2017 at the
end of the reporting period.

If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2018: Nil), the post-tax profit would be
approximately USD109,000 higher (2018:
Nil). The higher the pre-tax discount rate the
lower the fair value and the lower post-tax
profit. If the compound annual growth rate in
revenue shifted downward by 1% (2018: Nil),
the post-tax profit would be approximately
UsD40,000 lower (2018: Nil). The higher the
compound annual growth rate in revenue, the
higher the fair value and the higher post-tax
profit.

If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2018: 1%), the post-tax profit would
be approximately USD367,000 higher (2018:
post-tax loss USD326,000 lower). The higher
the pre-tax discount rate the lower the fair
value and the lower post-tax profit. If the
compound annual growth rate in revenue
shifted downward by 1% (2018: 3%), the
post-tax profit would be approximately
USD178,000 lower (2018: post-tax loss
UsSD1,548,000 higher). The higher the
compound annual growth rate in revenue, the
higher the fair value and the higher post-tax
profit.

N
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3

BEREER (&)
3.3 AV EME(8)
() E3MWEMIE(H)

(b)

BiRE - (B8

(iv) AEERR RMEPR AHATLRIF
R SMEREF EHRAEFNATERE

v  HERBRRATAI%(CZE-NEF 8 &
BRI A049119,0003 70 (=T — )\4F -
) o AR RAR - AR TFERERBIE
ERFEIE - fMERENESFERERAT
1% (ZT—)N\F : @) BREFETRL
34,000F 7T (ZF—\F : &) - KmWES
FEHERERDS  AATEERRBEEF

i

B
it

o

BREBEEATENEREERBEZATE

AEBRDLRAE (BEEPRE AR
WE - RERREEEY  ZRHRTE
2) RABSRAE (BERSRALE
B RIRTTE ) AR EE R BET
SUR AT EHE - JERD AR AR
A R A ERA ER AR ST E
At AT EARE -
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in level 3

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(iv) The Group has determined that prices in
comparable recent arm’s length transactions
approximate fair values of the unlisted equity
securities at the end of the reporting period.

(v) If the discount rate shifted downward by
1% (2018: Nil), the post-tax Profit would be
approximately USD119,000 higher (2018:
Nil). The higher the pre-tax discount rate the
lower the fair value and the lower post-tax
profit. If the compound annual growth rate in
revenue shifted downward by 1% (2018: Nil),
the post-tax profit would be approximately
USD34,000 lower (2018: Nil). The higher the
compound annual growth rate in revenue, the
higher the fair value and the higher post-tax
profit.

Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortised costs

The carrying amounts of the Group's current
financial assets, including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposit, and current financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables
and bank borrowings approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities.
The carrying amounts of non-current other
receivables and other payables approximate
their fair values which are estimated based
on the discounted cash flows.
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3.4 HETHEENRERMER

AEEMECRAERSHABATEY  TH
FRIRH T BRI IR -

T EERHhE R A E

AEEERBELRLREGEE (BRERBR TR
RAEHEARREMFTER) HEE KA BETR AT
fl o ARBEARRIEH AR REREZ - BREBE - BLILM
EHM AR RO S EERERGERENT - BEAT—
EMRFEEHEERBBENREEEXEAFIERR
M LRI T

4.1 Y% BERRBHAERFR

EEEEEARENE  BERREOMBAIE
FRER - WAl ERFRELHGENFEER &
BEESEXTERR  IMEBEABBRC EREOR
MMEPREKIFREE I EE -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group have no financial assets and
financial liabilities, which is subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

4.1 Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different from previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.
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4.2

4.3

FERRERFE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date.

Provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables

The loss allowance for trade and other receivables
are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Details of the
key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in
the tables in Note 3.1(b).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.4

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. When the expectations are different from
the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

N
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4.6
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.9 and 2.10.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations required the use of estimates.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of the Group that are not quoted or actively
traded in the market involves significant amounts
of accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions; and could affect the
carrying amount of these assets within the next
financial year. For the investments in unlisted
investee companies and the investment in an
unlisted fund where there are no active trade
markets, the Group estimates the fair value of
these investments with reference to the fair values
of the underlying investments held by the investee
companies, such as those provided by the financial
and market information. It also employs valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants
including those based on share of net asset value
of the investees, recent comparable arm’s length
transactions and discounted cash flow model.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM that
are used to making strategic decisions. The CODM is
identified as the Executive Directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the CODM
assessed the performance of the Group by reviewing the
results of three reportable segments: CAM and mPQOS,
rapid verification system and software and EDA.

CAM and mPOS - development and sales of security
products (CAM and mPOS devices) that enable secure
distribution and delivery of digital content to television
and secure mobile payment transaction respectively.

Rapid verification system and software — development
and sales of rapid hardware-based verification systems
and softwares.

EDA - Development and application of full process
electronic design automation system for chip design.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group no
longer made any sales of blockchain servers.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group's internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. The CODM assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of segment
results, including adjusted operating loss of the relevant
operating segments. Expenses, where appropriate,
are allocated to operating segments with reference to
revenue contributions of respective segments. Finance
income, finance costs, share of net loss of investments
accounted for using the equity method and unallocated
income and expenses are not included in the result for
each operating segment that is reviewed by the Group’s
CODM.

N
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the CODM
assessed the performance of the Group based on a
measure of segment results using adjusted operating
profit/(loss) of the operating segments, as opposed to the
use of gross profit of the operating segments to measure
segment results for the year ended 31 December
2018, in order to align the segment review with the
restructured internal management and reporting
structure. The segment information of comparative
period has been restated to conform to the current year's
categorisation.

Segment assets consist primarily of goodwill, other
intangible assets, investments accounted for using the
equity method, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, inventories, trade and other receivables
and prepayments and loan to an associate but exclude
deferred income tax assets, property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, income tax recoverable,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposit and
corporate and unallocated assets.

Information relating to segment liabilities is not disclosed
as such information is not regularly reported to the
CODM.

Other information provided to the CODM is measured
in a manner consistent with that as adopted for the
consolidated statement of financial position contained
herein.

186



e MR R MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

poe it

TEER (@) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEFR B REZRH
mPOS RiEEE REERH EDA k]
Rapid
verification
CAM and  Blockchain  system and
mPOS servers software EDA Total
e ET FET e ET
UsD usD usb UsD uspb
BE-Z-NF For the year ended
+ZA=+—-HLEE 31 December 2019
pax: G Segment revenue
HnEPES External revenue 27,989,736 — 10,109,984 — 38,099,720
DEEE Segment results 4,818,591 — 21,814,071  (3,667,790) 22,964,872
BE-E2-N\F For the year ended
+TZR=+—HLFE 31 December 2018
o Segment revenue
SR R External revenue 30,877,174 9,648,836 792,568 — 41,318,578
DEELE Segment results
(r=&%)) (as restated) 908,554 2,141,355 (54,630) (24,988) 2,970,291
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5 Z28&ER @) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
BEFR B REZRH
mPOS RiEEE REERH EDA k]
Rapid
verification
CAM and  Blockchain  system and
mPOS servers software EDA Total
e ET ES e ET
UsD UsD UsD UsD UsD
R=ZZB—AE+=H=+—H  Asat31December 2019
SHEE Segment assets 19,458,541 — 58,906,221  3,035819 81,400,581
W=Z2-N\E+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2018
DEEE Segment assets 26,194,164 1,990,991 23,632,678 — 51,817,833
AR E D EPEAA BB ATERANE N (B8) A & A s A reconciliation of reportable segment results to profit/
SIS ERAEENHERENT (loss) before income tax and reportable segment assets
to total assets is provided as follows:
BE+-A=+-ALEE
Year ended 31 December
—g-h& —T )\
2019 2018
ETT E
UsD UsD
(#&&E2)
(as restated)
EOMWEE Reporting segment results 22,964,872 2,970,291
NARARD RS  F5 Corporate and unallocated expenses, net (11,660,446) (4,397,814)
rEEN S (BER) Operating profit/(loss) 11,304,426 (1,427,523)
BEUA - FHE Finance income, net 583,727 1,149,740
DG AERAARS Share of net loss of investments accounted
wEFEE for using the equity method (266,833) —
BREFSBADER(BR) Profit/(loss) before income tax 11,621,320 (277,783)
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e L
DEER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
®+=BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
=T EJ
UsD UspD
REDHERE Reportable segment assets 81,400,581 51,817,833
RIEAGTEE Deferred income tax assets 3,218,233 2,770,689
Y% - BB KR Property, plant and equipment 3,152,061 1,735,894
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 1,041,791 —
AU Bl FTAS L Income tax recoverable 116,543 138,006
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 70,902,673 54,962,324
PR BRI TIF K Restricted bank deposit 519,266 5,000,000
RNARKRDBLEE Corporate and unallocated assets 17,117,789 24,493,965
FEMBEARRRN Total assets per consolidated statement of
HEE financial position 177,468,937 140,918,711
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)1/

6 W HWARHMbKE - B8 6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
OTHER GAINS, NET
FREROY S - EARAREMRE - FREOT Revenue, other income and other gains, net recognised
during the year is as follows:

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF ZZE-N\F
2019 2018
E7T e
UsD UsD
g Revenue
BER CAM 24,572,461 23,078,007
mPOSH# mPOS devices 3,417,275 7,799,167
[ 5 5% AR 75 23 Blockchain servers — 9,648,836
PRIRERFE R A BB Rapid verification system and software 10,109,984 792,568
EmibE R Total sales of goods 38,099,720 41,318,578
Wi 2 T R s Timing of revenue recognition
R —FEER At a point in time 38,099,720 41,318,578
Hibg A Other income
B8 Government grants 2,385,038 862,539
Hity Others 37,754 150,807
2,422,792 1,013,346
Hitlhss - B8 Other gains, net
[ 5 Ui s 58 Exchange gains, net 193,012 1,145,868
JERERAREH Fair value gain on contingent
ASRENE consideration payable 1,507,404 —
BIEHEMBRRIMKES Gain on deemed disposal of
(M7E33(d)) subsidiaries (Note 33(d)) 22,777,730 —
FREEERATEARN Net fair value (losses)/gains on
eRMEENLTE financial assets at fair value through
(B1#8), Wz 58 profit or loss (5,036,482) 2,821,523
19,441,664 3,967,391
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BUEE DX

FTARISKE[SHERA ] - THHER | - [$HE R #HFH
X [—RETBA I RIeMEEREFEE] 2

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

poe it

Expenses included “cost of sales”, “research and
development expenses”, “selling and distribution

WT expenses”, “general and administrative expenses” and
“net impairment losses on financial assets” are analysed
as follows:

BE+Z-A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ET E
UsbD usb

BT & Auditors’ remuneration

— BT - Audit services 506,502 456,643

— SERRBURTS — Non-audit services 87,752 697,098

EHFEMA Cost of inventories sold 19,003,767 25,576,930

EERMAX (PREESHE) Employee benefits expenses

(Hf7E8) (including directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) 15,527,697 11,590,023
5 EAHEABRAR X (KsE16) Expenses relating to short-term leases (Note 16) 2,112,154 —
EIR MBS Travelling and entertainment expenses 1,785,182 1,364,904
FEERBEEER Legal and professional fees 1,738,020 834,354
FERERE (BEER) Provision for/(reversal of provision for)

impairment of inventories 1,163,024 (320,473)

FErEERE Royalty expenses 1,062,981 1,120,648

MAERmR AR Office supplies and utilities 1,002,002 768,156

Y - BEREETE Depreciation of property,

(Bg3E15) plant and equipment (Note 15) 591,348 685,213
HAb g Egsy (MsE17) Amortisation of other intangible assets (Note 17) 463,039 186,704
FREEEE (Hit1e) Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16) 369,743 —
B Advertising costs 367,269 527,330
Hipiia Other taxes 221,861 313,014
HiEE Freight charges 144,326 94,223
HENE  WE Loss on disposals of property,

M EEE plant and equipment 53,591 34,295
B 5 REBGRIE R E R Provision for impairment of trade receivables

(Fi&E20) (Note 20) 19,971 759,318
ERMRIBEE RS ERE 175 Lease payments for leases previously classified

gD A EHENELN as operating leases under HKAS 17

HERR = 1,296,199
Hith Others 2,439,521 1,742,259
HERA « TAEHY - HER Total cost of sales, research and development

DA - —MRRITEAX expenses, selling and distribution expenses,

FemEERBEFEIBERE general and administrative expenses and

net impairment losses on financial assets 48,659,750 47,726,838
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8

EEEANAX (BRESHE)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

ZE-hF ZZT-NF

2019 2018

ET e

UsbD usb

T& - e REMER Wages, salaries and other allowances 10,674,685 8,649,200
EIETEAL Discretionary bonuses 3,278,506 1,815,138
DARR AR 7 B R ) 2 B Share-based compensation 39,742 187
RNEN — REHFKETE Retirement benefit — defined contribution plans 1,534,764 1,125,498
15,527,697 11,590,023

(@)

RRB R BB E QB AT BB HETER
EIRREMEFTEINKE - AEERZRMBARE
B¥HeETEOLERE - MEFEHRSN
TEERINRARESIERREENNE-FR
£ BRERNEAREIBEMRKEES P
BERRE -
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(@)

Retirement benefit — defined contribution
plans

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group contributes a certain percentage of
the salaries of the subsidiaries” employees, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-managed
retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

192



e MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8

BEEEARX (BREESMHE)

(a)

RKER — REMKTE

—

(4=
\ﬁ:‘)

REBERHFEHEBEELMAHERESE
([@EetE])  ZtERBBIIFEATEDN
AEMKEE - BERESE - AEEREE
BRI AEe AN EENEERANSYR T
AT SRR o ANEE K iE 8 #55541,500
B ([T A ER - HEELOHEZKE R
= o

REERAENHBARDRESE S TEKRE
Pl RZRERREE (T8EE]) B=F
TRHFLA-AREN - ARERHBES TR
RREEENCHFBREREBARSHNIER AFHN
6% ° ZEREMHALKEE - EFHRASENA T
B o SR R SRAT IR B R AR -

B B R U A SR AT R BIRL B R MR

B Lt St EIERSN - AERE W EAEEARKE
BAEE -

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(@) Retirement benefit — defined contribution
plans (Continued)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong
employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions were subject to a cap of Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") 1,500 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. No forfeited contributions are
available to reduce contributions payable in the
future.

The Group's subsidiary in Taiwan has established
a defined contribution plan (“Taiwan Plan”) under
the new “Labor Pension Act” of Taiwan with
effect from 1 July 2005. The Group contributes
6% of the employees’ monthly salaries to the
vested employees’ individual accounts, which are
administered by the Labor Insurance Bureau of
Taiwan. The accrued pension benefits are portable
when the employees leave the Group. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions
payable in the future.

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce
contributions payable in the future.

The Group has no material obligation for

post-retirement benefits beyond contributions to
the above schemes.
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8

BEEARX (BREESHE)

(b)

EEBSHFAL

FR - AEELESESHFALEBEEMHSRBRR
M4BT =R (ZF—\F : =R) &
E -RERNENTHTME (ZF—N\F : B&)
ALEEIT

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include three
(2018: three) directors whose emolument is
reflected in the analysis shown in Note 40. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2018:
two) individuals during the year are as follows:

BE+-HA=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —E—N\F

2019 2018

ETT E

UsD UsD

HATE M REWMEFR Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 153,298 156,033
BIETEAL Discretionary bonuses 38,906 23,865
RIRER — REHRETE Retirement benefit- defined contribution plan 17,193 20,972
209,397 200,870

BERAELBEEEE T EGTFERZSZA
T(ZZ—NF : &) -
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No inducement fee nor compensation for loss of
office has paid to or receivable by any of these
individuals (2018: Nil).
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N

EEEIHX (BEESHE) &) 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(b)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

AEBSHENL (B) (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
MemEENT - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
BE+-A=t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
[l Emolument bands
Z%1,000,000/8 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000
(FENZZE128,40657T) (equivalent to Nil to USD128,406) 2 2
1,000,001 7c2 1,500,000
Bt (FHE 128,407 T HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
%192,6093%7T) (equivalent to USD 128,407 to USD192,609) = —
1,500,001 7c £ 2,000,000
BT (HEEM192,61657C  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
%256,81237T) (equivalent to USD192,616 to USD256,812) — —
2 2
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9 ®mEWA  FE 9 FINANCE INCOME, NET

BE+-A=1+—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —E—)\F
2019 2018
T ZET
UsD UsD
BEWA Finance income
HRITIFREIF BN Interest income on bank deposits 762,568 1,079,527
SERENE 5 FE W IEIE AN F) B Interest accretion on non-current
trade receivables — 32,534
H Others — 49,487
m&EKA  Financeincome 762,568 1,161,548
=g %N Finance cost
AEAENF SRS (ME16) Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 16) (44,526)
SRITIE KT B X Interest expense on bank borrowings (134,315) (11,808)
mEpRA  Fmancecost (178841) (11,808)
BMERA > B Finance income, net 583,727 1,149,740
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10 EREZEARNRE 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
NTRALEER_Z-NAEF+_A=+—BHBER Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31
A RESNERRUAEBBEELRE - THRERE December 2019 which, in the opinion of the Directors,
ZRAREBLRER  MEEEERLIAREBEER are material to the Group. The entities listed below
Ao NAFEMKISAMERDEEEEE e o % have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
B DIERAFHE SRR - BrE QR R E which are held directly by the Group. The country of
MEEEP X EEME - incorporation or registration is also their principal place

of business, and the proportion of ownership interest
is the same as the proportion of voting rights held. The
English names of the associates are directly translated
from their Chinese names.

ER4E 518/ ERETER BEREREAN TERE IEER BEE
Place of business/
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest Measurement method  Principal activities ~ Carrying amount
“E-NE 2N\E
2019 2018
% % X
% % UsD
HERFHTHAARLA G 34.94% - ERE ek 520,559
([ LgER) (k) EEBYMHE  (CR-N\E:E)
Shanghai Qingge Digital Technology The PRC —  Equity method Research and (2018: Ni)
Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Qingge") development and
(Note (i)) sales of smart
door lock
BEC(LE) REREERAR G 49.19% - EEE P REERRRE 42,999,190
([RBERLE]) (H) ZnaEgt  (Z2-)\E:8)
§2C Shanghai Co., Ltd. (“S2C Shanghai”) The PRC —  Equity method Research and (2018: Nil)
(Note (ii) development and
sales of rapid
verification system
and software
EREZENRNREEH 43,519,749
Total investments accounted for
using the equity method
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)1

10 FERAESZEARNKRE @)

(ii)

RZZF—AFERANR - BHEE CRY) BRAF (TSMIT
RY) AR SREARES,590,0007T (1H574810,2395%
L) BAT EBEAREI34.94% BAE o B - SMITARIIT %
BRENBEAFES  MEZBREBEATEENBEER
Al e

RZT-—NE+ZA=++A  AEERETBIIRESER]
mrﬁt% CREBUREEREMARBMEREHE
RAEBRS /i/fzﬁm,\/\ﬁmog 821,0007t (B4
44411000%75) RZE-NFTZA=T—HBEXXH

F REERBAEN >mﬁx%m100%ﬂ3%§4919%-m
9&%& HiE - MH - AEERERL DENRBEZUED
TEEHE - Hﬁﬁ&féﬁ%%‘ﬁﬁﬂtﬁ%"ﬂ(lﬁak @ﬁ
FEEEAFEN) HRBEZHARMNE * ZRF
BAVIFRIREE -

/u\ 5 /L,\
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10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Note:

(0]

(ii)

On 9 May 2019, Shenzhen State Micro Technology Co., Ltd.
("SMIT Shenzhen”) invested in 34.94% equity interest of
Shanghai Qingge for a cash consideration of RMB5,590,000
(equivalent to USD810,239). As a consequence, SMIT
Shenzhen gained significant influence over this investment
and the investment was classified as an associate of the

Group.

On 27 December 2019, the Group entered into a capital
injection agreement with certain independent investors
which agreed to contribute a total of RMB309,821,000
(equivalent to approximately USD44,411,000) into S2C
Shanghai, an indirectly-held subsidiary of the Company.
Upon the completion of the transaction on 31 December
2019, the Group's equity interest in S2C Shanghai decreased
from 100% to 49.19% with a loss of control. On the same
day, the Group'’s retained interest over S2C Shanghai was
remeasured to its fair value, which became the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for
such retained interest as an associate because the Group has

significant influence over S2C Shanghai.
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10 FRAEZZEARNIKRE &) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

AT AFREREARNIEESE) Set out below is the movement of investments accounted
for using the equity method:

E
Usb
R_E—N\F+_A=1+—HEK As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
—E-hF—H—H —
R EEER Addition of Shanghai Qingge 810,239
AR 28 (BH3E33(d) Addition of S2C Shanghai (Note 33(d)) 42,999,190
Frih &8 F58 Share of net loss (266,833)
EinE =5 Currency translation difference (22,847)
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2019 43,519,749
UTAESEREERS EBR -_E—NF+=-_A=+ Set out below is the summarised financial information
—HEEHEZBIIEENTBERNEE - fiEm s for Shanghai Qingge and S2C Shanghai group as at and
B AABEATAR_E—hE+_A=+—HI1% for the year ended 31 December 2019. Comparative
ERULEE o amounts are nil as the associates are acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
SE AR R E Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position
EiEER BEESLE
Shanghai Qingge S$2C Shanghai
—E-hE ZE=-)N\HF ZEB-h&E =ZZE-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
ES ES ET E
Usb UsD UsbD usb
MENEE Current assets 946,395 — 51,632,254 =
IERBEE Non-current assets 565,284 — 10,486,731 e
mEBE Current liabilities (19,753) —  (9,658,794) ==
FRBAG  Noncurentliabiles — N ... (63287 =
BEFE Net assets 1,491,926 — 52,396,904 =
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10 FRAEZZEARNIKRE &) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

FEETHWEREE Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

EEER BEWSLE
Shanghai Qingge $2C Shanghai
ZE-AF —Z-N\HFE ZB-AF —T-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
7T E 7T e
UsD UsD UsD UsD
Wess Revenue 5,976 — 8,544,204 —
FAEE Loss for the year (883,467) — (687,526)
Hi2mEEE Other comprehensive loss (46,878) — (564,664)
SHEEERE Total comprehensive loss (930,345) —  (1,252,190) —
B ARME (B AV BR Reconciliation to carrying amount
EEER BRSNS
Shanghai Qingge $2C Shanghai
—®-hFE —T)\F —B-NF —FT)\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
T ES 7T ES
uUsbD UsD UsD UsD
P& B UE A 8 Opening net assets at
HEEFE respective acquisition dates 1,967,832 — 6,532,664 —
AE Capital injection 349,858 — 44,411,140
BN E1E Loss for the period (763,745) — —
H A2 EE Other comprehensive loss (63,973) — —
BREEFE Closing net assets 1,489,972 — 50,943,804
REEMEESL Group's share in % 34.94% — 49.19%
REBEMEEEFE Group's share of net assets
(E7T) (USD) 520,559 — 25,059,257 —
(SRS Goodwill — — 17,939,933 —
RE{E Carrying amount 520,559 — 42,999,190 —
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11 HEBAT

REBR_Z-NET_A=+—BZETEWNBERRIH
AT - BRIEREAEE - BRIAKBAFARSERE
EEREFHREERERSL ISR AR RRFEZRE
W o EMAGIREMBER B EE T 2L mE -

N

11 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are
held by the Group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Group.
The country of incorporation or registration is also their
principal place of business.

EMA LK BRTR
BERER EEERER TEEK BRRAZE ERRBEREER
Particulars of Direct and
Place of incorporation issued and fully indirect
Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities paid share capital ownership
ZB-hF
2019
%
EERE:
Directly held:
BN (B8) BRAR Bk HERE R AR 2 150,010,0007 T 100
(TELfE#]) BREART e AR R (ZZ—N\%:100)
SMIT Holdings (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Sales of CAM and other security HK$150,010,000 100 (2018: 100)
("SMIT HK") liability company products and related materials
SMIT Digital GmbH &R EREERA HERERRmPOSHE K 25,000B(7T 100
Hit L 2Em (ZZ—/\¥ : 100)
SMIT Digital GmbH Germany, limited Sales of CAM and mPQS devices EUR25,000 100 (2018: 100)
liability company and other security products
SMIT Systemic Limited EBEARE REZR (E 100
(ZZ—=/\F 1 100)
SMIT Systemic Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding usD1 100 (2018: 100)
$2C Holding Corporation EBEAEE REZR 56,859% T 95.43
(Z2-N\F :94.97)
$2C Holding Corporation British Virgin Islands Investment holding USD56,859 95.43 (2018: 94.97)
MRS
Indirectly held:
SMITZS el BREEAR e REEREF - AR#220,000,0007 100
mPOSH I & S8R %25 (Z2—-/\F: 100)
SMIT Shenzhen The PRC, limited Research and development and RMB220,000,000 100 (2018: 100)

liability company

sales of CAM, mPOS devices
and blockchain servers
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)1/

11 MIBATE(E)

(a)

FEIZIRAE RS

RZZE—NEF+-A=+—8  FEEFERE
#ABFE/1,967,240% T (ZF —/\F : 240,480
ET) cRN_E—NE+-A=+—8  A&£E@EK
BEHHAEEMES BEARIEEREAONER
AIMEBEERE - BEAERBRIGRAISENE
HREENTEZNB AR -

TXHEIRBE-_FT-N\FR_T-NF+=-A
=+ REFEHEEERIFERERNS2CEE
BB TR ENREEZVEERBR -

11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2019, the total non-controlling
interests of the Group was USD1,967,240 (2018:
USD240,480). As at 31 December 2019, the
Group re-assessed whether the subsidiary with
non-controlling interests is considered material to
the Group based on its relative size in terms of total
assets, total liabilities and loss before income tax.

Set out below are the summarised unaudited
financial information of S2C Group since
completion of acquisition which has material
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.

BEMBERRRBE Summarised consolidated statement of
financial position
BE+-A=t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hE —T—N\F
2019 2018
E E
UsD Usp
MENEE Current assets 10,000 3,510,137
MEAE Current liabilities — (3,698,270)
RBEE (&) B Current net assets/(liabilities) 10,000 (188,133)
FRBEE Non-current assets 42,999,190 5,661,779
JEREAE Non-current liabilities — (692,730)
FRBEEFE Non-current net assets 42,999,190 4,969,049
BEEFE Net assets 43,009,190 4,780,916
RET IR RS Accumulated non-controlling interests 1,967,240 240,480
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11 WEBAR G 11 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(a) SRR (B) (@) Non-controlling interests (Continued)
FEEERERBE Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
BZE+-A=t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—g-hE  —F)\F
2019 2018
=T ES
UsD UsD
Was Revenue 10,710,893 792,568
HREF (E8) Profit/(loss) for the period 37,618,721 (43,936)
Hihzmmiss / (E18) Other comprehensive income/(loss) 122,927 (29,923)
2mEkE (FE) B Total comprehensive income/(loss) 37,741,648 (73,859)
DB F IR S AY Profit/(loss) allocated to
) (E518) non-controlling interests 1,726,303 (3,715)
RERERBMR Summarised consolidated cash flows
BE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—®-nE  —F)N\F
2019 2018
ET E
UsbD Uusp
KEEEMEHRERE Cash flows from operating activities (225,622) (249,078)
RETEMEHRSRE Cash flows from investing activities (34,715) 203
MEEAFRENZE Cash flows from financing activities (362,227) 333,636
BeRBESEEYIGINTE Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents (622,564) 84,761
U EER AEBARAREYEAINSEE - The information above was the amount before

inter-company eliminations.
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12

FRieBiiE %

ANEBREAKE R FSMITEYI R AEBHBE RS A
A(ZZE—N\FEAEMBAR) BB L85 BRI
PSR AL o mRSMITRIIR BES 8T Eh
EiER E ER S RAR AT CEMBREATAENS
FHRATRE - SMTRIIRBES L8 ER = —+t
B - NF=FHERRNZEE15% TR EMSH
([EMEHR]) BERE (SRt EEERE]) -
HEZZE-NF+-A=+—HLEFEERMTFIIR
BRI L ERPATRANCEMSHBER15%
(ZE—\F :15%) °

HE_Z-hF+_A=+—BHLLEE BREFAME
EHERBUENIZ16.5% (ZF—/\%F : 16.5%) BB KET
REBFIEFREE - HINEFWHBNERBAEEKE
FTEBERMIBE L - RIEREREES - REFAMGT
R - REBRRBTNERRERTEMRS -
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INCOME TAX CREDIT

SMIT Shenzhen, a PRC subsidiary (2018: same) of the
Group, and S2C Shanghai, a PRC associate (2018:
subsidiary) of the Group, were established in the
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone and Shanghai,
respectively. As a result of the approval obtained from
the respective in-charge tax authorities in the PRC as
High/New Technology Enterprises as defined under the
New Enterprise Income Tax Law, both SMIT Shenzhen
and S2C Shanghai are entitled to a reduced preferential
enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate at 15% ("HNTE
Preferential Tax Rate”) for a 3-year period from 2017 to
2019, respectively. An EIT tax rate at 15% (2018: 15%)
was applied to the assessable profit of SMIT Shenzhen
and S2C Shanghai for the year ended 31 December
2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Hong Kong
profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
applicable rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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12 FiBSHiER (@) 12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

BE+-A=1+—RHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —ZE—N\F
2019 2018
=T e
UsbD usb
BVEARRS T Current income tax
— BNEAFR1S AR — Current income tax
Bl SEFTISHL PRC corporate income tax 325 —
BN TR Overseas tax 2,558 27,698
BEBNED Hong Kong profits tax 172,471 —
- BEFERETR — Under/(over)-provision in prior years
(FRFRRE ) 57,013 (551,477)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 232,367 (523,779)
EIEFTSHE (M95E24) Deferred income tax (Note 24)
— KFE — Current year (1,192,063) (1,069,528)
— R RS B 2 HERRIR T - Derecognition of deferred income tax
Frisii&E assets previously recognised 258,705 —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (933,358)  (1.069,528)
FriEfiER Income tax credit (700,991) (1,593,307)
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12 FERER (&)

AEERAEEANET(B18) AT IR RETR -
B ETHERIA T ERR A E BB A RDEN H B AT

T ES ¢

12 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The tax on the Group's profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the domestic tax rate applicable to profits of the

Group's subsidiaries as follows:

BE+-HA=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF —E—N\F
2019 2018
=TT e
UsD UsD
BETEBADERN (EE) Profit/(loss) before income tax 11,621,320 (277,783)
RERAREBBRRATESEFA  Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable
AR R ERBIE to profits in the respective countries 2,119,627 (20,490)
BERT WA Income not subject to tax (4,133,639) (884,231)
Itttz olba Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,147,485 363,229
FrSFiESE — MRl Income tax benefit — super deduction (693,333) (604,968)
W R IR I FTS T E E A Tax loss for which no deferred income tax
HIEEE asset was recognised 543,151 104,630
R EHERR SR B HERIRAE Derecognition of deferred income
FriSti & = tax assets previously recognised 258,705 —
BAEERETR, (FBERMR)  Under/(oven)-provision in prior years 57,013 (551,477)
SR Income tax credit (700,991) (1,593,307)

BHE - ZT-NE+-_A=+t—HI-FENIMEFSER
HEE18.6% (ZZT—/)\F : 7.3%) o EATIENAR
RIREWBARNE BRRNAFIKEES) -

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was 18.6% (2018: 7.3%). The
increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the

Company and its subsidiaries in the respective countries.
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13

FrEHiER (@)

BREBE(hEARAMBAEMAETOE) - R BEKZESN
BEMINEIRE E SRS BN 10% NI
SHREATENF-A-AREREAR —ZTZL
FHZA=+T—RERIMHEN - fid BHEIEHRES
PR RDEE R BB E - B AR ABIEAIEN
BBE - RAEEME - BHAHER5%H10% °
it BRE 2T N\F-A—HEMELRN  KAEE
JABLTA T BIR L ) R% 5 MY 188 2 1A 0 Ik B BSLB A TR A0
0 o FEEIMI 24358 o

BRER
13.1 &K

BRERBMIZARBEE AR BE T R
BT E B INEFEEEE -

12

13

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Details are
disclosed in Note 24.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
13.1 Basic

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue.

BE+-HA=+—-HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —E—)N\F
2019 2018
AAEHEAE AENRF (ET) Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (USD) 10,602,142 1,317,734
BEITERRAINETHE Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 317,657,782 309,751,596
FREAREF) (FET) Basic earnings per share (USD) 0.033 0.004

N
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13 BRER @

13.2 #'8

FhEE RN R BRAEETEIN T BB INEF
B AMRRAE AR EEREN T BRD
rEmmaE - BRENS - RRBREET
LR FE 2 TR BB HIRR AT iR A B (AR
FESRFEOMEETE) HTNRMNEE - FAEHE
RIS RIARBEREERTORNEKE - B
EANEEZRTRMEB AT BRINE T IR
ERAE - Ut ESEEE RN -

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

13.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. For the
share options, the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options less the number of shares that could
have been issued at fair value (determined as the
average market price per share for the respective
year) for the same total proceeds is the number of
shares issued for no consideration. The resulting
number of shares issued for no consideration
is included in the weighted average number of
ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.

BE+-A=1+—BHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hE —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
AAEHEE AENRF (ET) Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (USD) 10,602,142 1,317,734
BETE BRI INE TS Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue 317,657,782 309,751,596
BEARRE A Adjustments for share options 786,292 8,896,373
sib e Sraebll: DE ks Adjusted weighted average number of
TmAR NN a8 ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share 318,444,074 318,647,969
SREERMN (ET) Diluted earnings per share (USD) 0.033 0.004
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14 KRE

14 DIVIDENDS

BE+-A=1+—RHLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —T-N\F
2019 2018
ES e
uUsD usb
¥R R AR B &A% 0.01 87T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.01
(1B 74 490.0012€7T) (equivalent to approximately USD0.001
(—Z—)\FE : 0015 (2018: HK$0.01 (equivalent to
(18574 490.0012% L)) approximately USD0.001)) per share 410,139 405,414

BHE-_Z-\F+_A=t+—BHLEFENRHEREH
405,414% 7T (BA20.0178 7T (FHZER#0.001%ET))
BERZZE—NFINM(ZZ—N\F :802,533F 7w (B
0.02%7T (FBEM#0.003%%7T))) - BEZZT—NF+
ZA=t-HIEFENRPKREATRR0.01ET (BE
MR#0.001%7T) © BRBAEREA410,139%E 5T BHRAR
RIS BFAMBRRBFASIRE - WEFRARSTER
BR-ZZE_ZFATRHBIEMN - BROEEDIR @ K
YEA-Z-NF+ A=+ ANEATERRTR
BUAERARE o

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to USD405,414 (HK$0.01 (equivalent to
approximately USD0.001) per share) (2018: USD802,533
(HK$0.02 (equivalent to approximately USD0.003) per
share)) was paid in 2019. A final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$0.01
(equivalent to approximately USD0.001) per share,
amounted to a total dividend of USD410,139, will be
proposed at the upcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. This proposed final dividend is expected
to be paid on 15 June 2020, which is an appropriation
from share premium and is not reflected as a dividend
payable in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
December 2019.

N
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15 % - BEKRE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ha-
HENEES EENRE "E &t
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
E En En E
usp usp usp usp
R-ZE—-t&+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2017
PR Cost 2,380,124 2,075,871 317,166 4,773,161
ZETTE Accumulated depreciation (2,013,057) (657,085) (96,966) (2,767,108)
REFE Net book amount 367,067 1,418,786 220,200 2,006,053
BE_Z-N\& Year ended 31 December 2018
+ZA=1+—-RALEE
FURIFE Opening net book amount 367,067 1,418,786 220,200 2,006,053
IR B A ] (FizE36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) 25,276 70,043 — 95,319
RE Additions 241,003 174,322 — 415,325
HE Disposals (14,735) (19,880) — (34,615)
e (HizE7) Depreciation (Note 7) (245,502) (379,125) (60,586) (685,213)
ERIBEEE Currency translation differences (15,990) (40,306) (4,679) (60,975)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
RZE-NF+ZA=+—-H At 31 December 2018
BRA Cost 2,651,553 3,134,470 327,511 6,113,534
BitiTE Accumulated depreciation (2,294,434) (1,910,630) (172,576) (4,377,640)
REFE Net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
BZ-E-hE Year ended 31 December 2019
+=A=1+—-RHLEE
FUREFE Opening net book amount 357,119 1,223,840 154,935 1,735,894
RE Additions 1,320,939 733,519 75,506 2,129,964
HE Disposals (13,216) (38,353) (5,299) (56,868)
& (fiE7) Depreciation (Note 7) (181,389) (350,453) (59,506) (591,348)
BEHEMB AR (H7E33(d)  Deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 33(d)) — (38,042) — (38,042)
ERHEES Currency translation differences 5,606 (32,299) (846) (27,539)
FEREHEFE Closing net book amount 1,489,059 1,498,212 164,790 3,152,061
RZB-hE+=A=+—-H At 31 December 2019
A Cost 3,849,917 3,492,672 382,346 7,724,935
ZEtE Accumulated depreciation (2,360,858) (1,994,460) (217,556) (4,572,874)
REFE Net book amount 1,489,059 1,498,212 164,790 3,152,061
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15 % - BERRK®E 5 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
FPATHERA]  [HHERS ] [EERSERAX] R Depreciation included in “cost of sales”, “research
[ RITHRZ O ESTIT and development expenses”, “selling and distribution
expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”
are analysed as follows:
BE+-—A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ET T
UsbD usb
THERAR Cost of sales 69,606 100,749
ired 3 Research and development expenses 183,023 377,091
HE RN HERAX Selling and distribution expenses 23,513 24,901
— R R ATERF S General and administrative expenses 315,206 182,472
591,348 685,213
16 #HE 16 LEASES
() RESHBIRAREINSE (i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position:
R=ZB—NF RZZE—NF
+=—BA=+—H —H—H
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
ET e
UsbD usb
ERkEEE Right-of-use assets
B Buildings 1,041,791 67,005
HEaE Lease liabilities
RE Current 449,178 41,836
JERE Non-current 658,318 25,169
1,107,496 67,005
HE—_Z-hhE+-_A=+—BULEEFEFH Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
B E /1,547,455 T © ended 31 December 2019 were USD1,547,455.
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16 HE ®)

(ii)

(iii)

REE2HWSEREINEHE

(ii)

16 LEASES (Continued)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

BE+-HA=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hF ZZE-N\F
2019 2018
ET E
UsD Usb
FREEENEER (M:E7) Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (Note 7)
HER A Cost of sales 14,971 —
THE KD HERX Selling and distribution expenses 11,227 —
—M R ITHR R X General and administrative expenses 343,545 —
369,743 —
FERY (GEARYERA) (FizE9) Interest expense (included in
finance cost) (Note 9) (44,526) —
B HIE AR (M5E7)  Expense relating to short-term
leases (Note 7) 2,112,154 —

HE-_Z—hhF+-_A=Z+—BLFEHAENR
S m 4858 /5294,5973 T ©

REBENEEEE R EIAAR

AEBHEZERAELRE - BBEH—RE
EFHIR6EAE3IF - MERFIZEER - 2
B EZ T REGER RGN - REBEARANEE
BEZERERI - BEBHAETHEINERZL -
HEBETSRIEERIER -
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(iii)

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was USD294,597.

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 3 years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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17 HMEREE

17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ERE FOfE AR &5t
Computer License use
software rights Total
E E E
UsD UsD UusD
R=ZF—+tHE+=-A=+—H At31December 2017
B AR Cost 3,527,871 — 3,527,871
ZEtinE Accumulated depreciation (3,441,560) — (3,441,560)
REFE Net book amount 86,311 — 86,311
BE-E—N\F Year ended 31 December 2018
+ZA=+—HIEFE
FHRREFE Opening net book amount 86,311 — 86,311
UeBEMT B A A (FIE36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) 221,087 4,644,000 4,865,087
NE Additions 280,793 — 280,793
B (ME7) Amortisation (Note 7) (160,904) (25,800) (186,704)
EkinE =5 Currency translation differences 7,832 — 7,832
FREEFEE Closing net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
R=Z—N\E+=-A=+—H At31December 2018
B Cost 3,684,820 4,644,000 8,328,820
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (3,249,701) (25,800) (3,275,501)
REFE Net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
BE-_ZT—h&E Year ended 31 December 2019
+TZA=+—HLEFE
FREFE Opening net book amount 435,119 4,618,200 5,053,319
= Additions 199,940 — 199,940
i (M3E7) Amortisation (Note 7) (153,439) (309,600) (463,039)
BIEHEHE R A Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (88,743) (4,308,600) (4,397,343)
(BF#E33(d) (Note 33(d))
B = Currency translation differences 3,417 — 3,417
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 396,294 — 396,294
R=ZZB—NAFE+=HA=+—H At31December 2019
B Cost 3,871,598 — 3,871,598
REIE Accumulated depreciation (3,475,304) — (3,475,304)
REFE Net book amount 396,294 — 396,294

poe it
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)1/

17

Hitt L EE (&) 17 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
FTATSHERA ] [HEFAX]  [HEERDERI I X Amortisation included “cost of sales”, “research and
[ =M RATHR S | AT development expenses”, “selling and distribution

expenses” and “general and administrative expenses”
are analysed as follows:

BE+-HA=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NEF —ET-N\F
2019 2018
En E
UsD UsD
SHE A Cost of sales — 94
R Research and development expenses 422,043 128,135
HE kDX Selling and distribution expenses 1,501 10,000
— R R ATER R S General and administrative expenses 39,495 48,475
463,039 186,704
RS BEITSETENME REARZEHYTE% Research and development expenses are not generally
BAEBUARREEFRMAESNHY BARKRESE capitalised as they are primary considered as expenditures
WA ME2.9(0FEMI B E R IRLE - to upgrade existing technical knowhow, and do not fulfil

the strict capitalisation criteria as listed out in Note 2.9(c).
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18 & 18 INVENTORIES
®+=—BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—2-nE  —E\F
2019 2018
=T EJ
UsD usp
JRA L Raw materials 10,400,701 7,073,129
Pk i Work in progress 2,257,324 2,258,421
SR Finished goods 4,452,196 3,671,418
17,110,221 13,002,968
B TFEREREE Less: Provision for impairment of inventories (3,584,848) (3,021,355)
13,525,373 9,981,613
HE-ZE—NWF+-_B=T—"HIFE  WEIZARAX The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
Wt AHEXANTFER A 19,003,767 T (=F included in cost of sales amounted to USD19,003,767
— \4F : 25,576,9303=7T) ° (2018: USD25,576,930) for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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)1/
19 RERESNEMIA 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
R+=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-NF —ZE—N\F
2019 2018
E E
UsbD Usp
KBRS BRRRNEE Assets as per consolidated
statement of financial position
RESER AT RS MEE Financial assets at amortised cost
— B 5 BIGRIE — Trade receivables 7,304,130 11,514,103
— B RHEMEREIR — Notes and other receivables 3,278,461 992,101
- RTBERNTNER — Loan to an associate 5,035,836 —
— ZRFIRITIFR — Restricted bank deposit 519,266 5,000,000
—RekReEEY — Cash and cash equivalents 70,902,673 54,962,324
. 87,040.366 72,468,528
BREEEAFEARNSBEE Finandal assets at fair value through profit or loss
— EBEEERAFEARY — Financial assets at fair value through
,,,,,,, eMEE . pofitorloss ... 14596569 18246807
101,636,935 90,715,335
RBLREHERARNAS Liabilities as per consolidated
statement of financial position
R ERR AT RS mAa E Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— S ENFBERENEE — Trade and bills payables 9,220,640 4,089,422
— ERTEA R EMEMNFIE — Accruals and other payables 4,714,754 2,369,824
— IRITER — Bank borrowings — 5,335,126
—HEAaE — Lease liabilities 1,107,496 —
e 15,042,890 11,794,372
FERBREATEARENERMARE Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss
BSOS cContingentconsiderationpayable = 1,507,404
15,042,890 13,301,776
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20 ESEWREIE - BAREREMER 20 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
S| RECEIVABLES
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —E-N\F
2019 2018
M5 E E
Note UsbD usbD
E=FEHEMGIA Trade receivables from third parties (a) 6,357,934 8,609,948
FaHE 7 B 5 EMGRIE Trade receivable from a related party
(MIEE37(e)) (Note 37(e)) () 358,361 4,885,596
I NCI= ) e O Trade receivables from associates
(MI5E37(e)) (Note 37(e)) () 2,541,942 —
BB S RBGIE R EREE Less: Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (1,954,107) (1,981,441)
HPWAHOR ¥R Tradereceivables—net 7304130 11,514,103
TESRIA Prepayments (b) 4,708,149 8,371,901
U Notes receivable (b) 135,994 66,190
F=FRe REAEWEIA Deposits and other receivables from
third parties (b) 2,035,368 898,156
RaHs 7 e N H M FEGRIE Deposit and other receivables from
(FIFE37(F) related parties (Note 37(f)) (b) 522,747 27,755
B N A E PR UREOR Other receivables from associates
(MI5E37(F) (Note 37(f)) (b) 584,352 —
e S 7,986,610 9,364,002
Sk FEBNEAZE Less: Non-current portion (1,174,419) (41,750)
14,116,321 20,836,355
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)1

20 EZEWFRE  BAAREREMERRK

15 (48)
B
@  EHBEKHE

RZZB-NE+-A=+—8 EREZEHNEF UK

20 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note:
(@) Trade receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the trade

BRI AT - receivables based on invoice date is as follows:
W+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-hEF —E—N\F
2019 2018
=T E
uUsD Usb
LIR30K Within 30 days 3,449,092 2,950,429
31E260K 31 to 60 days 1,987,818 563,046
61E90K 61 to 90 days 373,062 2,600,183
91E180K 91 to 180 days 702,199 154,937
181E365K 181 to 365 days 1,033,196 5,465,007
HBiA365K Over 365 days 1,712,870 1,761,942
9,258,237 13,495,544

FEERTEFPHNERAPBER0E1B0ORTE - KT
—NF+-A=+—8 " #2,684,000% L (ZT—N\F:
6,985,000% 7T) ME 5 EMFIEE &8 BHEA KRR E (F =
3.1(b)  EASEANSEVES KU BRENELRS
RIBBEACE - BRIMENSFE R LAKE o
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The Group’s credit terms granted to customers generally
ranged from 30 to 180 days. As at 31 December 2019,
trade receivables of approximately USD2,684,000 (2018:
USD6,985,000) were past due but not impaired (Note 3.1(b)).
These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based on
past experience, the overdue amounts can be recovered.
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20 ESEWREIE - BAREREMER 20 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
IH (%) RECEIVABLES (Continued)
BisE - (48) Note: (Continued)
(a) E S RrEWGRIE (8) (@)  Trade receivables (Continued)
AEEE SRBGBERERENESINT ¢ Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of the

trade receivables are as follows:

R+=A=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\E
2019 2018
=T ES
UsbD usD
n—A—AR As at 1 January 1,981,441 1,286,088
ERE Provision for impairment 19,971 759,318
EH®RE =R Currency translation differences (47,305) (63,965)
W+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 1,954,107 1,981,441
BAZEERERORE S EUFIENREE - AEEWE The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amounts
MESEBIFE TR R EMEEMREE - of trade receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral

or other credit enhancements over these balances.

AEEE FREYRENREAEREAFERSE - WA TIE The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables
MEETE - approximate their fair values and are denominated in the

following currencies:

R+=A=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-hF —T-)N\F
2019 2018
T T
usD Usb
AR RMB 4,498,689 8,509,523
ET usbD 2,515,834 2,693,399
Hith Others 289,607 311,181
7,304,130 11,514,103
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)1

20 BEZEWRE - AIREREAERK
5 ()

fiaE - ()

(b)

TENFRIE - FEARERR K L o R R IR
RZZE-NE+ZA=+—0  BENREEHEEEERRK

TE$78 H 891,600,000 7T (=2 —/\4F : 5,500,000%7T) ©

REETENFIR - B N E A R IAR RE E R AL
FEEE - WEBATIEHE :

20 TRADE, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

Prepayments, notes receivable and other receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of prepayments
includes an amount of USD1,600,000 (2018: USD5,500,000)

in relation to future research and development projects.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, notes
receivable and other receivables approximate their fair values

and are mainly denominated in the following currencies:

R+=B=+—8

As at 31 December
—E-hEF T )\F
2019 2018
T ES
uUsD Usb
ET usD 2,063,130 5,653,546
AR RMB 5,460,410 3,370,806
Hh Others 463,070 339,650
7,986,610 9,364,002

HAb YRR I EBEE E - AEE W ERA E TR
TERPER -
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Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The Group
does not hold any collateral as security.
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21

BRBRFEAFEARNEMEE

21

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-hE —E-N\F

2019 2018

E E

Usb uUsb

JEEMES (H:E@a)) Unlisted fund (Note (a)) 814,534 1,437,599
EEMRAFESH Unlisted equity securities (Note (b),(c),(d),

(FFEED) ~ (©) ~ (d) * (e) K (f) (e) and (f)) 13,782,035 16,809,208

14,596,569 18,246,807

RZZE—+FMANE  AEEBRARME15000RERSE
BLEAERROR —RIELTES (ERASHESEM)
%% 1,500,000% 7T « R FEEATFESREILA (K=
33) HEZFT-NF+-A=1+—BLEE AFEEBE
623,065370 (—ZF— /\fF : 331,351370) RERA IR R

o

KRB FRBENFELETRARFERLUMZCRID A
RAR (—RRPEREMRIOAT  TBEFEEEES
—UABEREETE) #98.89% MM - fim BB ILARERRE 2
HERFANLT  BZRETRASENOREN LEF
8% HIF B AR EB B SR - R=F—NAF+ A=
TR ERAFEERFEIRARXFE(ME3I) AT (ZE
—NF+ZA=+—H:F)-

Note:

On 6 April 2017, the Group made an investment of
USD1,500,000 in an unlisted fund by way of a subscription
for 15,000 non-voting participating redeemable shares, which
are registered in the Cayman Islands. The fair value is within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3). During year
ended 31 December 2019, a fair value loss of USD623,065
(2018: USD331,351) is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The unlisted equity security acquired in 2017 represents
8.89% interest in Mainsweb Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited, a company incorporated in the PRC
being principally engaged in the operation of a one-stop
cross-border e-commerce platform in the PRC. The investment
is redeemable at the consideration paid by the Group plus
an interest income of 8% per annum less dividends received
if Mainsweb is unable to be listed within 5 years from the
date of investment. As at 31 December 2019, the fair value
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (Note 3.3) is nil (31
December 2018: Nil).
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ERERRAFEARNTRMEE (@)

BieE : (A8

(© RIZF-N\FZAKRENIE FTRAZEF BN RIETE
REERAR (DRIEF]) 8943.4% 5% - ZARRTE
AT - FERFRBHETEN  HEETREBERE
TEMRTFEESR - ZREEARARTZEMBRRISMITRE
JNELFYEF RSB GRE W2 ) TS ERIEE G T
AEAEETHHREARE20E 8T (143,166,000
ZEIT) M EFF10%HF B AREE WS FLAER - A
FEEATFESREIRAN (RIFE33) - BEZZE-—NF+
ZA=Z+—BLEFE  AFETEZEH(ZT-N\F: &)

d RZE-NFENA=+—H KRXFALHKE,800,000
ET(REETE=ZH) WERREHES MK LHAF]
SMIT Investment Limited ([ SMIT Investment]) K _ETH1E
Fof% - {ESMIT Investment#710.11% 4% © SMIT Investment
R—EREERRAR - BBRHE2ENE R FFEAIBOXPAY
International Inc. ([&F X T ]) 498.37% RIEMNIRE - &
SN REENBH I NRBREFRAEERERES - AQ
RIFITESR  ARATERERBRFEZR L EREESMIT

InvestmentByE = °

RZZ—AFNATHER » SMIT Investment 235 1B 5 kR A
FSMIT InvestmentPTis & F 2 MBI FEAX M H B TR E
BEHELR - REETRE  AARIFMFE T AREDR
1% B WA SMIT Investment(T gt - R—T—NF+
—AZ=Z+—H " AF{E2,063,938 K T EAFESHEIMAA
(RfiE3.3) - BE-T-NF+-_A=+—BILFE 2

FEE1E3,536,062 K TN ER A R N FER

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

()

The unlisted equity security acquired in February 2018
represents approximately 3.4% interest in StorArt Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“StorArt”), a company incorporated in
the PRC being principally engaged in development of flash
memory main controller integrated circuits which are mainly
supplied to the communications, consumer electronics and
data processing industries. The investment is redeemable in
the event of any of the prescribed conditions set out in the
investment agreement signed between SMIT Shenzhen, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and StorArt at the
consideration of RMB20 million (equivalent to approximately
USD3,166,000) paid by the Group plus an interest income
of 10% per annum less dividends received. The fair value
is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 3.3).
There was no change in fair value during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

On 31 August 2018, the Company has acquired unlisted
preference shares of SMIT Investment Limited (“SMIT
Investment”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands,
at a total consideration of USD1,800,000 from certain third
parties, representing approximately 10.11% interest in
SMIT Investment. SMIT Investment is an investment holding
company which holds, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
an investment in approximately 8.37% equity interest of
IBOXPAY International Inc. (“iBoxpay"). iBoxpay is leading
mobile payment services provider and an existing customer
of the Group. Mr Huang Xueliang, the executive director, the
CEO and controlling shareholder of the Company is also the
director of SMIT Investment.

On 17 June 2019, SMIT Investment has completed a
repurchase of its preference shares from certain of its
shareholders by way of distribution of the preference
shares of iBoxpay originally held by SMIT Investment. Upon
completion of this repurchase, the Company held less than
1% equity interest of iBoxpay and did not hold any equity
interest of SMIT Investment. As at 31 December 2019, the fair
value of USD2,063,938 was within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During the year ended 31 December
2019, a fair value loss of USD3,536,062 is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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ERERRAFEARNERMEE (@)

BiAE -

(e)

(&)

RZZE—NFEZANR KRR EWB A RBEMEBIRE
HESensel, Inc. ([Sensel ) E&FEFTH—H(RERER
#)(KEBBEWZH)]) - 7e T $Sensel#2,000,0005 7T
B& ° Sensel 2 —RIAXE AEMKBLBITRMRR] - &
BEDEREN - ZRMRAIBEFTR - BETENNESE
B RBRIMERIT S - Z R F TR - BB ERRIE(E
BEE ) HE5RE T 2,000,000 7T AJ 8 #5K Sensel &
AT S B S AR ) AT H B R o

RZZT—N\F+—ANA  BHEERERZEE T (15
MBE D) - BB E Sensel (ELR ([IREEE |) E—#5%
5,000,000 TR A © R + 3 Sensel TR —ZF—/\
¢ BBl ES R 2,000,000 7T 7] AL ZH R

ZEE B SERC R AR AR A Sensel (B TR - MRIREEAR
Tﬁ%m BB BT AR AR A R RIE TR 2 PRIEER
¥ Sensel WREVES BT - IREBE T E - BIMEBIES
5 E E R G Sensel #79.22 % 1S ©

ATFEEATESHEIRAN (HFE3.3) c BEZT—IF+
ZA=+—HLFE  AFEFIES77,355F T trA IE
KAER(ZT—N\F : J#81,295,117%F7T) ©

RZZE-NAFRA-+—H  AAFUEREARK

10,000 000%(*@%?‘\1 466,964 7T) ME =77 WEKH

B A B S B9 R DRI S A B T A R A R (D) /9
0.99% & ## - ﬂ%w&ﬁﬁﬁ%@EIR%Q%EDA;X#W#E@
M - ARRNITES - ERATERERKREEZR &
ENRECEE R_ZE-NEF+_A=+—H 2AFE
1,433,445 X TEATEZREIRN (RHF3.3) - BEZ

—NEF+ZA=+ALFBFE - HEATERZNE
BRFA SRR

21 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(e)

On 8 February 2018, SMIT HK, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed a USD2,000,000 investment in
Sensel, Inc. (“Sensel”) pursuant to a note purchase agreement
entered into between, among others, SMIT HK and Sensel (the
“Note Purchase Agreement”). Sensel is an advanced sensory
technology company based in the United States, which owns
the pressure grid technology that combines industry-leading
performance and the extra dimension of control in the form
of force sensitivity. Upon completion of the transaction, SMIT
HK subscribed for a USD2,000,000 promissory note which
may be converted into common or preferred shares of Sensel

pursuant to the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement.

On 9 November 2018, SMIT HK completed a further
USD5,000,000 investment in Sensel by way of preferred
stock purchase (the “Stock Purchase”) pursuant to a stock
purchase agreement (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”).
Simultaneously, the USD2,000,000 convertible promissory
note issued by Sensel and previously subscribed by SMIT HK
in February 2018 was deemed converted into preferred shares
in Sensel at completion of the Stock Purchase, and the entire
amount owed to SMIT HK under such convertible promissory
note was tendered to Sensel in exchange for preferred stock
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement. Upon completion
of the Stock Purchase, SMIT HK held approximately 9.22%
interest in Sensel on fully diluted basis.

The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see
Note 3.3). During the year ended 31 December 2019, a fair
value loss of USD877,355 is recognised in the consolidated
income statements (2018: gain of USD1,295,117).

On 21 May 2019, the Company has acquired 0.99%
equity interest of Shenzhen Giga Design Automation
Co., Ltd ("Giga”), a company incorporated in the PRC, at
a total consideration of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
USD1,466,964) from a third party. Giga and its subsidiaries
are mainly engaged in the development of EDA design
software. Mr. Huang Xueliang, the executive director,
the CEO and controlling shareholder of the Company is
also a director of Giga. As at 31 December 2019, the fair
value of USD1,433,445 is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see Note 3.3). During the financial year ended 31
December 2019, no fair value gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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22 ZRFBITER

RZZE—AF+-_A=+—"H8 SZRHEEITER
519,266% 7 (—ZZ— )\ : 5,000,000%70) ERNIETE
RITIRPRHBIEAASERITHERKAR -

XRERITERABENK1.3% (ZF—NF -
3.13%) RERFAI S - XRHBITHEROFEEEELQF
BERE  WAARE(ZZ—\F : EXT)FHE-

23 RERRATEEY

22 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

As at 31 December 2019, restricted bank deposit
amounting to USD519,266 (2018: USD5,000,000),
was held in designated bank accounts as collateral for
banking facilities of the Group.

Restricted bank deposit earns interests at fixed rate
of 1.3% (2018: 3.13%). The carrying amount of
restricted bank deposit approximates its fair value and is
denominated in RMB (2018: USD).

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

R+=-BA=+—H
As at 31 December

—E-hE —ZE—N\F

2019 2018

T ZET

UsD usb

RITIRE Cash at banks 70,863,724 54,920,645
FEHe Cash on hand 38,949 41,679
70,902,673 54,962,324

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

224



e MR R MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23

BERBRELEEY &)

R MREEFEVHRAEREQAFERE - WATT

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents

HEEEHE - approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:
R+=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—®¥-NE T )\F
2019 2018
=T ES
UsD usp
ET usD 40,230,894 33,197,678
AR RMB 27,235,434 16,767,839
BT EUR 1,894,696 1,226,072
BT HK$ 1,439,724 3,627,966
Hh Others 101,925 142,769
70,902,673 54,962,324

FREAFNARE T EEREBRAEMEY - AW - R
BCRFEARKLMEBIMNEEIRIEH) K (AEE - EE RN
FEEIRM T ) - ANE B ] 5 B R0 1 P B R O 22
HHRTT BARBHBAEMER - BRNZER
MIRE MR EEBYMREER27,162,520F% L (=8
— )\ : 16,696,73337T) °

RZZE—NF+A=+—H A&EEE#57,631,503
EL (=T —/\4F : 43,519,2403%70) IR & MRS (B
1 5%519,266% 7L (= — /\F : 5,000,000 7T) (FI5E
22) MZRHRITERFRIEPEIRARITRSE - A
FAECHNEZZIINEEH -

RMB maintained in the PRC is not freely convertible into
other currencies. However, under the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through authorised banks
to conduct foreign exchange business in the PRC.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents to
which these restrictions apply is USD27,162,520 (2018:
UsD16,696,733).

As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposit of the Group amounting
to USD57,631,503 (2018: USD43,519,240) and
UsD519,266 (2018:USD5,000,000) (Note 22),
respectively, were deposited with banks in the PRC
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign
exchange control.
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24 EIEFREH

BEFFSHEERBEINAT

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities

is as follows:

R+=—A=+—-8
As at 31 December
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
ES E
UsD UusD
FEEASHEE ¢ Deferred income tax assets:
— B 12ME8 B REIR —to be realised within 12 months 764,325 1,094,123
— BRBE12ME A EIR — to be realised after more than 12 months 2,453,908 1,676,566
N N e e . 3218233 2,770,689
BIEFSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—BR1I2EARGEE — to be settled within 12 months — (46,440)
— BRBE12EAKESR — to be settled after more than 12 months — (646,290)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, . (692,730)
EEATSHEEFE Deferred income tax assets, net 3,218,233 2,077,959

The net movement on the deferred income tax asset is as

follows:

—E-NF —ZE—N\F

2019 2018

E E

Usb UsD

n—HA—H At 1 January 2,077,959 1,022,564
W BEF B A a] (FH:E36) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) — 52,227
sFALGRE B (MiFE12) Credited to consolidated profit or loss (Note 12) 933,358 1,069,528
BIEHEME A (FIFE33(d) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33(d)) 255,704 —
EEME xR Currency translation differences (48,788) (66,360)
B+ZA=+—H At 31 December 3,218,233 2,077,959
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IEFEFTISHL (4)

BLEFEHREENBENES ORZ BEHER KA
ERERARASER) IT

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

N

Movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction is as follows:

RIEFSHEE Deferred income tax assets:
R
wE Bk BEEE Hte &t
Accelerated
tax
depreciation ~ Provisions  Tax losses Other Total
E 7 ET ET E ET
UsD usD UsD UsD UsD
R-E-N\F At 1 January 2018
—A—8 9,730 889,927 — 136,597 1,036,254
UEEHT B A A Acquisition of subsidiaries — 357,200 400,480 457 758,137
(nBRB),/ A (Charged)/credited to consolidated
RAEE profit or loss (3,440) (144,110) 1,265,437 (58,000) 1,059,887
BHHEER Currency translation differences (345) (35,306) (26,166) (4,496) (66,313)
—N\F At 31 December 2018
+-A=+—H 5,945 1,067,711 1,639,751 74,558 2,787,965
—nEF At 1 January 2019
—A—H 5,945 1,067,711 1,639,751 74,558 2,787,965
BIEHEMBART  Deemed disposal of subsidiaries — (134,074) (256,512) — (390,586)
(% &)/ &tA (Charged)/credited to consolidated
reiEs profit or loss (2,812) 215,790 710,812 (54,362) 869,428
BHHE =R Currency translation differences (48) (13,247) (34,791) (488) (48,574)
R-ZZE—-h&F At 31 December 2019
+=A=+—H 3,085 1,136,180 2,059,260 19,708 3,218,233

EEFSREE I AEENHIBEERER - EAREE

BARRERBGEFEBRAAEEERR -

Y R R E R B U A HYE5 182,709,575k (=
F 1 418,518%70) M ARFERELEFSHIEES49,3813%

Bk A A5 LA
—N

T(ZE—N\F :104,630E7T) N (BRZE-_=FF
wm) R _E-hER_FT-N\F+_A=+—H K&
%lléﬂiﬁmijﬂiﬁ&w JEFTISTREE »

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
Other than the unrecognised deferred income tax assets
of USD549,381 (2018: USD104,630) in respect of losses
amounting to USD2,709,575 (2018: USD418,518) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income
which will expire in 2023, the Group did not have other
material unrecognised deferred income tax assets as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.
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ELERBH (&)

R-B-NAE+-A=+—0 KEETHRB IR
RIEZ= i B SNEM A S IR A R R BB AR (i R 5T
IREIEATS I B ER#%1,248,0005E 7T (—T— \4F ¢
1,601,000 7T) 414 ARY155,482,0007T (FHE A K
24,964,0003%750) (ZZF—/\4F : AR%203,447,0007TC
(FEF4932,013,000%T)) - FBHZS AT +HE
MBARRBIEBREARE - EREBEEREHEINES
EHRAERT  TERIRARBEEEINERE S -

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the retained earnings of the
Group's PRC subsidiary not yet remitted to holding
companies incorporated outside of the PRC, for
which deferred income tax liability of approximately
UsD1,248,000 (2018: USD1,601,000) had not been
provided, were approximately RMB155,482,000
(equivalent to approximately USD24,964,000) (2018:
RMB203,447,000 (equivalent to approximately
USD32,013,000)). Such earnings are expected to be
retained by the PRC subsidiary for reinvestment purposes
and would not be remitted to a foreign investor in the
foreseeable future based on management’s estimation of
overseas funding requirements.

RIEFEHIAE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERERE WBEKEE Hits &t
Acquired
Decelerated tax intangible
depreciation assets Other Total
ET EA EYA ES
usD usD usD usD
RZZ—-\F—A—H At 1 January 2018 13,690 — — 13,690
W BB A 7 Acquisition of subsidiaries — 696,600 9,310 705,910
(GTA)/ 3B BE%AEE  (Credited)/charged to consolidated
profit or loss (10,005) (3,870) 4,234 (9,641)
BRBEERTE Currency translation differences — — 47 47
RZE—)\F At 31 December 2018
+=-A=1+—H 3,685 692,730 13,591 710,006
R=ZE-hF—-H—H At 1 January 2019 3,685 692,730 13,591 710,006
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries — (646,290) — (646,290)
(GtA)/ kR B (Credited)/charged to consolidated
frAEEE profit or loss (3.685) (46,440) (13,805) (63,930)
EHnEEE Currency translation differences = - 214 214
RZZ-NF At 31 December 2019
+=A=+-8 = = = =
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25 BFE 25 GOODWILL

TR G

BEF R
(MF=E (i) (£ (ii)) ast

Rapid

verification

system and

CAM software
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
ET E S
usbD uUsD uUsD
RZE—N\F—H—H At 1 January 2018 6,570,079 — 6,570,079
BB A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 15,896,824 15,896,824
HEMmEETE Currency translation differences (314,949) — (314,949)

R=ZZ—N\F+=-A=+—HK At31December 2018 and

—E-h&—A—H 1 January 2019 6,255,130 15,896,824 22,151,954

BIEHEMBE AR (F15E33(d))  Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

(Note 33(d))

— (15,896,824)  (15,896,824)

BERRME =T Currency translation differences (101,321) — (101,321)
R=ZF-AF+=A=+-—H At 31 December 2019 6,153,809 — 6,153,809

AR¥42,930,000 TR EREHARAR _ETHFMA
WIESMITRY IR E % - WA ERAFASE - i
B FHESMITARYIFTE E RO TARRRLEN RSB o 1
—E-AFE+TZA=ZTR  ASETEBCUHRTRRER
WIRSELEMN ((ReEEBN ) ETRN KRBT EEE
A o

ReEAEMNAIWRESEDREEREBM EEETE - &
HEARBEE R BHEMNRE T F RO BIRE TR
REMEFRRK20% (ZF—/\F : 20%) WEERE - 5A
FIBER R AT ATRE IR R R MR ERARRA XS A R A BB
BEZ-NFTA=1T-HLFE  KANKRIERE
BEEER (AMAFEAMNESFEBREE) B0% (ZF—
NEF 0%) - AEHFENERHRSREIERM0% (ZF—N
F o 0%) MIERZIETHR - ZHRMHEE AW KA
TERHEE - W AR ANBRDIRBBERERE
B EHTISEROTBIETHE -

Note:

Goodwill of RMB42,930,000 arose from the application of
acquisition accounting to the acquisition of SMIT Shenzhen
by the Company in April 2005 and has indefinite useful
lives. The goodwill amount relates to the value of expected
future economic benefits of the business operated by SMIT
Shenzhen. As at 31 December 2019, management of the
Group had conducted a review of the cash-generating unit
("CGU") of CAM business and determined that there is no

impairment of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and a discount rate
of 20% (2018: 20%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks related to the relevant operation. The
revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual growth rate
over the five-year projection period) used is 0% (2018: 0%)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 0%
(2018: 0%). The volume of sales in each period is the main
driver for revenue and costs. The growth in revenue and the
relevant costs are estimated based on past performance and

management'’s expectations for the market development.
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24 BHEE)

BiRE - ()

@)

(i)

(&)

HEZE—ZE-NF+-A=+—RALFENRRE LF501E
AE - JRESRDHEEEREE - HEE_T A%t
ZAZt - HLEEFENTRAREEA FEREXGFE TR 1E
B AIRE SR RBEREE

15,896,824 LM ER GBI R4 (BE) BRAR (AR
AMBAR) R=_F—N\F+—AKEES2C  THEAERT
ERFH - BB EES2CHMEE EBNTERRRLEN R
B - AEEERECHRERERZNAERMEBORSE
EBADETTIRG REE W R ERE

RIRGRE R TSI @ E L BRI AT € 58 T 1248
BEENRFEREERAN ([AFERLERE]) #E -
HERAREEN T ATBREA BN R AR FESKF
WE=R - ATHEEBEERNCE IR E R NRZE A F A
WUBBENBEReRERA  ERAURReRERA R
19% BEIR KT o AR X AT AR R Kk KM LR
EREENELERR BE-Z-AF+-_A=+—BHIE
B EANKREREAFEREX (AFEASNEESF
BRR) A62.7% - AFHRNEHER S RETHERA3% /0
R RFETHE - SBRNEEARSRAANEE
HERE - W R ANERDREBERARERE
HTISE R TEHBEITIEET -
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25 GOODWILL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

0]

(ii)

(Continued)

If the discount rate for the year ended 31 December 2019
had been increased by 50 basis points, the recoverable
amount would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth CAGR for the year ended 31
December 2019 had been lowered by one percentage point,
the recoverable amounts would still exceed its carrying

amount.

Goodwill of USD15,896,824 arose from the acquisition
of S2C by SMIT Systemic (HK) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, in November 2018 and has indefinite useful
lives. The goodwill amount relates to the value of expected
future economic benefits of the business operated by S2C.
Management of the Group had conducted a review of the
CGU of rapid verification system and software business and
determined that there is no impairment of the goodwill.

Recoverable amount of the rapid verification system and
software business CGU is determined using fair value less
cost of disposal (“FVLCOD") of the underlying assets. The
valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
due to unobservable inputs used in the valuation. The fair
value was determined by applying discounted cash flow
model on post-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 19%. The discount rate used
is post-tax and reflects specific risks related to the relevant
operation. The revenue growth CAGR (i.e. compound annual
growth rate over the five-year projection period) used is
62.7% for the year ended 31 December 2019. Cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a weighted
average growth rate of 3%. The volume of sales in each
period is the main driver for revenue and costs. The growth
in revenue and the relevant costs are estimated based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market

development.
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24 BHE(E)

BT - ()

(i)

(&)

HEE-ZE-NF+-A=+—RALFENRRE LF501E
AE o JRESRDSEBEREE - MR OFRAMAN
BRI EIE R R EGF TS0 EER - ATk RS BEBE
BREE -

RZZ-—AGE+ZA=+—8  AE£EHESEHBRRE
B SRR E - R AN RRRE RS ERFER
REEEBMMEE - Bt - THEHER15,896,824K T
2 PERMEER SO RESE 2 (HT3E33(d) °

25 GOODWILL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

If the discount rate for the year ended 31 December 2019
had been increased by 50 basis points, the recoverable
amount would still exceed its carrying amount. If the
forecasted revenue growth rate had been lowered by 50 basis
points for each year in the five-year projection period, the
recoverable amount would still exceed its carrying amount.

On 31 December 2019, there was a deemed disposal of
S2C Shanghai, an indirectly-held subsidiary of the Group, to
which the goodwill in relation to rapid verification system and
software business CGU was attributed. As a result, goodwill
of USD15,896,824 was derecognised and included in the

calculation of gain on deemed disposal (Note 33(d)).

N
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L
26 BARRMDRE 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ZER#E ZEREE R RE
Number of Normal value
ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares premium
ES ET
uUsD UsD
VERE ¢ Authorised:
- \F—H—H"
—E-NFRZE-NF Ordinary share of USD0.00002
+=-—A=+—H each at 1 January 2018,
FRLMEE0.000023 TR E @A 31 December 2018 and 2019 2,500,000,000 50,000 —
BITRER Issued and fully paid:
RZE—N\F—A—H At 1 January 2018 307,015,388 6,140 98,362,681
T AR (Ffd7ka) Exercise of share options (Note a) 9,278,337 186 3,422,799
RZT—NFRARN Dividends relating to 2017
—E—tLFHEERE paid in June 2018 — — (802,533)
R=ZF-NF+=A=+-—H At 31 December 2018 316,293,725 6,326 100,982,947
TEB IR (Miska) Exercise of share options (Note a) 1,924,136 38 928,234
REZZB—-AFEXAIRM Dividends relating to 2018
—ZE-)\FHEHERE paid in June 2019 — — (405,414)
R=ZB-AF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2019 318,217,861 6,364 101,505,767

BiRE -

TR A

REBEZEZT-—NAF+_A=+—RHILFE 1,924,1360%
fe4E (= ZF— N\ : 9,278,337 M) BITEURBAR
71,924,136/% (ZZ—)\4F : 9,278,337/%) L@k - KBS
78,4450 (ZF—)\F : 977,494F ) - H38%F L (=
T— \FF 1863 7T) st AR - M458R78,407% T (ZZF—
NEE 977,308 7T) st ARk (7 )s E R o Bt - 849,827 T
ZE—N\F 1 2,445,491%7T) B 8 ARG AERO R
BERERNEER RZT—NAF+=-A=+—0 " &#
37,782,554 (== — /\fF : 40,319,288) 13 BEARAE ) M AR TIE
(M$3E32.1) °

——@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note:

(a)

Exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1,924,136
options were exercised (2018: 9,278,337 options) to
subscribe for 1,924,136 ordinary shares (2018: 9,278,337
shares) in the Company at a consideration of USD78,445
(2018: USD977,494) of which USD38 (2018: USD186) was
credited to share capital and the balance of USD78,407
(2018: USD977,308) was credited to the share premium
account. An amount of USD849,827 (2018: USD2,445,491)
was therefore, as a result, transferred from the share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account. As at 31
December 2019, there were in total 37,782,554 options
(2018: 40,319,288) remained outstanding (Note 32.1).
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27 1#E

(a)

SEEER

WRIBA SR B E TR B A KT A &) ([ B8
AR EEERANRTE - PENBERREF
ARBEEEVBRRATER AEEEBIRY
BN 10% BHIEAE B (BRIFZRMHR
EEZEREAMRARN50%) o REIFTEATIRA]
HEEBRERSEMNBA LR RARHE - ALK
RAGBERBRAE - BREERIOE O
ZERETERERCRSE  BREREBRT
RERMNBEERRE R4S - TR ERR
SRETIADIK

EETRBBETEATHETRRMNBARBEF
ERTREEE - NFEES ARLRR TS
BEATBHEEIALBERMESE - P EK
BARKETEAGEE  TERBRHEREG
BAEATENBARMBRA  HELKRERS
BERERIE  YEFAHMESETE (BT
EERGBRENFREHRTE LR EMBAD
25%) °

RIBGEERER  BEAREBFABBEELE
FRER10% ERIRE R - EERBERED
ERRASBAL

27 RESERVES

(a)

Statutory reserve

According to the provisions of the articles of
association of the Group's subsidiaries located in
the PRC (“PRC subsidiaries”), the PRC subsidiaries
shall first set aside 10% of the entity’s profit
attributable to owners after tax as indicated
in their statutory financial statements for the
statutory surplus reserve (except where the reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered share
capital) in each year. The PRC subsidiaries may also
make appropriations from its profit attributable
to shareholders to discretionary surplus reserve,
provided it is approved by a resolution passed in
a shareholders’ general meeting. These reserves
cannot be used for purposes other than those for
which they are created and are not distributable as
cash dividends without the prior approval obtained
from shareholders in a shareholders’ general
meeting under specific circumstances.

When the statutory surplus reserve is not
sufficient to make good for any losses of the PRC
subsidiaries from previous years, the current year
profit attributable to owners shall be used to make
good the losses before any allocations are set aside
for the statutory surplus reserve. The statutory
surplus reserve, the discretionary surplus reserve
and the share premium of the PRC subsidiaries
may be converted into share capital of the PRC
subsidiaries provided it is approved by a resolution
passed in a shareholders’ general meeting and
meets other regulatory requirements with the
provision that the ending balance of the statutory
surplus reserve does not fall below 25% of the
registered share capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan,
Taiwan companies shall set aside 10% of their
statutory net income each year for legal reserve,
until the reserve balance has reached the paid-in
share capital amount.

N
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)1/

27 f#RfEE®

(b)

(@

(d)

LURAD B ER AV R # R

RZZENGFZA AEBHEM—BRMD
(=TT NFRktarEl]) RState Micro
Technology Corporation ([ SMIT Corporation J) (7
—T-RFt+—At+=BKEA(EH]) A
REERQRNREEIRAR) #%16,936,1350%
LB (EFAMARE) - URBFT 1817 - R
T-ZEFNA B ((EFg)#EET=
T N\FERMEE - BHEEITHEBREE LN
16,523,060 £33,459,195 R ik - M=ZF
—FZR EEEHEBIT S N\FERME
2 A EITH B BAR S E E — 215 06,160,000
i 239,619,195 % A% °

—T-AFAATRBE  tEAEAN D 0 &K
A RBEESMIT Corporationt) — T N\ FRL (A5
BEXAREERERETS ([BXAREEA
& ETEl]) - W EEREIRER B TIEAT »

DA s A H AR D RERE MR BB FE 323
Zo
CENE

REHE B BRNE AR EEREEBRROEIM

o

it

B

NEFRAHFERBIEREANEANB QRN
ZIRME(E68,077,551 X tEBEANKBARNA
HEREEEZFHEE -
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27 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(@

(d)

Share-based payment reserve

In February 2008, the Group adopted a share plan
("2008 Share Plan”) and State Micro Technology
Corporation (“SMIT Corporation”), the ultimate
holding company of companies of the Group
before the completion of a reorganisation on
13 November 2015 (“Reorganisation”), reserved
16,936,135 ordinary shares, split adjusted, for
issuance under the plan. In September 2010, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to increase
the number of ordinary shares for issuance by
16,523,060 to 33,459,195 ordinary shares.
In February 2011, the Board approved an
amendment to the 2008 Share Plan to further
increase the number of ordinary shares for
issuance by 6,160,000 to 39,619,195 ordinary
shares.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Plan”) as part of the Reorganisation with certain
modifications of the terms of such options.

Details of the equity settled share-based
transactions are disclosed in Note 32.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve as at each reporting date
represented the additional contributions received
from the shareholders.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount of
investment in subsidiaries of USD68,077,551
acquired as a result of the Reorganisation and
the carrying amount of combined capital of the
acquired subsidiaries.
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28

poe it

EZRNREREMNE 28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
R+=—BA=+—~H
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E-)\F
2019 2018
ET e
usD usp
ENE=FE57A Trade payables to third parties 6,757,116 4,089,422
JERTEE 2N EE SF0E (MizE37(e)) Trade payable to associates (Note 37(e)) 732,639 —
FEfT =% Bills payables 1,730,885 —
9,220,640 4,089,422
RN-ZT—HE+—A=+—0  BEXZHHYZE5E As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the
NERIE R ENEZEEERNBREBE ST T - trade and bills payables based on invoice date is as
follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—-nE  ZF)\F
2019 2018
=T B
uUsD usb
LRR30K Less than 30 days 8,295,499 2,000,216
31£290K 31 to 90 days 243,137 1,205,815
91E 180K 91 to 180 days — 517,492
181E365K 181 to 365 days 632,208 324,153
FBiA365K Over 365 days 49,796 41,746
9,220,640 4,089,422
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)1/
28 EZRNFEREMRE @) 28 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)
REEE SN AR EN RN REEEE A FER The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and
A WATIEEE bills payables approximate their fair values and are

denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—A=+-—-8

As at 31 December
—E-NEF —E—N\HF
2019 2018
ES E
UsD uUsb
AR RMB 8,413,259 2,044,541
= usb 807,381 1,952,887
i Others — 91,994
9,220,640 4,089,422
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29

I ERRHMENRERSNERE

poe it

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

R+=-A=+-8
As at 31 December

—ZE—-hE —E-N\F

2019 2018

ES E

UsD UspD

FERTSARE (HIFE()) Contingent consideration payable (Note (i) — 1,507,404

fEETHEERFIFX Accrued employee benefits expenses 3,813,450 2,566,963

JERTIFRTEERE Accrued royalty fee 1,065,079 835,786

HAb A HIE Other taxes payables 115,136 111,797

FE A} R 5 7B (BsE37(f) Amount due to a related party (Note 37(f)) — 50,754

JEASTESE 2N R ZRIE (M EE37(F) Amounts due to associates (Note 37(f)) 2,388,883 —

EHAh Others 1,260,792 1,483,284
B RARAMBARE  Accrualsand other payables 8,643,340 6,555,988 _

B IEmEN SR Less: Non-current portion (47,612) (1,507,404)

eI Current portion 8,595,728 5,048,584

EREE (FEEG) Contract liabilities (Note (i) 433,121 740,720
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)1

29

FErERREMENRERSNEE @)

(ii)

JERT S AR ER B UES2CEE (HizE36) - AEEBRIEE
EHBREOGRSK - T2ESQ2CREBHE-_T—NAF+=A
=+—ALE+EANTRF SRR BTSN - ERERAT
B ENENRARE - BNIAREBRRBERHERHR
MEFHEZEBONERERRNITEEHNAE - ME
IR E AR R B IR R A W EE R NTER © I3
BEBRYAREN  BNSARER_ZE-NEF+_A=1—
H AR EFERR -

BRGHE AR -

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Note:

(0]

(ii)

The contingent consideration payable arose from the
acquisition of S2C Group (Note 36). The Group has
recognised the contingent consideration payable at fair value
based upon the terms as stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreement with reference to the projected revenue and
profit before tax of S2C Group for the 18 months ending 31
December 2019. The contingent consideration payable shall
be re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period resulting from events or factors emerging after the
acquisition date, with any resulting gain or loss recognised
in the consolidated income statement. The contingent
consideration payable was derecognised as at 31 December

2019 as the financial performance target have not been met.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

FE
For the year ended

—B-hF —T-N\F

2019 2018

£ £

usD usD

BIERFIE B EERORER G Revenue recognised that was included in the

contract liabilities balance at beginning of the year 605,262 258,438
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e ML
29 EFERARHMENREREGHNER @ 29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
NEBEEER RHEA B FIER REE SR A FER The carrying amounts of the Group's accruals and
A WATHIEEEHE other payables approximate their fair values and are

denominated in the following currencies:

R+=—B=+—8H

As at 31 December
—EB-hE —E—)\F
2019 2018
ES ETT
uUsD UsD
AR RMB 3,569,862 2,413,487
EI usD 3,459,716 2,843,225
Hfth Others 1,613,762 1,299,276
8,643,340 6,555,988
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)1/

30

EEWA 30 DEFERRED INCOME
R+=—BA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —T—)\F
2019 2018
E ES
usD usD
BT B Deferred government grants 34,290,519 11,237,647
B IERBNE D Less: Non-current portion (7,560,012) (6,568,365)
RENEB Current portion 26,730,507 4,669,282

R-TE—hE+_A=+—8 £HEEPHEPREK
RNAEREREEEABENEERFTHIARE
210,000,000t (=ZF—/\F : AR¥75,000,0007T)
(FE 1 #%30,000,000% 7T (ZZ—/\4F : 11,000,000
JL)) °

EIERARREEAAREE -

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31 December 2019, the balance includes deferred
government grants of approximately RMB210,000,000
(2018: RMB75,000,000) (equivalent to approximately
UsD30,000,000 (2018: USD11,000,000)) from the PRC
Central Government for the implementation of several
national science and technology project.

The carrying amount of deferred income is denominated
in RMB.
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31

SRITER 31 BANK BORROWINGS
®+=—BA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-AF —ZE—-N\F
2019 2018
En ES
UsD UuspD
AR TIER - B Short-term bank loans, secured — 5,335,126

R-Z—N\FE+-A=1+—8  AEBENETEIUR
NEREMN R B ERERE - LAX%5,000,000F T AR
£ B IR HIERTTF 5,000,000 T 1R (F15E22) ©

RIB-NF+-A=+—0 aARIHRBREREAER
—FRBEBEE  RITEFNEEEEEQIFERE -

WBE-T—AF+=A=T—ALERR BTN
BRHEE K-F-A+-AS+—R - LEkEE
HRITHER -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's bank borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company and an amount of USD5,000,000 was
secured by restricted bank deposit of the Group of
USD5,000,000 (Note 22).

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the
bank borrowings approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities and were wholly repayable within
1 year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the bank
borrowings have been fully repaid and there was no
outstanding bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019.

N
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)1

31

RATIER (80

REBRITERNREETIATINESHE

31

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

Rt+=—HA=+-—8

As at 31 December
—E-NEF —ZE—-N\F
2019 2018
=T EY
UsD Usb
ET usD — 5,000,000
=] Japanese Yen = 335,126
— 5,335,126

R-BE—NE+-A=1+—H EHETEINERE
FENF250%%FE3.91% ©

RZB-NER-ZZ-NF+A=1+—0 AEEA
R RARREDRITERRENT

The effective annual interest rates of short-term bank
loans as at 31 December 2018 ranges from 2.50% to
3.91%.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group's available
and undrawn bank loan facilities were as follows:

R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-hE —ZT—-N\F
2019 2018
E ES
uUsb uUsb
AIE AR AR RS B Total available and undrawn facilities 16,136,005 24,642,920
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32 DESEEURNAERNRS

32.1 BRE

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

32.1 Share options

N

—TENF_A AKERKT _FTTNFRN
HE HER-Z-ZTFAARE——F"A
HEITIER] ©

—ET-RAFAA+HA  FAEEN D - &
A RBEESMIT Corporationt) — T N\ FRE (5]
RERAFREEEREST S - RARARESMIT
Corporation ) ZE T NFRMHETEIMBREM S

EREHAARABEEAERESEINMEERE
MIGERERE-TST N\FROTEER - EE R
SMIT Corporation#)F /A #2 il FE (S 2R ¥ AR A &)
gl - EREIRAEET TE M BT RM G B SMIT
Corporation & B AR R RIKIRG - BEE
A& 18 H A F{E#91,573,0003 70 (B 28R
B) AABE NI RIS EERN BRI

In February 2008, the Group adopted the 2008
Share Plan and subsequently amended on
September 2010 and February 2011.

On 15 September 2015, the Company assumed
the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation as
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as part of the
Reorganisation. In connection with the assumption
of the 2008 Share Plan of SMIT Corporation by the
Company, all options transferred to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall carry the same terms
as the 2008 Share Plan, except that all references
therein to SMIT Corporation shall be modified
to be references to the Company. The shares
issued upon the exercise of options will change
from shares of SMIT Corporation to shares of
the Company. The incremental fair value of the
relevant options of approximately USD1,573,000
which are all fully vested, as a result of the
modification were charged to profit or loss on a
one-off basis.
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)1/

32 DESEEURNAERNRS (@)

32.1 BBARAE (5B)

RNE 72,574,775 BROERNLBETER S
—ANEFEZANEER - WEEARITEBRENE
BRBEE R AFAEEERESESINREE
W R58,470,406(0 - REEEZT—NFRZ
T-NF+-A=Z+—HLFE  TEREHR
AR E RIS B LRI E R AE o

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.1 Share options (Continued)

On 6 March 2016, the capitalisation issue of
72,574,775 ordinary shares of the Company
was completed, upon which the number of
outstanding share options was adjusted to
58,470,406 pursuant to the anti-dilution
arrangement in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No additional options have been granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

EUSAZES-FIE-LC B el ey The details of the options granted for Pre-IPO
L Share Option Scheme are as follows:
RERBH
BFEER
£330 RERBH
b HE BTERN
No. of options EREHE
pertaining No. of options
to employees pertaining to
and directors advisors at BT EHHR Nk
RELAS ENAH at the date the date of (i3 Remaining Remaining
Original date of grant Date of modification of modification modification Exercise price  contractual life  vesting period
ZZT\$=ANA ZZ-RENATER 0.01%7T i T85E
9 March 2008 15 September 2015 3,201,000 225,000 USD0.01 Expired Fully vested
ETNELAZTRE ZZ-TENATER 0.04%T i o958
26 July 2009 15 September 2015 4,183,000 1,070,000 UsD0.04 Expired Fully vested
—E-T5-RAEA “Z-R¥NATER 0.04%7T B FHHE
5 March 2010 15 September 2015 3,051,000 600,000 UsD0.04 Expired Fully vested
“Z-ZEAR-H —Z-RFAATER 0.54%TT 0.7% To5E
1 September 2010 15 September 2015 7,940,065 162,000 UsD0.54 0.7 years Fully vested
“E-TEFCAST-B ZE-EEAATER 0.75%7 21 THGE
31 December 2010 15 September 2015 1,734,500 - UsD0.75 2 years Fully vested
“Z—%-A)\R “Z-RENATRA 0.75% T 23% Gt it
8 January 2011 15 September 2015 371,769 — UsD0.75 2.3 years Fully vested
“2—%=8-H “B-RENATEA 1.06%7 245 ot
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 5,125,850 20,000 USD1.06 2.4 years Fully vested
—2——E=f-H —E-RENATARA 0.54%T 258 TaEE
1 March 2011 15 September 2015 — 371,768 USD0.54 2.5 years Fully vested
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32 LEREEURGAEERENRS (@) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.1 BBRAE (B) 32.1 Share options (Continued)

REHBH
BFEER

£ RERBH

BREHE RTERN

No. of options BEREHE

pertaining No. of options

to employees pertaining to
and directors advisors at BT AR HTRES
REMLAH R at the date the date of e Remaining Remaining
Original date of grant Date of modification of modification modification Exercise price  contractual life vesting period
“Z-Z%=h-H “Z-R¥NATEA 121%7 25% Gk
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 — 21,142 UsD1.21 2.5 years Fully vested
ZZ-ZHNA=TH —T-RENATERA 0.52%7t 355 G
30 September 2012 15 September 2015 2,913,750 — UsSD0.52 3.5 years Fully vested
—Z-=%=Ri-H ZZ-NENATER 0.62%TT 41E s
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 — 116,188 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
“2=F/\A-H “E-IFNATER 0.56%T 45% TURE
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 1,362,396 79,186 UsD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested
—Z-=%\A-H —Z-RFNATERA 0.56% 7T 495 s
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 734,616 — USD0.56 4.9 years Fully vested
—Z-=%\A-H “Z-nENATER 0.14%T 49% TEEE
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 4,433,290 - UsD0.14 4.9 years Fully vested
“Z-MmE=A-A “Z-RENATEA 039%T 5.5% ot
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 — 81,340 USD0.39 5.5 years Fully vested
—E-CE=f-H —Z-nENATER 120%7 258 Gt G
1 March 2012 15 September 2015 - 14,742 UsD1.22 2.5 years Fully vested
“E-ZENA=TH “E-RENATERA 0.62%T 356 TUEE
30 September 2012 15 September 2015 416,250 — USD0.62 3.5 years Fully vested
—Z-Z§=A-H “Z-EFAATER 0.62%7T 415 FUGE
1 March 2013 15 September 2015 — 69,696 UsD0.62 4.1 years Fully vested
—E2-ZE/\A-H —Z-RENATER 0.56% T 45% 58
1 August 2013 15 September 2015 892,604 120,814 USD0.56 4.5 years Fully vested
—Z-[E=A-H —Z-nEAATER 0MET 5.5 TUEE
1 March 2014 15 September 2015 — 104,544 USD0.41 5.5 years Fully vested
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)1/

32 DESEEURNAERNRS (@)

32.1 BBARAE (5B)

R 1T AR R R B 2 B R AR B T 975 (1B
T

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.1 Share options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

W+t=A=+-H
As at 31 December
—E-hF ZE-N\F
2019 2018
piit::4 pliL
BREZE F9THE ERES R FHITEE
Number Weighted Number Weighted
of Share Average of Share Average
Options  Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
ET E
usD usD
REXR AR Balance as at beginning
of the year 40,319,288 0.63 51,497,563 0.52
BRAREEARMETE]  Pre-IPO Share Plan
BRI s iEiEAR 2 Share options forfeited/
cancelled (612,598) 0.04 (1,899,938) 0.18
BITERE IR IE Share options exercised (1,924,136) 0.04 (9,278,337) 0.10
RERI L Balance as at year end 37,782,554 0.67 40,319,288 0.63

37,782,554 (== — )\ : 40,319,28817) i
RITHEEBAMES - 37,782,554 (—T— )\4F :
40,319,28810 ) BB E AT T1T/E - RZT—NF
TE RIS SR I 19 EEAR0.04E T (=
=—)\F : 0.10%7T) 771,924,136 (ZZ—N
1 9,278,337/%) f& {5 - TT{E R RIFE R INEF S
& B AT MD0.04E T (ZE—N\F : BERKH
0.80%7T) °
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Out of the 37,782,554 outstanding options
(2018: 40,319,288), 37,782,554 options (2018:
40,319,288) were exercisable. Options exercised
in 2019 resulted in 1,924,136 (2018:9,278,337)
shares being issued at a weighted average price
of USD0.04 (2018: USD0.10) each. The related
weighted average share price at the time of
exercise was USD0.04 (2018: USD0.80 per share).
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32 LIEREEURGAEERENRS (@) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
32.1 B (8) 32.1 Share options (Continued)

RERMARITEBIRENER BB RITEELN

Share options outstanding at the end of the year

T~ have the following expiry date and exercise prices:
W+=B=+-8
As at 31 December
—E-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
SHERE FiBEiE
ERATRE EREHE EATEE EREHE
Exercise price Number Exercise price
in USD per of share in USD per Number of
w8 2 Expiry date share option options share option share options
BIRARBERIROETE Pre-IPO Share Plan

—Z-\F=AN\H 8 March 2018 = = — —
—ZE-\F=ANH 8 March 2018 — — — —
—E-hERA+AA 15 May 2019 — — 0.04 2,536,734
—E-TF)\R=1H 30 August 2020 0.54 11,505,483 0.54 11,505,483
—Z-EF+Z AT hH 29 December 2020 0.75 2,030,683 0.75 2,030,683
—Z-—F—HfH 6 January 2021 0.75 548,781 0.75 548,781
—E—F-AZ+tH 27 February 2021 1.07 274,390 1.07 274,390
—E-—®-f-++H 27 February 2021 0.54 7,776,567 0.54 7,776,567
- _#-A-+)N\H 28 February 2022 1.22 348,197 1.22 348,197
- ZFARZTAIA 29 September 2022 0.62 4,147,732 0.62 4,147,732
“ZT-=%#-A-+)\H 28 February 2023 0.62 274,390 0.62 274,390
T =FtA=+—H 31 July 2023 0.56 1,084,394 0.56 1,084,394
—E-Z#+A=+-H 31 July 2023 0.14 9,517,547 0.14 9,517,547
ZZNFZAZTN\H 28 February 2024 0.41 274,390 0.41 274,390
37,782,554 40,319,288
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32 LIEREEURGAEERENRS (@) 32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.2 ZRFRMDEN 32.2 Restricted share units

RZZ—NE+A=1+H  S2C(ARFH—RMH
BEHANNBAR) B%MH1,481,092ES2CH%
PRBIAR D B T 21 BEEA (BAS2CHESR) -
SREIB M EMTE R T N\FE+A=1H
BERT—EEREE_ZT-_N\FLA=+H-

HARTT B SR HIAR M B BB BT -

On 30 October 2018, S2C, an indirectly held
subsidiary of the Company, has granted 1,481,092
RSUs of S2C to 21 grantees who are all employees
of S2C. The RSU scheme will be valid and effective
from 30 October 2018 until 30 July 2028.

Movement in the number of outstanding RSUs is

as follows:
e RATHES2C
% PR I A% 12
BNWEE
Number of
outstanding
RSU of S2C
RZE—-—N\F—HA—H At 1 January 2018 —
B Granted 1,481,092
RZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018 1,481,092
R-E—)\F+_A=+—H Shares vested but not transferred to the
CEBEMAREZTARAMNRGL  grantees as at 31 December 2018 1,132,903
—hEF—H—H At 1 January 2019 1,481,092
B Cancelled (1,481,092)
—NE+=-A=+—~ At 31 December 2019 —

RZZ—NF+-—A=+—H
% JEIoEN = S YN

Shares vested but not transferred to the
grantees as at 31 December 2019 —
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32 DESEEURNAERNRS (@)

32.2

ZERFIRADE (&)

BES2CIZERELEET S ZRHRGENNE
BE - SREIBMHEMN—RBELR ARG
PERIAM25% E100% B AERE - M
TEHIBRFEBHEN4SEANGE  KRTZ
REIAD T EIFT AT RBIES LT -
REE-_Z—NAFr_ZT—\F+-_A=+—H
I FERE ERB R D ZRIRG B ETE -
R-ZZE—AFE+_A=+WA » S2CEEITEI
RAITEZRFBRGENTEARTE @ EREH
IR B EN BRI AR D AL - WA A
W AR HE S NRENREIEL - HEZ
T-NFT-A=Z+—BLEE  BZBRHRD
BEARGE NG RERBAY A39,742% T
(ZZ—N\FE ')

EREBNECNRATEDR-_E-N\FTA=
THRE RSS2CHRREARN A FERE -

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

32 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

32.2 Restricted share units (Continued)

Although S2C determines the vesting period of
each RSU on a case-by-case basis, the general
vesting period for the RSUs is that 25%-100%
of the RSUs shall vest on the grant date with the
remaining portion vesting over the next 48 months
from the grant date, subject to the occurrence
of liquidity event as defined in the RSU scheme.
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, none of the above granted RSUs were
exercised. On 24 December 2019, S2C agreed
with holders of the outstanding and unexercised
RSUs to cancel their RSUs with immediate effect
in accordance with the Agreement for the
Cancellation of RSUs. A total consideration of
USD3 is paid or payable for such cancellation.
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated
income statement arising from the RSUs is
USD39,742 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

The fair value of RSUs was calculated based on the
fair value of underlying ordinary shares of S2C as
at the grant date on 30 October 2018.
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33

ReREEH 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) BREFBEBAERN (FE) BEEREREN (a) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before
HER income tax to cash generated from
operations:
BE+=-H=+—BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
BaE =TT E
Note UsD UsD
BATSEiRa A (E518)  Profit/(loss) before income tax 11,621,320 (277,783)
FATIER (B A% Adjustments for:
B A FEE Interest income, net 9 (583,727) (1,149,740)
LARR (7 B ERE A TR Share-based payment 8 39,742 187
B 5 EBGRIE R E R Provision for impairment of
trade receivables 7 19,971 759,318
FEmERERE Provision for/(reversal of provision
(B E#EE) for) impairment of inventories 7 1,163,024 (320,473)
HEMZE - BEMEEEE  Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 7 53,591 34,295
ME - BERRETES Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 7 591,348 685,213
HAb B i Amortisation of other intangible
assets 7 463,039 186,704
FHEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 369,743 —
BRIEHEMB AR Gain on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries 6 (22,777,730) —
FE(E IR R Share of loss of investments
WEREE accounted for using the equity
method 266,833 =
BBBRIEATEAERERN Fair value losses/(gains) on financial
EREENATE assets at fair value through
BB () profit or loss 6 5,036,482 (2,821,523)
FERTSRARE Yz Fair value gain on contingent
consideration payable 6 (1,507,404) =
(5,243,768) (2,903,802)
EBEEEE) Changes in working capital:
TE‘? — Inventories (5,819,681) 8,538,192
— B 5 RHMEWRFIR — Trade and other receivables
&%EHM and prepayments (347,740) (7,017,665)
%’%&EWEHM — Trade and other payables 20,608,090 (8,870,048)
SHEE — Contract liabilities (139,207) 399,233
— RN — Deferred income 23,052,872 10,297,035
REMBES Cash generated from operations 32,110,566 442,945
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i Y
33 REREER ) 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HMEREREXRANEEVE  BMENKE (b) In the consolidated statement of cash
Fr8sIEELE ¢ flows, proceeds from disposals of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

BE+-A=+—-HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
E7T e
UsD UusD
BREDFE (K7E15) Net book amount (Note 15) 56,868 34,615
HEWE - BB RH Loss on disposals of property,
B8 plant and equipment (53,591) (34,295)
HEWE -  BERRE Proceeds from disposals of property,
Fri8RIE plant and equipment 3,277 320
(00 METBELEEMEERE (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
RITIERK HEEE &5t
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
ESm e e
UsDb Usb Uusb
R-—ZE—-N\F—HF—H At 1 January 2018 — — —
Reng Cash flows (5,335,126) — (5,335,126)
SNFE T EE Foreign exchange adjustments — — —
RZZE—N\F+=HA=+—H At31December 2018 (5,335,126) — (5,335,126)
RN E B TR E 4R Recognised on adoption of
E16RFHER (Mi52.2) HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) — (67,005) (67,005)
R-ZE—NF—A—H At 1 January 2019 (5,335,126) (67,005) (5,402,131)
HehE Cash flows 5,340,668 294,597 5,635,265
HEAHEE Lease additions — (1,501,269) (1,501,269)
FLERFXE Interest expense — (44,526) (44,526)
HEERT Lease modification — 95,067 95,067
RIELEME AR Deemed disposal of subsidiaries
(Mi5E33(d)) (Note 33(d)) = 101,421 101,421
HNEE A2 Foreign exchange adjustments (5.542) 14,219 8,677
R=ZZ—hFE+=-HA=+—HB At31December 2019 = (1,107,496)  (1,107,496)
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e ML
33 REREEH @ 33 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
(d)y HBIEHEB@ELSLEES (d) Deemed disposal of interest in S2C
Shanghai
BE—T-—NF+_A=Z+EHONTERE - Pursuant to a capital injection agreement dated 27
BERCLEEREMAETE - A REERE XD December 2019, S2C Shanghai agreed to allot and
ERD - FRHIVN_ZE—NF+ZA=1+—H issue shares to certain third-party investors. Upon
THRE ARERENERL LERESEES completion of the transaction on 31 December
49.19%  BRG LB THRAEENREEILE 2019, the equity interest of S2C Shanghai held by
MEAT - WKAREENEE QT - the Group was diluted to 49.19% and no longer

be an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary and
became an associate of the Group.

BRE ET
Note usD
BN £849.19% Fair value of 49.19% equity interest
AT E of S2C Shanghai 42,999,190
BEERXY Direct expenses (108,974)
42,890,216
B HEEREFE Less: net assets disposed of
M - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 (38,042)
[ Goodwill 25 (15,896,824)
EtEREE Other intangible assets 17 (4,397,343)
EREEE Right-of-use assets (101,360)
FE Inventories (897,129)
B 5B GRIE Trade receivables (2,245,837)
Eoh R R TE K TR 508 Other receivables and prepayments (4,383,228)
HeMIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents (3,873,804)
B SN FRIE Trade payables 2,717,374
FEHE A R H At FE AN FR0E Accruals and other payables 8,440,465
BLEFEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 24 255,704
EHaE Contract liabilities 161,413
HEAE Lease liabilities 33(c) 101,421
FERT PSR Income tax payable 1,765
VARR 15 B ERE R R R Share-based payment reserve 39,742
PRIEHEM B A RIE
R A PE W Exchange reserve released upon deemed disposal 3,197
BIEHEME Gain on deemed disposal 6 22,777,730
RELEEEMNR ML FHE Net cash outflow arising from the deemed disposal
Be KIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 3,873,804
HEMAY Direct expenses 108,974
3,982,778
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)1

34 HAEE

w=

Z-NF+-A=+—H AEERARQFWEE

AEARRBE(ZFT—/\F: §&) -

35 FRIE

(@)

REHERE
AEBERBIIHBELLEHERZEES AR A
ERRE  EEMIRME=SF -

H-ZT-NF-HA-HE FXEERZFHER
RERBEE - ERHMEBEEERI £
FHBEF2HME2.2 R 16

REHEHHRR TARRKERENF@RENT ¢

34 CONTINGENCIES

The Group and the Company did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

35 COMMITMENTS

(@)

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various offices and warehouses
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements
with lease terms between two to three years.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for these leases, except for
short-term and low-value leases, see Note 2.2 and
Note 16 for further information.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments
under the operating lease agreement are as
follows:

®+=B=+-—H

As at 31 December
=F-NE T )\F
2019 2018
ETT e
uUsD usb
TEMN1F Within one year 840,884 1,621,166

B FRTERSEF Later than one year and not

later than five years — 966,555
840,884 2,587,721
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35

36

AYE
(b) BAEIE

RFERROFTNEREAHELBAERERE
EmT

35 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at
the end of the reporting period but not recognised
as liabilities is as follows:

R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NF —E-)\F
2019 2018
ET E
UsbD usb
ME - BE k& Property, plant and equipment 2,430,477 —

EBE

REBEE-T—- ) \F+-_A=+—RIEER  REA
MA—Z—N\E+AZT+AEHNBRNBE RS REE
—TE-AF+-A=+—HALI18EAFERS2CEH
IR A RBRBADRFIMSE THBEEBRE - SMIT
Systemic (HK) Limited (AR RMEEHEAR]) AEE
BS2CH194.97 % eHE - METS2CEREXNRERER
19,000,0003 7T M sk #A 1+ 57 4 2,000,0003 7 » S2C&E
B ZE MUY EREDE R 25 - WiES2C
FEARNEBEBERERIERNT —(EAFNEBEZHEKE
D EBEAEEEEZ L ERBTELREEAEE
U ATR - WEEN —ZE— N\F+—A -+ NLB%K
PR AEBBBLZAS2CESENMEESY
S2CATfE IR

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to a
share purchase agreement dated 30 October 2018, SMIT
Systemic (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, agreed to purchase 94.97% equity interest
of S2C, with cash consideration of USD19,000,000
and contingent payment of USD2,000,000 to certain
employees of S2C upon achievement of certain financial
performance targets on the revenues and profit
before tax of S2C Group for the 18 months ending 31
December 2019. S2C Group is principally engaged in
the business of rapid verification system and software
primarily in Asia. The acquisition of S2C Group added
a new and strategically important component to
the Group's ongoing development and will diversify
the Group's business into the verification industry
and broaden the revenue stream of the Group. The
acquisition was completed on 29 November 2018. Upon
acquisition, the Group exercises control over S2C by
appointment of all directors into the board of S2C.

N

FEE ANNUAL REPORT 2019  EIMIZRRAMRZAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED JC S e

255



mEMBRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)1/

36

E =2t IE )

(i)

(ii)

TRBSIAME B ROE N (R E R
*

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(i)

The following table summarises the consideration
paid and payable at the acquisition date and the
calculation of the goodwill:

ES
UsD
BERE Purchase consideration
—\e — Cash 19,000,000
— HAKE — Contingent consideration 1,507,404
BEBNRE Total purchase consideration 20,507,404
B TR B EFENATE Less: Fair value of the net assets acquired (Note 36 (ii) (4,610,580)
(P E36(i)
[EES Goodwill 15,896,824

EERNKENEE15,896,824X T EEHAR
S2CHRIRBRFE R BB TG AR R B & 5
PREH 155 [F) RUFE

FriEBEERE

FrURHE & 2 I A B ER IS B e AP E W
T

(ii)

The goodwill of USD15,896,824 arising from
the acquisition is attributable to synergies from
combining the rapid verification system and
software business of S2C with the Group.

Net assets acquired

The fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed as at the acquisition date are as follows:

ET

UsD

Y% - BB KR (HFE15) Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 95,319
el E R (RIEEFEE) (M5E17) License use rights (included in intangible assets) (Note 17) 4,644,000
HEmmpEE (Ms17) Other intangible assets (Note 17) 221,087
FIEFTSTHE E (Hi3E24) Deferred income tax assets (Note 24) 748,827
FE Inventories 1,966,668
ReRBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 452,614
Hibme&E Other current assets 937,412
HitmEhafE Other current liabilities (3,514,552)
EEFBHRARE (ME24) Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 24) (696,600)
Pk B vl 35 Bl & FE B RER)AFE  Fair value of total identifiable net assets acquired 4,854,775
IR S Non-controlling interests (244,195)
4,610,580
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36

¥t @)
(i) FIMEBEESE ()

(iii)

AEBCWENETLEETR YR —AEMS2C
Inc. (S2CEREMHBHFHANAR) B THETR
M R] EAER o

AREEIRS2CE B IEEH (R S2CE BT &
BB EFE AL DIRERS2CE B A FEIZ §1E

s
L i

FAFANGEERRROBE_E-N\F+RA=
TALEFE-RETHRAXHEBRBRAS
576,7773% 7T °

S2CEEB =T \F+—AZt+NBEFAR
E-T-\F+ A=+ —-RLEFEFEKER
BV A £5792,5685 7T © S2C & M IR A R B RIS
1843,936 7T °

WS2CEEE=_T—N\F—A—BRE(EES
BB ZE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—BHILEEHEA
B REVIREE 46,281,812 L 1B
5,203,203% 7T °

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(ii)

Net assets acquired (Continued)

The Group's acquired intangible assets mainly
relate a right to use certain technology licenses
as granted by S2C Inc., a company held by the
vendor of S2C Group.

The Group recognises S2C Group'’s non-controlling
interests at their proportionate share of S2C
Group's fair value of total identifiable net assets.

The acquisition-related costs included in general
and administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2018 in the consolidated income
statement for the year amounted to USD576,777.

The revenue included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December
2018 since 29 November 2018 contributed by
S2C Group was USD792,568. S2C Group also
contributed loss of USD43,936 over the same
period.

Had S2C Group been consolidated from 1 January
2018, the consolidated income statement would
show pro-forma revenue of USD46,281,812 and
loss of USD5,203,203 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

WEEIR &ML FEE (iii) Net cash outflow from the acquisition
ET
usD

FrUiE %2 BENIRS - Cash paid for acquired business, net of cash acquired

HBRFT SR &
—BeRE — Cash consideration (19,000,000)
— R EMB AR ZIRE — Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiaries acquired 452,614
RIS EEY
WEEIR & Cash outflow on acquisition (18,547,386)

N
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)1/

37 BHBARS

(a)

BARAMBERRASBHEESIN -

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

BEERA/ T @)

NEARARRRBREBEE_ZE-—NER-ZE-N\F

77 8

o)oyap Rt

Name of the related parties

To-A=t-RALFEEAKREFERSNEHEE

TERERED

Principal business activities

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view
that the following individuals and companies are
related parties who had transactions with the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018:

BEAEENER
Relationship with the Group

STV

Mr. Gao Songtao
BERSE

Mr. Kwan, Allan Chung-yuen
HmEREE

Mr. Huang Xueliang

BEX BRSEAE
Mr. Loong, Manfred Man-tsun

BMALF S 4
Mr. Shuai Hongyu

Mr. Jin Yufeng

AR A

Mr. Woo Kar Tung, Raymond

SREG L

Mr. Zhang Junjie

YT EHR B R AR

Shenzhen State Micro Science
and Technology Co. Ltd.

TEm
N/A
TNEH
N/A
TNEH
N/A

TER
N/A

TNEH
N/A

iE A

N/A

NiE A

N/A

NiE

N/A

SR ER R

Research and development of
integrated circuit design

——@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

RRRFEHITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RRRIFHITES

Non-executive director of the Company

RRNFPITES - ARIITE RIFRIRER

Executive director, the CEO and controlling
shareholder of the Company

RRABIMITEEREFEIMBE

Executive director and the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company

RRARTEERARLER

Executive director and the Chief Operating Officer
of the Company

BUESE

Independent Director

BAEER

Independent Director

BUES

Independent Director

HARTRITES - BRATE RIERARRZS|

Controlled by executive director, the CEO
and controlling shareholder of the Company
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37 BMARE (&) 37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(@ KBRIGFEMBERRZBEHEZREN EFRAE T (@)  Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
HNEARARRAREBE-E-—NEFRER-E—-N\F financial statements, the directors are of the view
T A=+ HIEFERAEEFER S K Bk that the following individuals and companies are
7 (48) related parties who had transactions with the

Group during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018: (Continued)

BELIRE B8 FTEXBED BEAKEHNER
Name of the related parties Principal business activities Relationship with the Group

FRINBFERERIEERE BFERAEERDIIE ARARBITES - BREATE MIEBER

D BRA T FERHE REATEE
(DRYEFER )
Shenzhen Digital TV National Research, development, Executive director, the CEO and controlling
Engineering Laboratory production and sales of shareholder of the Company being
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen products related to the director of this company
Digital TV") digital TV
SMIT Investment Limited WEER RATRITES - BFENITE RIERRR
RERREE
SMIT Investment Limited Investment holding Executive director, the CEO and controlling

shareholder of the Company being the
director of this company

IBOXPAY International Inc. WEER RABHITES « BENITE RIEARAER = R
BE=%
IBOXPAY International Inc. Investment holding Executive director, the CEO and controlling

shareholder of the Company being the
director of the related party

e FEERHRERAR BRI RFHIER EATRTES - BRERIITE RIERBER
(CRYIZFERRED RGN AESE

Shenzhen iBOXPAY Information ~ Mobile payment Executive director, the CEO and controlling
Technology Co., Ltd. service provider shareholder of the Company being the
(“Shenzhen iBOXPAY") director of this company

RYIEE N EAT AR A A EDARRFTEL 1A 2% ARABRTES - BERITE MIERBIRBRER T

BE

Shenzhen Giga Design Development of EDA Executive director, the CEO and controlling

Automation Co., Ltd design software shareholder of the Company being the

director of the related party
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37 BEMARS (&)

(b) EEREEES IR

RAGAHBREDEREES
FRITATRS -

ZAN e ]

‘E%

ek

37

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the following transactions

were undertaken by the Group with related
parties:

BE+-A=1+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-NEF ZZT-N\F
2019 2018
ET e
UsbD Usb
BRI B R A IR A FIHY Operating lease payments and the costs
MEFBHCLHEENR and fees relating to air-conditioning
REBEFARAREED and public utilities in respect of
B K & A properties of Shenzhen State Micro
Science and Technology Co. Ltd. (175,590) (726,036)
HLRY |§K%%$ﬁm¢%¥ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’] Operating lease payments and the costs
KEHENT BB and fees relating to air-conditioning
Q%?%E@Wﬁ&%ﬁ and public utilities in respect of
properties of Shenzhen Digital TV (1,532,424) (52,615)
MR & FE B RN Sales of mPOS devices to Shenzhen
St mPOSH iBOXPAY Information
Technology Co., Ltd. 803,282 4,419,080
M S5 EERE REmR Sales of CAM products to
Shanghai Qingge 41,174

SRS TEAME ST RE B R S
7

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

These transactions are conducted at prices and
terms mutually agreed by the relevant parties.
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e ML
37 BEAERSZ (&) 37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
() EFEEEEFHMH () Key management compensation
TEEREAENTRIFNTES - ENHEN Key management includes directors (executive
FEZEEENEBEREHMNIIRAT and non-executive). The compensation paid or

payable to key management for employee services
is shown below:

BEt+t-ZA=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
ES E
UsD UspD
EXFHS - R REMEF Basic salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind 1,528,609 1,545,824
BB TEAT Discretionary bonuses 411,675 372,635
BRIREA — REHRETE Retirement benefit — defined
contribution plans 58,529 66,840
VARR 1 A B HE R 3K Share-based payments — 151
1,998,813 1,985,450
(d) HREBFWIRE (d) Investments in related parties
R+=—A=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
2019 2018
ES Ew
UsD UsD
FASMIT Investment % & Investment in SMIT Investment (Note 21(d))

(FFE21(d)) — 5,600,000
REFIZAHIRE (H:E21(d) Investment in iBoxpay (Note 21(d)) 2,063,938 —
FOBERIIRE (FFE21(F) Investment in Giga (Note 21(f)) 1,433,445 e

3,497,383 5,600,000

A% ANNUALREPORT 2019 EIHUZEAMRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED  (9——————
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)1

37 BEMARS (&)

(e)

REHERRBE M2 FRER

37

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e) Year-end balances arising from sales and
purchases of goods

R+=—A=+-—-8
As at 31 December
—ZT—-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
st ES E
Note UsD UsD
Fams 77 8 5 IR IA Trade receivable from a related party
(F$3E20) (Note 20) (i) 358,361 4,885,596
BN B8 S EIRGRIE Trade receivables from associates
(F$3E20) (Note 20) (ii) 2,541,942 —
JEREE ARIE SR Trade payables to associates
(PfF7E28) (Note 28) (iii) 732,639 —
BisE - Note:

@i

(ii)

(iii)

USRI EREHRIEFEERENHERS
YRHEBBRAEA (ZZ2—NF : XEAR) 3
Hl - RUHURRIEE AEER RIS - BELE
WA T O BCRIEBE (2 —\F - ) -

FERHREEEREBHBM (LF) XS2C Japan
Corporation®J#HER 5 - HRHE R BEAEAZ
H o BUEUER M E REER RS o BmtE
UEs 8 N Rl RUB VR B o

SERRER DR AT RIS - BASANITE A
ERRTEFE -
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(i)

(iii)

The receivable arises mainly from sale transactions
to Shenzhen iBOXPAY and is due six months (2018:
six months) after the date of sales. The receivable
is unsecured in nature and bear no interest. No
provisions are held against receivables from related
parties (2018: Nil).

The receivables arise mainly from sale transactions
to S2C Shanghai and S2C Japan Corporation and
are due on six months after the date of sales. The
receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no
interest. No provisions are held against receivables
from associates.

The amount is due sixty days after the date of
purchase. The payable is unsecured in nature and
bear no interest.
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37 BEMARS (@)

()

N

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
BB RBENTNFEE S EE () Non-trade balances with related parties
and associates
R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —E-NEF
2019 2018
BisE ES E
Note UsD UsD
S NEEEE 14 (5E20)  Deposit to a related party (Note 20) 0) 449,296 —
e BAE T 70UE (MI5E20)  Receivables from related parties
(Note 20) i) 73,451 27,755
FE Y HS 2 N A58 (B45E20) Receivables from associates (Note 20) ii) 584,352 —
M E N R E R Loan to an associate i) 5,035,836 —
e RARS T 200 (Mf5E29)  Payable to a related party (Note 29) i) — (50,754)
JE (TR N BI3RE (F15E29)  Payables to associates (Note 29) i) (2,388,883) —

(ii)

(iii)

SEHORBTERLAORHES - AUARM
e -

FEU  FEAS A 7 R gt & A ) B FRIR B AR T (B SR
RPEEE - WHLAETTAHE © U BN BB

AEERBERNEREREATERE  TUAR
HiHE - MBERRERAEER - 28 RAR={E
HARMEE -

A% ANNUALREPORT 2019 EIHUZEAMRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED  (9——————

@

(ii)

(i)

The amount represents the rental deposit to Shenzhen
Digital TV and is denominated in RMB.

The carrying amounts of amount due from/to related
parties and associates approximate their fair values
and are mainly denominated in USD. The amounts
due from/to related parties and associates are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

demand.

The carrying amount of loan to an associate
approximates its fair value and is denominated
in RMB. The loan to an associate is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable within three

months.
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)1/

38 REHIEREE

(a)

(b)

1‘50 Z-TF—F=+—H  SMITFIIEE K
FIBERBECREREESABCE (BRAE)

(FA%%‘?%E%UEM)ETE}EET&E% B SMITIR
I mEBSEITEARBIOEE L HBERNI13E
BFEIL) c BEIER WO BABEREIAS
#599.01 % RSMITHIIIEFEH0.99% 5 -
REBETNE  BEEIAHBERECESES

90.91% %5 K SMIT/RYIFEE 9.09% #Ezs ©

BZZS_TFFYUR - ZE—NFNEREARE
SHAZIE ([COVID-19Z 1B ) BEEMREZFTE K
HiER @ RAEMELERE LFEINEERE
EEE o

iy HwEBE_T-IF+-_A=1+—HLFE
WZEGRA B RERAMANE TEHMEET R
H TR a2 2@ COVID- 19 IEN S EMMN —
TOTEERAE AERAERNT -
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38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

On 31 January 2020, SMIT Shenzhen entered into
a capital injection agreement with and Shenzhen
Giga Hongtai Hongxin Share Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“HTHX Fund”),
pursuant to which SMIT Shenzhen will make a
capital injection of RMB90 million (equivalent to
approximately USD13 million) in Giga. Immediately
prior to the capital injection, Giga was held as to
99.01% by the HTHX Fund and 0.99% by SMIT
Shenzhen respectively. Upon completion of the
capital injection, Giga will be held as to 90.91%
by the HTHX Fund and 9.09% by SMIT Shenzhen.

Since early 2020, the epidemic of Coronavirus
Disease 2019 (“the COVID-19 outbreak”) has
spread across the PRC and other countries, and it
has affected business and economic activities to
some extent.

(i) Certain accounting estimates and
judgements that have been used in
preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 might be adjusted in 2020 as a result
of the impact of COVID-19 outbreak, which
are summarised below.
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38

WREHRBREE (H)

(b)

(%)

NE@YEHEETRENR (K=
25) AR ESELEEMNNAIKE S
HEAHKESE  FLBAEHR
EEE - BTN AEEREC
T-NF+ A=+ BHERKMG
HERSELBENARESRENR
B - BN - - TF TR
BRI - COVID-19% 1B R EHIR
SEEEMNARR S RENETIRE
EENTEBRAEE - HEZSSH
EUMBREEETIRER - KB
EFECOVID- 198 — T - T4 137
REeEABNKRRHTE  BADE
KA EESZ R MR LT E -

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(i) (Continued)

The Group tested goodwill for
impairment (Note 25) and the
recoverable amount of the relevant
CGU exceeds its carrying amount,
thus no provision for impairment is
made. In performing this assessment,
the Group estimated the present value
of future cash flows of the CGU based
on the conditions as at 31 December
2019. In the goodwill impairment test
to be performed in 2020, COVID-19
outbreak and its impact on the
present value of estimated future cash
flows of the CGU will be considered.
Up to the date on which these
consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group
is still in the process of assessing
the impacts of the COVID-19 on the
performance of the relevant CGU
in 2020 and is currently unable to
estimate the quantitative impacts to
the Group.

poe it
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)1/

38

WREHREE (8)

(b)

(%)

ERBEREEHBEETHAEER
O AT H0 R R R R TE S R (M
124)  AEBERRBEGEERK
ERB AN SRELEHRIBEE -
COVID-19Z B e AEE S KB
NEINEEERTE - SRR AR
BEAEERARN RESHESTHIEA
EEE R - BRI EAE A
HECEREERIBEEE - BHEZRS
HEVBmREENEER  FEE
BEHCOVID-19% =T -~ FF 48
BB ARRIEMTZE - BRIhEE
B AEEZ MR TE -
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38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

(i) (Continued)

In assessing deductible temporary
differences and tax losses for the
recognition of deferred tax assets
of the Group (Note 24), the Group
considered future taxable profits that
will be available against which the
deferred tax asset can be utilised.
The COVID-2019 outbreak might
have impact on the operations of the
respective subsidiaries of the Group
such that it might not be profitable
in the near future, as certain of its tax
losses will be expired and therefore
the related deferred tax assets
recognised might not be utilised.
Up to the date on which these
consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, the Group is still
in the process of assessing the impacts
of the COVID-19 on the performance
of the relevant subsidiaries in 2020
and is currently unable to estimate the
quantitative impacts to the Group.
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38

WREHRBREE (H)

(b)

(%)

(i)

- AEBETEZEEESEATCHE
EXEBEBREATENE - KT
—NF+ZA=+—H BRBEZK
AFEARNEREEN AT ELRE
£14,596,569% 7 (M5E21) « K=
ToTF  AEEREZRENQTE
AL EFCOVID-19& B E2E LN
) Mz Z2NEETHEEF - K
BB EERINBIEERMT R - LA
— TR -_ZT-_FTFCOVID-19&15
SR EHENTE -

RZZZZF=F  FERZECHRAEE
REBRISRMBLOL THESTIN - HRA
—ECTFA—HBE_ZT_FTFNA=
THIE - REEFBHNBAE - HEEE
ZECTF+ZRA=+—HIFE  ZIHN
HEBCRARR SR LAER 15888
7T (RSER02BEEET) °

38 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

@

(i)

(Continued)

- The Group's certain equity investments
are classified as financial assets and
measured at fair value through profit
or loss. As at 31 December 2019, the
total fair value of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to USD14,596,569 (Note
21). In 2020, fair value of the Group’s
equity investments may be subject
to fluctuation due to the COVID-19
outbreak, the impact of which is
still under assessment. The Group
will continue to communicate with
external valuers to further understand
the impacts of the COVID-19
outbreak to the valuation of the
equity investments in 2020.

In March 2020, the Hong Kong Science Park
has given a rental payment discount to the
Group for its tenancy in Hong Kong Science
Park for the period from 1 April 2020 to
30 September 2020. Based on the letter
of notice from the landlord, it is estimated
that the discount will result in a reduction of
total undiscounted cash outflow of HKD1.5
million (equivalent to approximately USDO0.2
million) for the year ending 31 December
2020.

N
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g
39 ARATMBAMRRRFEEEE 39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY
R+=—A=+-—8
As at 31 December
—E-hEF —=-N\F
2019 2018
=4 e ZET
Note UsD Uusp
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
RETE R BRI E Investment in subsidiaries 70,118,103 70,108,560
BiRBREAFEARN Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 2,063,938 5,600,000
72,182,041 75,708,560
REBEE Current assets
JEUH B A B FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 39,118,725 38,285,624
TERIFRIE Prepayments 18,703 18,703
Re MRS EEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,836,910 2,817,290
. . 40,974,338 41,121,617
HwEE Total assets 113,156,379 116,830,177

4@\ FIEHE ANNUALREPORT 2019  EI#SIZEREFRAF SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

268



e MR R MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39

RRABRMBRARRABEED (&)

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
®+=B=+-—H
As at 31 December
—2-h%F —E-N\F
2019 2018
i =T e
Note uUsD usD
BEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
AABHEE AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
f& s Share capital 6,364 6,326
f& = E Share premium (a) 101,505,767 100,982,947
LARR 19 B ERE R R Share-based payment reserve (a) 1,728,425 1,728,425
(RETE1R)REBEF (Accumulated losses)/retained earnings @) (3,809,945) 593,452
gm0 Totalequity 99,430,611 103,311,150
=N Liabilities
=R Current liabilities
FEETE A R H MR8 Accruals and other payables 736,172 538,974
ER—RMBAFIRIA Amount due to a subsidiary 12,989,596 12,980,053
#wef| __ Totalliabilites 13,725,768 13,519,027
wERRAE Total equity and liabilities 113,156,379 116,830,177

ARTHBHRAKDHEFER - F-TE= A+t

HAUEA L BREE ©

E

il
B
b

EF
BEXC B

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020

and were signed on its behalf.

Huang Xueliang

Chairman

Loong, Manfred Man-tsun
Director

N
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)1/

39

RRABRMBRARRABEED (@)

(a) AATEEES

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserve movement of the Company

URME (REEE)
RRE ERSTREE REZER
(Accumulated
Share-based losses)/
Share payment retained
premium reserve earnings
EY E E
usb usb usb
R=ZB-NF—A—H At 1 January 2018 98,362,681 1,728,238 (2,314,719)
FRRALEEKSEE Profit and total comprehensive — — 2,908,171
income for the year
TTihRERR AR Exercise of share options 3,422,799 — —
VARR R A iR e 5 B Share-based compensation — 187 —
ZE-N\FERRIRN Dividends relating to 2017 (802,533) — —
ZE—tFHEERE paid in June 2018
R-Z—-N\E+=HA=+—H At31December 2018 100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
Bp Representing:
[FHfE Reserves 100,577,533 1,728,425 593,452
- \FEERERE 2018 final dividend proposed 405,414 — —
100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
R-ZE-h&E—HF—H At 1 January 2019 100,982,947 1,728,425 593,452
FABEBEREZABERE Loss and total comprehensive loss — — (4,403,397)
for the year
TTibRE AR RE Exercise of share options 928,234 = —
ZE-NEFRAIRM Dividends relating to 2018 (405,414) — —
- \FHEERE paid in May 2019
R=-Z-AF+=-HA=+—H At31December 2019 101,505,767 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
Bp Representing:
#E Reserves 101,095,628 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
ZE-NFEEREIRE 2019 final dividend proposed 410,139 = =
101,505,767 1,728,425 (3,809,945)
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R il
40 EERFZRERS (FAC(LTIMEHB) (58 40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

622F) $3831% (AT (HEEEFH DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED

BER)RAIN (5£622GE) REE L HRA BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG

BRENKE) COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) ESBERENEEEHMHN (a) Directors’ and senior management'’s

emoluments
AATERFHHEHS AT - The remuneration of the directors of the Company

is set out below:

BE-F-NEroRzr-BLEE
Year ended 31 December 2019

RERALTS

ENEATRE

EREAMT  RGRESRE MHESEGRE EHER
i3 fié it Bighd GERE  SHEE(NEE) CHOEGEM BUCRUNEN  HEEIHR it

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director's other

sevices in

Remuneration  connection with

Estimated paidor  the management
money value receivable  of the affairs Employer's
of other inrespectof of the company  contribution to
Discretionary Housing benefits ~ acceptingoffice ~ oritssubsidiary  a retirement
Name Fees Salaries honuses allowance (Note (a)) as director undertaking  benefit scheme Total
i # T i i T T i i
Usp sp Usp Usp Usp Usp Usp Usp Usp
#iEs Executive director
ESRAE (M) M, Huang Yuelang ot (o) 200 37686 18203 - - - - 4615 544504
HES Mt Shuai Hongu 10 ETE] 107766 - 115 - - 12000 15328
ETE ir. Loong, Manired Man-tsun 24000 395 9,152 = = = = 4615 163992
HinES Non-executive directors
LaRE ) M. Zeng Zhije (Note () 10000 = = = = = = = 10000
it M. Kwan, Alan Chungeyuen 24,000 = = = = = = = 24,000
EiERE (i) Mr. Gao Songtao (Note ) = = = = = = = = =
BUuGES Independent non-executive directors
Bt Mt hang urje 24000 - - - - - - - 10
HRREE M. Woo Kar Tung,Reymond 24,000 = = = = = = = 2,000
$384E Mt Jn Yifeng 200 - - - - - - - 200
178,000 1,076,284 E7AVA] - 145 - - 1130 1,607,780
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)

40

BEEFZRER (BFB(ATEL) (5
622F) 383K (AT (HEBEEEFH
BEH) R ($£622GE) REB LHHEA
REWEE) &)

(a) EEKSREEEZFM (B

(@  HRNeEEHREERE -

(b) HEFTRARFERNITE  LEREFAMTEH
B B BT -

© HEBA-Z-AFEA-TEBE-

(d) ZEEN-_E-_ZTF=-F-t+tHEHE-

4@\ FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 EISKIZMRHIRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

(a) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no
separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of
the CEO has been made.

(a] The director resigned on 20 May 2019.

(d) The director resigned on 27 March 2020.

272



mEMBRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 EEFBRER (FE(AEMEL) (F
622%) 53831 (AT (WEBSEFS

BEH) R (F£622GE) REB LTHEA
REWEE) &

(@)

EEREREEBHM (B)

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED

BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG

COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF

DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)

AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

BETR-)\Frofzr-ALER
Year ended 31 Decerber 2018

RERRATS
ENEAAEH
‘ ‘ Kt ARRESER MMESAGRE  EAEHHE )
8 LS b Bfsta [iREE eHBR(OGE) ElemH EhaEhaE i #
Emoluments
paid o
receliable in
respect of
director's other
senicesin
Remuneration ~ connection with
Estimated paidor  the management
money value receliatle of the affars Employer's
of other inrespectof  ofthecompany  contrbution to
Discretionary Housing benefits ~ acceptingoffice ot subsidiary arefirement
Name Fegs Salaries bonuses alowance (Note (3)) asdirector undertaking  benefit scheme Total
#T #T T T #7 #T T T #T
[ [ s s U D s s %
#iEs Executive director
FBRELE (i) Mt Huang Xlang (ot o) 200 7502 18149 - f - - 4613 544306
BFEE M. Shuai Hongyu 24,000 350320 108,195 - 05 - . 13411 49,217
EYeTid Mt Loong,Menfred Man-tsun 200 39081 %112 - - - - 4613 153306
Fadti £ Non-executive directors
LoARE () . Zeng Zhije (Note () 240 - - B - - - - 2400
it M. Kwan, Alan Chungeyuen 24,000 - - B = = - B 24,000
BERA (i) Mr. Gao Songtao (Note ) - - - - - - - - -
BUuGES Independent nor-executive directors
Bl Mt hang e 200 - - - - - - - 200
it Mr. Woo Ker Tung, Raymond 24000 = - = - - - - 2000
$8%E Mt Jn Yifeng 200 - - - - - - - 200
192,000 1,076,923 332456 s 267 - - 0,103 1624349

(a)  EEFNBEEFHRIEBRE -

(b) HEFNTR/ARFRERNITE  LEREFEATEH
B LD B B -

(0 ZREER-_ZT-NAFEA_T+HEE-

(d) ZEEFN-T-_TF=-A-F+LHEHE-

(a) Other benefits include leave pay and share option.

(b) The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate disclosure

in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has been made.

(0 The director resigned on 20 May 2019.

(d) The director resigned on 27 March 2020.
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)

40 EEFERERS (FB(DTMEH) (5
622F) 383K (AT (HEBEEEFH
BEH) R ($£622GE) REB LHHEA
REWEE) &)

(b)

(@

(d)

EERNER

BERTNEFERARREBAEMBARE
576 R e B A BRI (A1 180 35 S A9 SRR IRAR A (=
T—N\F:E) -

EERREN

RBE-Z-NAF+-A=+—HILFE  #E
FIRRTAR LR HBR M TESEMAE (=
T-N\F:E)-

MERHESRBMATE=SRE

BE-P-AE+-AZ+—AILFE  KAF
o WG EERBE T ARETEAE=S
(ZZ—\F - |) -

4@\ FEHE ANNUAL REPORT 2019 EISKIZMRHIRAE SMIT HOLDINGS LIMITED

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(@]

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking (2018:
Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of
appointment or loss of office during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available directors’ services
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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40 EEFERER (FB(DTMEH) (5
622F) $3831% (AT (HEEEFH
BEH) R (F£622GE) REB LTHEA

BRENKE) &)
() BRERES SESRHNWEAERRE

()

ESAEENEENER  BUERKEAM
REWER

RERZBE-FT-NF+_A=1T"HLFE
FARELBEFEERES  XEFEHHIEA
ERMEEEAMENEENER  BUERR
Hih2 5 (ZF—\F : #|) -

EEERS  RPERENTNERER

RERRBE_T-NF+_A=1T—HLFE
ERRRELEFER AR RHERR KT AARRR
EENERERNEERBEEEA RN EARRT
EGAMNERERS KA (ZF—\F ¢
) o

40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES REQUIRED
BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. 622)
AND COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G)
AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
made available in favour of directors, body
corporates controlled by and connected entities
with such directors subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Lt g
BE+t=-A=t—-BHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NEF —T-N\F T+ TR —T—AF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
s Revenue 38,099,720 41,318,578 91,780,923 59,053,896 65,141,051
SEERA Cost of sales (22,824,996) (27,641,807) (59,277,526)  (35,596,258)  (41,016,720)
EF Gross profit 15,274,724 13,676,771 32,503,397 23,457,638 24,124,331
FTiSFianaA (&) Profit/(loss) before income tax 11,621,320 (277,783) 14,031,227 7,379,349 4,140,582
Fr{SFiEE /(M%)  Income tax credit/(expense) 700,991 1,593,307 (2,932,359) 121,237 (817,878)
FRER Profit for the year 12,322,311 1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704
T & BN - Profit is attributable to:
RRFHER A Owners of the Company 10,602,142 1,317,734 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704
FEIE R Non-controlling interests 1,720,169 (2,210)
12,322,311 1,315,524 11,098,868 7,500,586 3,322,704
R+=-—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—Z-NE —ZT-N\F —T—+F —ER-REF —T—AF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
BEE Total assets 177,468,937 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711 78,937,477
RRAEB AERN Equity attributable to owners
R’ of the Company 121,634,110 112,018,954 114,331,589 99,092,678 62,176,860
FEE R iR Non-controlling interests 1,967,240 240,480 - - -
BiEn Total equity 123,601,350 112,259,434 114,331,589 99,092,678 62,176,860
Ba’k Total liabilities 53,867,587 28,659,277 17,351,442 10,339,033 16,760,617
WX ARG Total equity and liabilities 177,468,937 140,918,711 131,683,031 109,431,711 78,937,477
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